AN ABSTRACT OF THE DISSERTATION OF

<u>Alix E. Robel</u> for the degree of <u>Doctor of Philosophy</u> in <u>Toxicology</u> presented on <u>October</u> 3, 2019.

Title: <u>Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances: From Disposition on Consumer Products and</u> <u>Field Materials to Treatment of Contaminated Groundwater</u>

Abstract approved: _____

Jennifer A. Field

Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) are an emerging chemical class of concern. Recently in the United States, Health Advisory Limits for two PFAS in drinking water were established for perfluorooctane sulfonate and perfluorooctanoate in drinking water (set to 70 ng/L combine concentration) by the EPA. Because of PFAS mobility, persistence, and occurrence in drinking water throughout the country, it is import to understand potential sources of PFAS. In the first study, PFAS sample collection and storage and materials used in the field were examined. Sampling parameters including sampling materials, sample collection, and sample storage for the analytes represented by the new analytical method were examined. The optimal sample storage and analysis conditions were determined. Additionally, a characterization of 66 sampling materials was performed and a list of PFAS containing materials was compiled, as well as a list of materials that contain no PFAS. This study represents a comprehensive approach to over 35 PFAS actually present at an environmentally relevant site, sampling and storage, and materials that may impact analysis and cause false positives. In the second study, a subset of seventeen papers and textiles were analyzed using four techniques: liquid

chromatography tandem mass spectrometry (LC-MS/MS) for 73 individual PFAS, gas chromatography mass spectrometry (GC-MS) for 7 individual PFAS, total oxidizable precursor (TOP) assay, and total fluorine by particle-induced gamma-ray emission (PIGE) spectroscopy. Total PFAS measured by LC-MS/MS, GC-MS, which represent monomeric PFAS with the potential for human exposure, only represent <2.6% of the total polymeric PFAS material bound to the surface of papers and textiles. Environmental PFAS contaminations is leading to a direct need for remediation. In the third study, PFAS breakthrough curves resulting from a pilot-scale granular activated carbon (GAC) system were modeled to determine the efficacy for removal of individual PFAS present at a military site over 11 months. The relationship between the order of

individual PFAS elution by analytical analysis by LC-MS/MS or LC-QTOF was determined to be the same as the order of breakthrough from GAC. Understanding of

PFAS mass balance leads to more effective remediation with an

understanding of PFAS effluent breakthrough.

©Copyright by Alix E. Robel October 3, 2019 All Rights Reserved Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances: From Disposition on Consumer Products and Field Materials to Treatment of Contaminated Groundwater

> by Alix E. Robel

A DISSERTATION

submitted to

Oregon State University

in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

Doctor of Philosophy

Presented October 3, 2019 Commencement June 2020 Doctor of Philosophy dissertation of Alix E. Robel presented on October 3, 2019

APPROVED:

Major Professor, representing Toxicology

Head of the Department of Environmental and Molecular Toxicology

Dean of the Graduate School

I understand that my dissertation will become part of the permanent collection of Oregon State University libraries. My signature below authorizes release of my dissertation to any reader upon request.

Alix E. Robel, Author

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The author expresses sincere appreciation to my major professor, Jennifer Field, for her continual support, mentorship, and guidance during the entirety of my time in her laboratory. I would also like to recognize my graduate committee: Dr. Kim Anderson, Dr. Staci Simonich, Dr. Lewis Semprini, and Dr. Susan Tilton for their assistance and support in shaping me as a scientist. I would also like to thank my laboratory members over the years (Ben, Will, McKay, Monica, Krista, Shannon, Matt, Justin, Serhan, Bethany, Tom, Jiawen, Dunping, Emerson, and Trever), as well as the members of Chris Higgins, Kim Anderson, Graham Peaslee and Staci Simonich laboratories who have helped to better me as a scientist and for their unwavering friendship. I would also like to thank Mindy Berger for her exceptional life mentorship. Finally, I would like to thank my friends and family who have helped and supported me to get to the end of this process successfully.

CONTRIBUTION OF AUTHORS

For all of the enclosed chapters, Dr. Jennifer A. Field provided experimental design assistance, editing, and guidance in the manuscript writing process. For the papers & textiles manuscript, Craig Butt, and Graham Peaslee provided assistance in manuscript writing and analysis by gas chromatography- mass spectrometry and particle-induced gamma ray emission spectroscopy. For the storage stability and materials study, Bill Diguiseppi and Dorin Bogdan provided insight into materials selected and study design.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Chapter 1: Introduction 1
Characteristics & Manufacturing1
Regulation in the United States & Toxicology
PFAS in Commerce
Literature Cited
Chapter 2: Closing the Mass Balance on Fluorine on Papers and Textile
Abstract
Introduction15
Experimental Section17
Standards and Reagents17Sampling Collection and Storage18Volatile Extraction and Analysis by GC-MS19Extraction for Individual Ionic PFASs and TOP Assay20TOP Assay22Particle-Induced Gamma Ray Emission (PIGE) Spectroscopy23
Results and Discussion
Volatiles by GC-MS.24Ionic Individual PFASs by LC-MS/MS.26TOP Assay.27PIGE.30Closing the Mass Balance on Fluorine.31
Implications
Acknowledgements
Literature Cited
Supporting Information

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Page

Experimental Methods
Chapter 3: Much Ado About (Almost) Nothing: Field Sampling Materials Unlikely Source of False Positives for Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Field Samples70
Abstract
Introduction72
Experimental Methods
Field Materials Selection and Extraction74Instrumental Analysis76LC-MS/MS76PIGE77
Results and Discussion
PFAS Composition and Concentration
Conclusions
Acknowledgements
Literature Cited
Supporting Information
Chapter 4: Branched and Linear Interpretation for the Removal of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances by Pilot-Scale Granular Actiated Carbon System in Groundwater at a Military Site
Abstract
Introduction104
Experimental Methods107

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Standards and Reagents	107
Study Site and GAC System Design	107
Sample Collection, Transport, and Storage	108
Sample Extraction	109
TOP Assay	109
PFAS Selection and Analysis by LC-MS/MS	110
Data Treatment and Breakthrough Curves	112
Results and Discussion	113
Influent Characterization	113
TOP Assay for Characterizing Influent	115
Effluent Concentrations	117
Breakthrough Curves	117
Br/L Isomer Breakthrough	119
Breakthrough and Analytical Retention Time	119
Breakthrough and TOP Assay	120
Implications and Limitations	122
Acknowledgements	124
Literature Cited	134
Supporting Information	140
Experimental Methods	141
Results and Discussion	
Literature Cited	154
Chapter 5: Conclusions	
Bibliography	161

LIST OF FIGURES

<u>Figure</u> <u>Page</u>
2.1 Sample processing and analysis workflow
2.2 Chromatographic depiction of select branched and linear PFCAs and PFOS before (A) and after (B) oxidation by TOP Assay
2.3 Distribution of % average contribution normalized after TOP Assay for a) eight papers and b) nine textiles
4.1 Branched (Br) and linear (L) isomers for a) PFOS and b) PFOA in GAC influent and c) PFOS and d) PFOA in GAC effluent
4.2 Breakthrough curves with model fits for a) PFCAs, b) PFSAs, and c) FHxSA and 6:2 FTS
4.3 Breakthrough curves for Br and L PFOS in lag vessel effluent
4.4 Comparison of lead vessel bed volumes required for 20% breakthrough vs. analytical retention times. The one open data point depicts PFPeS which was close to the instrumental LOQ
4.5. Breakthrough curves for lead vessel of PFCAs, PFSAs, 6:2 FtS and FHxSA. Red stars denote the C/C₀ for the TOP assay at select BVs

LIST OF TABLES

Table	Page
2.1 Total nmol F/cm ² for volatile PFASs, ionic individual PFASs, and precursors from the TOP assay	
2.2 The sum of volatile, ionic, and total F on solvent extracted paper/textile, total fluorine by PIGE and the % of mass balance accounted for in comparison to total fluorine by PIGE.	ı 39
2.3 GC-MS target analyte full name, acronym, SIM ions (quantification ion is underlined), internal standard, and data quality tier	51
2.4 LC-MS/MS target analyte full name, acronym, acquisition masses and parameters, internal standard, calibration reference, and data quality	52
2.5 Analytical Validation Parameters for Recovery (Accuracy), RSD (Precision Limit of Detection (LOD), and Limit of Quantification (LOQ) for volatile analytical control of the second s	on), lytes56
2.6 Sample mass to methanol extraction ratio for determination of minimum material for maximum precision (RSD%) for papers and textiles	57
2.7 Accuracy (% Recovery), Precision (% RSD), and Limit of Detection and Quantification for Papers and Textiles	60
2.8 Known precursors % recovery (on a total nmole basis), number of Perfluorinated carbons in chain, and distribution of carbon chain length after the TOP Assay (no paper or textile present)	61
2.9 Concentrations (μ g/m ²) of Individual Volatile and Ionic PFASs analyzed by GC-MS and LC-MS/MS.	62
2.10 Ionic PFASs after TOP assay, described as net production of PFCAs and PFSAs.	66
3.1 Concentrations of individual PFASs in μ g/m ² and PIGE values in ug F/m ² field materials with branched, linear values separated when applicable (one number indicates all linear or for PFBA, PFPeA, and PFBS a lack of analytical separation between branched/linear). Bolded field material Descriptions indica materials listed on a field sampling guidance document	for te 87

LIST OF TABLES (Continued)

Table	<u>Page</u>
3.2 Material origin from Oregon State University (OSU), University of Notre Dame (UND), or Geoprobe Systems® (GP)	95
3.3 LC-MS/MS target analyte full name, acronym, acquisition masses and parameters, internal standard, calibration reference, and data quality	98
4.1 Design parameters for GAC pilot-scale system	125
4.2 Average Br and L PFAS influent concentrations $(ng/L) \pm$ standard error, analytical retention time (min) and PSDM modeling parameters	126
4.3 Net production of PFCAs by TOP assay (nmol) \pm propagated relative stan error and the total mass of unknown precursors at five selected bed volumes in lead vessel.	dard the 129
4.4 LC-MS/MS target analyte full name, acronym, acquisition masses and parameters, internal standard, calibration reference, and data quality	143
4.5 Influent analyte concentrations before and after TOP assay (ng/L and nmo \pm standard error and summed masses (nmol) \pm propagated standard error	l) 148
4.6 Analyte name, bed volumes at 20% breakthrough, and analytical retention	time153

Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances: From Disposition on Consumer Products and Field Materials to Treatment of Contaminated Groundwater

Chapter 1: Introduction

Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) are classified as emerging contaminants of concern, and are abundant in the environment. PFASs are anthropogenic in origin, and therefore when PFASs are observed in the environment it is a direct result of use by humans.

Characteristics & Manufacturing

PFASs are unique but share the commonality of having one or more carbons where the hydrogens are replaced with fluorine (C_nF_{2n+1} -), and are attached to a polar head group.¹ Perfluorinated substances are characterized by carbon chains in which all the original hydrogens are replaced with fluorine (e.g., $C_4F_9SO_3^{-}$).¹ Perfluorinated perfluoroalkyl carboxylates (PFCAs) and perfluoroalkyl sulfonates (PFSAs) have no known biodegradation pathway such that they are persistent in the environment.² In contrast, polyfluorinated substances are characterized by a fluorinated carbon chain in which some of the carbons have at least one hydrogen (e.g., $C_4F_9CH_2CH_2SO_3^{-}$).¹ Some PFASs are considered 'precursors' because they biotransform to persistent PFCAs and PFSAs under aerobic conditions.³⁻⁹

PFAS manufacturing, which began in the 1940s, produces a range of C_nF_{n+1} chain lengths with varying polar head groups.¹⁰ PFAS production is proprietary and has produced potentially 1000's of unique PFASs.¹¹ PFASs are manufactured by either electrochemical fluorination (ECF) or fluorotelomer (FT)-based syntheses. Manufacturing by ECF is attributed to one US manufacturer, 3M, and the process produces both odd and even chain lengths and 25% branched and 75% linear isomers.¹²⁻¹⁴. FT-based manufacturing is utilized by all other manufacturers and produces primarily even numbers of fluorinated carbons and only linear isomers.¹⁵

Regulation in the United States & Toxicology

In May of 2000, the U.S. EPA and 3M released a statement indicating that a voluntary phase out of C8-based PFAS made by ECF, which includes perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoate (PFOA), citing a "strong tendency to accumulate in human and animal tissues, [with a potential to] pose a risk to human health and the environment over the long term."¹⁶ Then in 2006, a voluntary stewardship program was announced for the eight major manufacturing companies (Arkema, Asahi, Ciba, Clariant, Daikin, DuPont, 3M/Dyneon, and Solvay Solexis), which required 1] 95% reduction by 2010, and 2] a complete phase out of C8 and greater PFAS by 2015.¹⁷ In 2009, the U.S. EPA issued a provisional health advisory for PFOA at 400 ng/L and for PFOS at 200 ng/L in drinking water.¹⁸ However, the provisional health advisory was reevaluated in 2016 and changed to a lifetime health advisory limit (HAL) of 70 ng/L for drinking water for both PFOA and PFOS, as individuals or when combined.¹⁹ The HAL was established based on adverse health effects in mice and humans, including "developmental effects to fetuses during pregnancy or to breastfed infants (e.g., low birth weight, accelerated puberty, skeletal variations), cancer (e.g., testicular, kidney), liver effects (e.g., tissue damage), immune effects (e.g., antibody production and immunity), thyroid effects and other effects (e.g., cholesterol changes)."¹⁹ The most recent

development for PFASs includes a comprehensive nationwide PFASs action plan, which would include a regulatory maximum contaminant level for PFASs in drinking water.²⁰

The toxicology of PFASs, like regulation, is continuing to evolve. Toxicology of PFASs is focused predominantly on PFOS and PFOA, although PFAS persistence and PFASs present in the environment are of increasing concern.^{11, 21} A recent development in toxicology includes the C8 Science Panel which was an epidemiological study tracking individuals in the Mid-Ohio valley between 2005-2013 who were exposed to PFAS releases from local manufacturing.²² The C8 study, which focused primarily on C8 PFASs, found a probable link to "diagnosed high cholesterol, ulcerative colitis, thyroid disease, testicular cancer, kidney cancer, and pregnancy-induced hypertension.²²" In a study by Nilsson et al., volatile PFAS were found to biotransform into PFCAs in the human body, indicating that other PFASs have the potential to impact humans.²³ Further, Perez et al. found that PFASs distribute into various tissues in the human body, but accumulate in protein rich tissues.²⁴ Interestingly, less is reported on shorter-chain PFASs (e.g. <C6) although shorter-chain PFASs are known to be emitted and available for exposure to both humans and other species.²⁵

Other toxicological studies, which include other select PFASs (e.g. PFCAs and PFSAs), focus on species other than humans and include: fat head minnows, water-algaezebra mussel, round goby-smallmouth bass, chinook salmon, lake whitefish, mink, bald eagles, and rats.²⁶⁻³⁰ Lanza et al. indicates bioaccumulation in individual trophic levels, and biomagnification between trophic levels for PFOS.²⁹ Although this study was performed only for PFOS, the relationship is likely true for other PFASs. Phillips et al. using fluorotelomer acids (FTCAs), and found FTCAs to be more toxic than PFCAs.³¹ Toxicological studies such as Phillips et al.³² indicate that inclusion of a greater range of environmentally relevant PFASs are critical for the identification of protective regulatory limits for humans and other species.

PFAS in Commerce

PFASs are used in consumer products including polymers (e.g. PTFE), additives (e.g. paper production), inks, varnishes, waxes, metal plating and cleaning, and as repellents for leather, paper and textiles.^{10, 16, 33} PFASs are uniquely suited to consumer product applications because they are very effective oil repellants, as compared to silicone or hydrocarbon-based surfactants, which are only effective as water repellants.¹⁰ PFASs are observed in many consumer products in the U.S. and around the world, but many studies only focus on a limited number of PFASs especially PFOS and PFOA.³⁴⁻³⁸ Another type of technique, one that measures for total fluorine rather than individual PFASs has been applied.^{39, 40} Fewer studies examine a larger range of PFAS or put measured PFAS into the context of total fluorine on consumer products.^{39, 41, 42}

In the 1950's, PFAS production for use in aqueous film forming foams (AFFFs) began as a collaboration between the U.S. Military and manufacturers including 3M.⁴³ AFFFs were generated for use in extinguishing hydrocarbon-based fuel fires and polar-solvent fires.¹⁵ AFFFs are used specifically for crash and spill events as well as for fire-fighter training purposes. Once produced, manufacturers of AFFF must have their

proprietary AFFF mixtures tested in order to determine if they meet the military specification for placement on the qualified products list.^{44, 45}

Typically, spill or crash events result in the use of AFFF in uncontained settings, which resulted in groundwater, soil, and sediment contamination of surrounding areas (e.g. the Lac-Mégantic train crash).⁴⁶ Fire-fighter training on military bases was conducted at a limited number of location on military bases over decades with a frequency that ranged from bi-weekly to monthly.⁴⁷ Unlike crash or spill events, for which a limited number of AFFFs were used to extinguish the fire,⁴⁶ many AFFFs were used over decades at fire-fighter training sites since the type of AFFFs available for military used changed over time.^{44, 45} In order to evaluate PFAS contamination, sample collection and analysis for PFAS are necessary. It is therefore important to quantify PFASs in field sampling materials which have the potential to give a false positive. Once PFAS contamination is identified as a risk to human health (e.g.has the potential to impact a drinking water source), technologies used for remediation (e.g. granulated activated carbon) must be evaluated and implemented for PFAS removal.

In Chapter 2, the disposition of fluorine on papers and textiles was examined. Since ingestion is known as a major route of exposure, when individuals are not near a source PFAS (e.g. manufacturing),⁴⁸ papers and textiles may contribute to PFAS exposure. Previous studies examined papers and textiles for individual PFAS content by liquid chromatography-mass spectrometry or by total fluorine techniques such as particleinduced gamma ray emission spectroscopy.^{36, 39, 40} However, no studies had yet examined the overall disposition of individual PFASs relative to the total fluorine on surfaces. The relationship between individual PFASs and total fluorine is of interest since not all fluorine may be available to transfer into or on other materials (e.g. food). This chapter focuses on the disposition of PFASs in 17 new and used papers and textiles by quantifying 73 non-volatile PFAS by liquid chromatography tandem mass spectrometry and an additional six volatile PFASs by gas chromatography mass spectrometry. The individual PFAS concentrations were then compared to the concentration of total fluorine by 1] the total oxidizable precursor assay which oxidizes unknown precursor PFASs into PFCAs and PFSAs and 2]particle-induced gamma ray emission spectroscopy. The resulting manuscript was publishing in *Environmental Science & Technology* in 2017.

In Chapter 3, materials used in field sampling were extracted and analyzed for 52 PFAS by LC-MS/MS. In order to inform field sampling guidance documents, PFAS concentrations on field sampling materials were used to evaluate the potential for crosscontamination between field sampling materials and samples collected in the field. Field sampling guidance documents currently list prohibited items (e.g. blue ice, permanent markers, bound notebooks, etc).^{49, 50} However, many of the prohibited items have the potential to increase sampling convenience and the comfort of individuals collecting samples, and to reduce costs associated with sampling and shipping. Materials used field sampling events were assigned to categories including pre-staging, staging, sampling, and shipping. Each category was then evaluated based on the potential for the materials to come in direct contact with field samples (e.g. nitrile gloves directly touching samples). Only during sampling do materials have the potential to come into direct contact with field materials, but many materials prohibited by the guidance documents (e.g. cold packs) have no direct contact with samples (e.g. during pre-staging, staging, and shipping). Based on the PFAS concentrations in materials extracted in methanol, it is unlikely that materials could contribute to false positives in the field.

In Chapter 4, granulated activated carbon (GAC), a commonly used remediation technology, was implemented at the pilot-scale at a military base to examine PFAS breakthrough. Typically, studies which evaluate remediation technologies for PFAS removal are performed at the batch or bench scale.⁵¹⁻⁶¹ Chapter 4 examines the breakthrough of PFASs from AFFF-impacted groundwater at the pilot-scale at an AFFFcontaminated site. A total of seventeen PFASs, and their branched and linear isomers, were quantified in the influent, lead vessel effluent, and lag vessel effluent; breakthrough of 13 PFASs were modeled for breakthrough in the lead and lag vessels. Chromatographic retention time for the 17 PFASs were compared to the breakthrough bed volumes when effluent concentrations reached 20% of the influent concentration; the correlation gave an R²-value of 0.61. Chromatographic retention time is a characteristic parameter that is obtained during LC-MS/MS or high resolution mass spectrometry analysis. Once an influent of a GAC system is characterized and chromatographic retention times are known, their relative breakthrough order are also known and can be used to inform site remediation efforts.

Literature Cited

1. Buck, R.; Franklin, J.; Berger, U.; Conder, J.; Cousins, I.; Voogt, P. d.; Jensen, A.; Kannan, K.; Mabury, S.; Leeuwen, S. v., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in the environment: terminology, classifications, and origins. *Integr Environ Assess Man* **2011**, *7*, 513.

2. Krafft, M. P.; Riess, J. G., Selected physicochemical aspects of poly- and perfluoroalkylated substances relevant to performance, environment and sustainability-Part one. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 4-19.

3. Butt, C. M.; Muir, D. C. G.; Mabury, S. A., Biotransformation pathways of fluorotelomer-based polyfluoroalkyl substances: A Review *Environ. Toxicol. Chem.* **2014**, *33*, (2), 243-267.

4. Dinglasan, M. J. A.; Ye, Y.; Edwards, E. A.; Mabury, S. A., Fluorotelomer alcohol biodegradation yields poly- and perfluorinated acids. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2004**, *38*, (10), 2857-2864.

5. Harding-Marjanovic, K. C.; Houtz, E. F.; Yi, S.; Field, J. A.; Sedlak, D. L.; Alvarez-Cohen, L., Aerobic Biotransformation of Fluorotelomer Thioether Amido Sulfonate (Lodyne) in AFFF-Amended Microcosms. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2015**, *49*, (13), 7666-7674.

6. Liu, J.; Lee, L. S.; Nies, L. F.; Nakatsu, C. H.; Turco, R. F., Biotransformation of 8 : 2 fluorotelorner alcohol in soil and by soil bacteria isolates. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2007**, *41*, (23), 8024-8030.

7. Wang, N.; Liu, J. X.; Buck, R. C.; Korzeniowski, S. H.; Wolstenholme, B. W.; Folsom, P. W.; Sulecki, L. M., 6:2 Fluorotelomer sulfonate aerobic biotransformation in activated sludge of waste water treatment plants. *Chemosphere* **2011**, *82*, (6), 853-858.

8. Wang, N.; Szostek, B.; Buck, R. C.; Folsom, P. W.; Sulecki, L. M.; Gannon, J. T., 8-2 Fluorotelomer alcohol aerobic soil biodegradation: Pathways, metabolites, and metabolite yields. *Chemosphere* **2009**, *75*, (8), 1089-1096.

9. Zhang, S.; Lu, X.; Wang, N.; Buck, R. C., Biotransformation potential of 6:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate (6:2 FTSA) in aerobic and anaerobic sediment. *Chemosphere* **2016**, *154*, 224-230.

10. Kissa, E., *Fluorinated surfactants: Synthesis, Properties, and Applications.* Marcel Dekker: New York, 1994; Vol. 50.

11. Wang, Z. Y.; DeWitt, J. C.; Higgins, C. P.; Cousins, I. T., A Never-Ending Story of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs)? *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (5), 2508-2518.

12. 3M *The Science of Organic Fluorochemistry*; http://www.fluoridealert.org/wp-content/pesticides/pfos.fr.final.docket.0006.pdf, 1999.

13. Paul, A. G.; Jones, K. C.; Sweetman, A. J., A First Global Production, Emission, And Environmental Inventory For Perfluorooctane Sulfonate. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2009**, *43*, (2), 386-392.

14. Benskin, J. P.; Li, B.; Ikonomou, M. G.; Grace, J. R.; Li, L. Y., Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Landfill Leachate: Patterns, Time Trends, and Sources. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (21), 11532-11540.

15. Prevedouros, K.; Cousins, I.; Buck, R.; Korzeniowski, S., Sources, Fate, and Transport of Perfluorocarboxylates. *ES&T* **2006**, *40*, (1), 32-44.

16. EPA, U. S. EPA and 3M Announce Phase Out of PFOS; 2000.

17. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Pollution Prevention and Toxics 2010/15 PFOA Stewardship Program Guidance on Reporting Emissions and Product Content; https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2015-10/documents/pfoagwidance.pdf 2006

10/documents/pfoaguidance.pdf, 2006.

 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Water, Provisonal Health Advisories for Perfluooctanoic Acid (PFOA) and Perfluorooctane Sulfonate (PFOS).
2009.

19. U.S. EPA Office of Water, Drinking Water Health Advisories for PFOA and PFOS. In https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/drinking-water-health-advisories-pfoa-and-pfos, 2017.

20. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Press Office, EPA Acting Administrator Announces First-Ever Comprehensive Nationwide PFAS Action Plan Historic plan outlines concrete steps the agency is taking to address PFAS and to protect public health. In 2019.

21. Cousins, I. T.; Ng, C. A.; Wang, Z. Y.; Scheringer, M., Why is high persistence alone a major cause of concern? *Environ. Sci.-Process Impacts* **2019**, *21*, (5), 781-792.

22. Panel, C. S. C8 Science Panel. http://www.c8sciencepanel.org/ (October 8, 2019),

23. Nilsson, H.; Karrman, A.; Rotander, A.; van Bavel, B.; Lindstrom, G.; Westberg, H., Biotransformation of fluorotelomer compound to perfluorocarboxylates in humans. *Environ. Int.* **2013**, *51*, 8-12.

24. Perez, F.; Nadal, M.; Navarro-Ortega, A.; Fabrega, F.; Domingo, J. L.; Barcelo, D.; Farre, M., Accumulation of perfluoroalkyl substances in human tissues. *Environ. Int.* **2013**, *59*, 354-362.

25. Boucher, J. M.; Cousins, I. T.; Scheringer, M.; Hungerbuhler, K.; Wang, Z. Y., Toward a Comprehensive Global Emission Inventory of C-4-C-10

Perfluoroalkanesulfonic Acids (PFSAs) and Related Precursors: Focus on the Life Cycle of C-6- and C-10-Based Products. *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2019**, *6*, (1), 1-7.

26. Newsted, J. L.; Beach, S. A.; Gallagher, S. P.; Giesy, J. P., Acute and chronic effects of perfluorobutane sulfonate (PFBS) on the mallard and northern bobwhite quail. *Archives of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology* **2008**, *54*, (3), 535-545.

27. Ankley, G. T.; Kuehl, D. W.; Kahl, M. D.; Jensen, K. M.; Linnum, A.; Leino, R. L.; Villeneuve, D. A., Reproductive and developmental toxicity and bioconcentration of perfluorooctanesulfonate in a partial life-cycle test with the fathead minnow (Pimephales promelas). *Environ. Toxicol. Chem.* **2005**, *24*, (9), 2316-2324.

28. Kannan, K.; Tao, L.; Sinclair, E.; Pastva, S. D.; Jude, D. J.; Giesy, J. P., Perfluorinated compounds in aquatic organisms at various trophic levels in a Great Lakes food chain. *Archives of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology* **2005**, *48*, (4), 559-566.

29. Lanza, H. A.; Cochran, R. S.; Mudge, J. F.; Olson, A. D.; Blackwell, B. R.; Maul, J. D.; Salice, C. J.; Anderson, T. A., Temporal Monitoring of Perfluorooctane Sulfonate Accumulation in Aquatic Biota Downstream of Historic Aqueous Film Forming Foam Use Areas. *Environ. Toxicol. Chem.* **2017**, *36*, (8), 2022-2029.

30. Martin, J. W.; Chan, K.; Mabury, S. A.; O'Brien, P. J., Bioactivation of

fluorotelomer alcohols in isolated rat hepatocytes. *Chemico-Biological Interactions* **2009**, *177*, (3), 196-203.

31. Phillips, M. M.; Dinglasan-Panlilio, M. J.; Mabury, S. A.; Solomon, K. R.; Sibley, P. K., Chronic toxicity of fluorotelomer acids to Daphnia magna and Chironomus dilutus. *Environ Toxicol Chem* **2010**, *29*, (5), 1123-31.

32. Phillips, M. M.; Dinglasan-Panlilio, M. J.; Mabury, S. A.; Solomon, K. R.; Sibley, P. K., Fluorotelomer acids are more toxic than perfluorinated acids. *Environ Sci Technol* **2007**, *41*, (20), 7159-63.

33. Kissa, E., *Fluorinated Surfactants and Repellants*. Second ed.; Marcel Dekker, Inc.: New York, 2001.

34. Fujii, Y.; Harada, K. H.; Koizumi, A., Occurrence of perfluorinated carboxylic acids (PFCAs) in personal care products and compounding agents. *Chemosphere* **2013**, *93*, (3), 538-544.

35. Liu, X. Y.; Guo, Z. S.; Folk, E. E.; Roache, N. F., Determination of fluorotelomer alcohols in selected consumer products and preliminary investigation of their fate in the indoor environment. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 81-86.

36. Herzke, D.; Olsson, E.; Posner, S., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in consumer products in Norway – A pilot study. *Chemosphere* **2012**, *88*, (8), 980-987.

37. Begley, T. H.; Hsu, W.; Noonan, G.; Diachenko, G., Migration of fluorochemical paper additives from food-contact paper into foods and food simulants. *Food Additives and Contaminants* **2008**, *25*, (3), 384-390.

38. Vestergren, R.; Cousins, I. T.; Trudel, D.; Wormuth, M.; Scheringer, M., Estimating the contribution of precursor compounds in consumer exposure to PFOS and PFOA. *Chemosphere* **2008**, *73*, (10), 1617-1624.

39. Schaider, L. A.; Balan, S. A.; Blum, A.; Andrews, D. Q.; Strynar, M. J.; Dickinson, M. E.; Lunderberg, D. M.; Lang, J. R.; Peaslee, G. F., Fluorinated Compounds in US Fast Food Packaging. *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2017**, *4*, (3), 105-111.

40. Ritter, E. E.; Dickinson, M. E.; Harron, J. P.; Lunderberg, D. M.; DeYoung, P. A.; Robel, A. E.; Field, J. A.; Peaslee, G. F., PIGE as a screening tool for Per- and polyfluorinated substances in papers and textiles. *Nucl. Instrum. Meth. B.* **2017**, 407, 47-54.

41. Vestergren, R.; Herzke, D.; Wang, T.; Cousins, I. T., Are imported consumer products an important diffuse source of PFASs to the Norwegian environment? *Environ. Pollut.* **2015**, *198*, 223-230.

42. Trier, X.; Granby, K.; Christensen, J. H., Polyfluorinated surfactants (PFS) in paper and board coatings for food packaging. *Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res.* **2011**, *18*, (7), 1108-1120.

43. Krafft, M. P.; Riess, J. G., Per- and polyfluorinated substances (PFASs): Environmental challenges. *Curr. Opin. Colloid In.* **2015**, *20*, (3), 192-212.

44. MIL-F-24385 QPL/QPD History for Type 6 AFFF; 2014.

45. MIL-F-24385 QPL/QPD History for Type 3 AFFF. 2014.

46. Mejia-Avendano, S.; Munoz, G.; Duy, S. V.; Desrosiers, M.; Benoit, P.; Sauve, S.; Liu, J. X., Novel Fluoroalkylated Surfactants in Soils Following Firefighting Foam Deployment During the Lac-Megantic Railway Accident. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (15), 8313-8323.

47. Korzeniowski, S. H., Buck, R. C., Kempisty, D.M., Pabon, M., *Fluorosurfactants in Firefighting Foams Past and Present*. CRC Press: 2018.

48. Vestergren, R.; Cousins, I. T., Tracking the Pathways of Human Exposure to Perfluorocarboxylates. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2009**, *43*, (15), 5565-5575.

49. U.S. Department of Defense Department of the Navy, Interim Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) Site Guidance for NAVFAC Remedial Project Managers (RPMs)/Septmber 2017 Update;

file:///C:/Users/robela/Downloads/US%20Navy%20PFAS%20GUIDANCE%20SEPT%2 02017.pdf, 2017.

50. California Water Boards State Water Resources Control Board, Perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and Perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS). In

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/PFOA_PFOS.html , 2019.

51. Appleman, T. D.; Dickenson, E. R. V.; Bellona, C.; Higgins, C. P., Nanofiltration and granular activated carbon treatment of perfluoroalkyl acids. *J. Hazard. Mater.* **2013**, *260*, 740-746.

52. Inyang, M.; Dickenson, E. R. V., The use of carbon adsorbents for the removal of perfluoroalkyl acids from potable reuse systems. *Chemosphere* **2017**, *184*, 168-175.

53. Ochoa-Herrera, V.; Sierra-Alvarez, R., Removal of perfluorinated surfactants by sorption onto granular activated carbon, zeolite and sludge. *Chemosphere* **2008**, *72*, (10), 1588-1593.

54. Senevirathna, S.; Tanaka, S.; Fujii, S.; Kunacheva, C.; Harada, H.; Ariyadasa, B.; Shivakoti, B. R., Adsorption of perfluorooctane sulfonate (n-PFOS) onto non ion-exchange polymers and granular activated carbon: Batch and column test. *Desalination* **2010**, *260*, (1-3), 29-33.

55. Senevirathna, S.; Tanaka, S.; Fujii, S.; Kunacheva, C.; Harada, H.; Shivakoti, B. R.; Okamoto, R., A comparative study of adsorption of perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) onto granular activated carbon, ion-exchange polymers and non-ion-exchange polymers. *Chemosphere* **2010**, *80*, (6), 647-651.

56. Watanabe, N.; Takemine, S.; Yamamoto, K.; Haga, Y.; Takata, M., Residual organic fluorinated compounds from thermal treatment of PFOA, PFHxA and PFOS adsorbed onto granular activated carbon (GAC). *J. Mater. Cycles Waste Manag.* **2016**, *18*, (4), 625-630.

57. Xiao, X.; Ulrich, B. A.; Chen, B. L.; Higgins, C. P., Sorption of Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs) Relevant to Aqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF)-Impacted Groundwater by Biochars and Activated Carbon. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (11), 6342-6351.

58. Yu, Q.; Zhang, R. Q.; Deng, S. B.; Huang, J.; Yu, G., Sorption of perfluorooctane sulfonate and perfluorooctanoate on activated carbons and resin: Kinetic and isotherm study. *Water Res.* **2009**, *43*, (4), 1150-1158.

59. Zaggia, A.; Conte, L.; Falletti, L.; Fant, M.; Chiorboli, A., Use of strong anion exchange resins for the removal of perfluoroalkylated substances from contaminated drinking water in batch and continuous pilot plants. *Water Res.* **2016**, *91*, 137-146. 60. Zhao, H. X.; Guan, Y.; Qu, B. C., PFCA uptake and translocation in dominant wheat species (Triticum aestivum L.). *International Journal of Phytoremediation* **2018**, *20*, (1), 68-74.

61. Franke, V.; McCleaf, P.; Lindegren, K.; Ahrens, L., Efficient removal of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in drinking water treatment: nanofiltration combined with active carbon or anion exchange. *Environmental Science Water Research & Technology* **2019**.

Chapter 2: Closing the Mass Balance of Fluorine for Papers and Textiles

Alix E Robel,^a Kristin Marshall,^a Margaret Dickinson,^b David Lunderberg, ^b Craig Butt,^c Graham Peaslee,^d Heather M. Stapleton,^c Jennifer A Field^{a*}

^{a,} Department of Environmental and Molecular Toxicology, 2750 Campus Way, Oregon State University, Corvallis, OR, 97331 ^b Science Center Rm 2106A, 35 E. 12th St., Holland, Michigan 49422-9000, peaslee@hope.edu ^c Nicholas School of the Environment, Duke University, Durham, North Carolina 27708 ^d Department of Physics, University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, IN 46556

*Corresponding Author

Abstract

A potential route of human exposure to per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) is contact with treated papers and textiles. Typically few PFASs, such as perfluorooctanesulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoate (PFOA), are measured on textiles and papers. To date, none of the measurements are placed into the context of total fluorine, in part, due to a lack of methods for total fluorine. The objectives of this study were to apply gas chromatography and liquid chromatography-tandem mass spectrometry) for the quantification of volatile and ionic PFASs, respectively, as well as the total oxidizable precursor (TOP) assay for the quantification of precursors and to place the data into the context of total fluorine as determined by particle-induced gamma ray emission (PIGE) spectroscopy. Eight papers and nine textiles were extracted with solvent (methanol or ethyl acetate) and analyzed by the four different analytical techniques. The molar sum of the PFASs obtained by GC-MS, LC-MS/MS and the TOP assay was compared to total fluorine (nmol F/cm²) by PIGE measured on the papers and textiles before and after extraction. Volatile and ionic PFASs accounted for 0-2.2% and 0-0.41%, respectively, of the total nmol F/cm² determined by PIGE. Unidentified precursors comprised 0.021-14% of the total nmol F/cm². The individual volatile, ionic PFASs, and precursors identified by TOP assay accounted for only a fraction $(\pm 16\%)$ of the total fluorine on papers and textiles. After extraction papers and textiles retained $64 \pm$ 28 to $110 \pm 30\%$ of the original nmol F/cm² as determined by PIGE analysis, indicating that the majority of fluorine remains associated with the papers and textiles even after solvent extraction.

Introduction

Due to their unique chemical properties, per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) are used in fire-fighting foams, manufacturing, coatings, and in consumer products.^{1, 2} PFASs are rapidly gaining attention in scientific literature due to the detection of select PFASs in humans³⁻⁵ environmental media,⁶⁻¹² and in remote locations.¹³⁻¹⁵ Until recently, the primary focus in the literature was on perfluorooctanesulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoate (PFOA), the only two forms that have US EPA health advisory values.¹⁶ However, attention is currently focused on identifying new PFASs in commerce^{17, 18} that may degrade to persistent perfluoroalkyl carboxylates (PFCAs) and other forms.^{17, 19} Recent reports indicate novel PFASs including ether sulfonates in municipal sludge,²⁰ short-chain perfluoroalkyl sulfonamides in fish,²¹ and cyclic sulfonates are in the Great Lakes.²²

There is growing evidence of a larger number of PFASs in human blood.^{4, 23, 24} Given their recent discovery, few of the newly-identified PFAS forms have any toxicological data. Human exposure to PFASs include inhalation of volatiles²⁵⁻²⁷ and ingestion of ionic PFASs^{26, 27} in homes, workplaces, and automobiles.^{27, 28} Consumer products such as carpets, papers, textiles, and plastics contain PFASs, but individual studies typically focus either on the volatile fluorotelomer alcohols (FTOHs) or on ionic PFASs including the C4-C14 PFCAs and only the even carbon-numbered perfluoroalkylsulfonates (C4, C6, and C8 PFSAs).²⁹⁻⁴³ Relatively fewer studies analyze both volatile and ionic PFAS^{12, 44-48} and some capture a larger array of individual PFASs including perfluoroalkyl

sulfonamides and perfluoroalkyl sulfonamidoethanols, phosphorus-containing PFASs, and fluorotelomer carboxylates.^{42, 49}

At present, it is difficult to determine if the individual measureable PFASs associated with consumer products have been identified or what fraction of total fluorine they comprise. Combustion ion chromatography is used to measure total fluorine in human blood,^{4, 23, 24, 50} and a total adsorbable fluorine assay has been applied to water.^{51, 52} Alternatively, the total oxidizable precursor (TOP) assay was developed to quantify precursors that have the potential to degrade to PFCAs or PFSAs, in urban runoff⁵³, groundwater and soil⁵⁴, and wastewater¹¹. Gruber et al. ⁵⁵ applied the TOP assay to geotextiles that are used on roofs and to create landscape barriers. However, to date, the mass of precursors determined by the TOP assay has not been compared to an independent measure of total fluorine.

A new technique, particle-induced gamma ray emission (PIGE) spectroscopy was recently described for the quantification of total fluorine on papers and textiles.⁵⁶ PIGE is a direct surface analysis technique that quantifies elemental fluorine on solids including materials⁵⁷ and more recently on papers and textiles.⁵⁶ Total fluorine determinations by PIGE do not require extraction, thus eliminating potential bias due to extraction and sample processing. The nmol F/cm² determined by PIGE likely represents a true measure of total fluorine on papers and textiles. To the best of our knowledge, there is a single study that compares total fluorine on food-contact papers and offers only limited data on only ionic PFASs but not on volatile PFASs or unknown precursors.⁵⁸ However, in order to close the mass balance on total fluorine on consumer products, data are needed not

only on ionic PFASs but also on volatile PFASs and precursors determined by the TOP assay.

The objective of this study was to characterize the individual volatile and ionic PFASs as well as precursors that contribute to the total fluorine in papers and textiles. PIGE was applied to eight papers and nine textiles before and after solvent extraction. The papers and textiles were extracted by ethyl acetate for three volatile FTOHs and Nethyl perfluorooctane sulfonamido ethanol (N-EtFOSE) for analysis by gaschromatography-mass spectrometry (GC-MS). Although none of the volatile species are actually *perfluorinated*, for brevity, volatile analytes will hereafter be referred to as volatiles PFASs. The papers and textiles were also extracted by methanol for the ionic PFASs by liquid-chromatography-mass spectrometry (LC-MS/MS). Eleven classes, totaling 73 individual ionic PFASs included the following: perfluoroalkyl carboxylates (C3-C17 PFCAs), saturated and unsaturated fluorotelomer carboxylates (n:2 FTCA C4, C6,C8, C10, n:2 FTUCAs C4, C6, C8, C10, n:3 FTCA C3,C5,C7,C9), perfluoroalkyl sulfonates (C2-C10 PFSAs), fluorotelomer sulfonates (C4,6,8,10 FtS), fluoroalkyl sulfonamido acetic acids (C4-C8 FASAA), N-methyl fluoroalkyl sulfonamide acetic acids (C4-C8 N-Me FASAA), N-ethyl fluoroalkyl sulfonamido acetic acids (C4-C8 N-EtFASAA), di-substituted perfluoroalkyl phosphinic acids (C4/C4 - C8/C8 PFPIA), disubstituted polyfluorinated phosphate esters (C4/C4-C10/C10 diPAP), fluorotelomer mercaptoalkyl phosphate esters (C6/C6-C10/C10 FTMAP), and N-ethyl perfluorooctanesulfonamido ethanol-based polyfluoroalkyl phosphate diester (C8/C8 SAmPAP). In addition, the TOP assay was used to quantify precursors on papers and textiles.⁵⁴ PIGE was applied to the papers and textiles before and after methanol

extraction. Mass balance for papers and textiles was determined by comparing the sum of individual PFASs by GC-MS and LC-MS/MS and precursors by the TOP assay to total fluorine as measured by PIGE before and after solvent extraction.

Experimental Section

Standards and reagents

All reagents used for GC-MS and LC-MS/MS analysis are described in the Supporting Information (SI). For GC-MS, all native and mass-labeled standards were purchased from Wellington Laboratories (Guelph, ON, Canada). For LC-MS/MS, the native and mass-labelled standards information was the same as those used in Allred et al. with the following exceptions: 4:2, 6:2, and 8:2 FtS, EtFOSAA, MeFOSAA, 6:2 & 8:2 diPAP and mass labeled 6:2 FtS, d3-MeFOSAA, and d5-EtFOSAA, which were donated by Dr. Christopher Higgins at Colorado School of Mines.⁵⁹ For the full list of GC-MS and LC-MS/MS analytes and acronyms, see Table 2.3 and 2.4, respectively, in the SI.

Sample Collection and Storage

The papers and textiles selected for this study were samples of convenience that came from a large set of samples collected by the Washington Department of Ecology in 2015. Trip blanks consisted of copy paper placed in a quart-sized plastic bag and transported along with samples during each of the six sampling events. Trip blanks have < LOD for volatile analytes, precursors by the TOP assay, and by PIGE. All six trip blanks contained > LOQ levels of SAMPAP but all other ionic PFASs were < LOD.

Of the eight papers selected for this study, two were new, non-food related paper products, and the remaining six were new, unused food-contact materials (Table 2.1). Paper 8 was a popcorn bag, and the remaining food contact papers were either food wrappers from fast-food establishments, or from a café. Of the nine textiles, five were from outwear (e.g. jackets, hats), two were from children's clothing, one was from a pillowcase, and one was from a used office chair (Table 2.1).

All samples were cut from the original material using methanol-rinsed scissors and distributed into two different re-sealable plastic bags. All samples, except Textile 9, were shipped to Oregon State University (OSU) or Hope College (Holland, MI). A subset of all samples received by OSU were shipped to Duke University (Durham, NC) for GC-MS analysis. All samples, at all three locations, were stored at room temperature until analysis.

Volatile Extraction and Analysis by GC-MS

At Duke University, 2 x 2 cm squares of material were cut into nine smaller pieces using acetone-rinsed scissors. All pieces were placed into a glass test tube (VWR, Radnor, PA) together with 25 ng of each M-6:2, 8:2, 10:2 FTOH and N-EtFOSE (Table 2.3). Five mL of ethyl acetate were added, vortexed briefly, and then sonicated for 15 min. The vial was then centrifuged for five min at 4000 g and the supernatant was transferred to a clean glass test tube, and the process was repeated one additional time. The combined extracts were blown down under N₂ gas in a 30 °C water bath to 1 mL. The extract was then transferred to a 2 mL autosampler vial for analysis. All extracts were analyzed for three FTOHS and N-EtFOSE using GC-MS as described by Butt et al., 2010.⁶⁰ The experiments conducted to determine the performance of this method for the present study are described in the SI.

Extraction for Individual Ionic PFASs

Once received at OSU, each material sample was cut using methanol-rinsed scissors into pieces smaller than 2 x 2 cm² and that weighed 0.3 ± 0.01 g. It was necessary to measure the area and to weigh the papers and textiles due to differences in density. This information was then used to convert units of concentration (ng/g) to ug/m².

Sample pieces were then placed into a 15 mL HDPE centrifuge tube (VWR, Radnor, PA). Papers and textiles were extracted by adding 3.3 mL of methanol, heated to $60-65 \, {}^{\circ}$ C, shaken on a wrist-action shaker at 10° of rotation (Burrell, Model 75, Pittsburg, PA) for 10 min, and centrifuged (Eppendorf, model 5810R, Hauppauge, NY) at 2808 g for 10 min at room temperature. The supernatant was poured into a secondary centrifuge tube, and the process was repeated two additional times. The optimal ratio of solvent volume to mass of paper and textile was selected as that ratio that gave the highest precision across both paper and textiles while minimizing sample size and waste (Table 2.7). Data from preliminary experiments indicated that three rounds of methanol extraction at an optimized ratio of 0.3 g paper or textile to 3.33 mL methanol per round of extraction removed >93% of individual extractable PFASs (Table 2.6). The extracted paper or textile was then frozen, air-dried for one week, and shipped to Hope College for post-extraction PIGE analysis. The extracts were also frozen overnight at -20 $\,^{\circ}$ C prior to analysis to precipitate any remaining particles. Extracts were then centrifuged for an additional 10 min at 2808 g. Supernatant was poured into a 10 mL-volumetric flask and brought to volume with additional methanol to 10 mL. Samples were kept frozen at - 20^{0} C until analysis. The day of analysis, aliquots (60 µL) were spiked with 0.72 ng of all mass-labeled internal standards and then diluted to a final volume of 1.2 mL with methanol.

Analysis by LC-MS/MS (Individual PFASs and TOP Assay)

An Agilent 1100 series HPLC was fitted with two zirconium modified diol (Zrdiol) guard columns (Agilent, Santa Clara, CA) and a Zorbax Eclipse Plus C18 (Agilent) that was coupled to a Quattro Premier MS/MS system (Waters Corporation, Milford, MA). Operational parameters for the HPLC and for the mass spectrometer can be found in Allred et al.⁵⁹ except that the divert valve on the mass spectrometer changed to divert LC solvents to waste for the first 6 min and after 32 min, and the extractor cone was set at 4V (Table 2.4). Analyte identification and quantification were practiced as described in Allred et al.⁵⁹

Each analytical sequence contained process blanks, which consisted of the extraction described above but with no sample present. All process blanks were spiked with 0.72 ng internal standard before extraction. All process blanks and solvent blanks were expected to fall below the limit of quantification (LOQ). Each analytical sequence contained a 7-point calibration curve (5 ng/L - 10,000 ng/L). If quantification of an analyte fell outside of the calibration curve, the sample was diluted further and

reanalyzed. Sequences also contained solvent blanks, which consisted of methanol for LC-MS/MS analysis.

The data quality tiers used in this manuscript are defined in Backe et al.⁵⁹ with slight modifications. The first confidence group is quantitative (Qn), which contains analytes for which authentic analytical and internal standards were available. Semi-quantitative (Sq) analytes were those that had reference materials (e.g., donated reference materials) but did not have matched internal standards. The third group was classified as qualitative (Ql), and was assigned to those analytes whose presence were extrapolated from known homologous series or for those analytes for which there are no authentic commercial standards or reference standards (i.e. 6:2-10:2 FTMAP class, 8:2/10:2-10:2 diPAPs).

In order to compute whole method recovery and precision, one paper and one textile, previously determined to have individual PFASs less than the limit of detection (<LOD), were selected. Fourteen individual 0.3 ± 0.01 g portions were cut and placed into separate 15 mL centrifuge vials. The first n=4 replicates were spiked to give an equivalent of 8.3 ng/g of all Qn and Sq analytes (Table 2.4), and used to compute the accuracy (% recovery) and precision (% RSD) of the whole method. The remaining ten replicates were overspiked to give a range of 0.83-17 ng/g for each Qn and Sq standard for the calculation of the whole method LOD and LOQ. All 14 samples were extracted using the methanolic extraction method outlined above. Whole method LODs were calculated using the same methodology as Backe, 2013.⁶¹ Briefly, a 1/X normalized weighted regression was used to calculate the LOD (3.3xresidual standard deviation-y-

intercept/slope).^{61, 62} Whole method LOQs were determined to be 3.3x the determined LOD.

TOP Assay

The methanolic extracts generated for individual PFAS analysis by LC-MS/MS were also used for the TOP assay. The TOP assay was performed under the condition of Houtz et al.⁵⁴ with several major alterations. An aliquot (60 µL) of the methanolic extract was added to a new 15 mL centrifuge-tube and blown to dryness under nitrogen gas. To the dry vial, 3 mL of reaction solution (60 mM potassium persulfate, 125 mM sodium hydroxide in water)⁵³ were added and vortexed. The vial was then placed in a water bath heated to 85-90 °C for 6 h. After reaction, the sample was frozen at -20 °C until analysis. For analysis, hydrochloric acid was added to bring the solution to pH 2 and 0.72 ng of all mass labeled internal standards were added (Table 2.4). Preliminary experiments confirmed there was no difference between freezing the sample at pH 2 and freezing it in basic reaction solution before analysis. Micro liquid-liquid extraction was then carried out under conditions described in Allred, 2014.⁵⁹ Briefly, the samples were extracted in triplicate with 10:90 2,2,2-trifluoroethanol in ethyl acetate for a total extract volume of 1 mL, and then 200 µL of methanol was added for a final volume of 1.2 mL. All analytical sequences containing samples for TOP assay included solvent blanks consisting of ethyl acetate/2,2,2-trifluoroethanol/methanol spiked with 0.72 ng of all mass labeled internal standards. All extracts were analyzed by LC-MS/MS as described above.

In order to determine the accuracy of the TOP assay, separate experiments were conducted with individual polyfluorinated precursors, including 6:6PFPi, FOUEA, 8:2
diPAP, FHUEA, 6:2 FtS, 6:2 diPAP, and SAmPaP. The TOP assay, as described above, was conducted on separate vials, each spiked to give 2,000 ng/L in water of each single precursor. In addition, a mixture comprised of all Qn and Ql analytes was spiked onto blank paper (Paper2) and analyzed by the TOP assay. The accuracy of the TOP assay was determined as the percent mass of precursors recovered. To treat the TOP assay data, the nmol F/cm² of precursors were calculated by Equation 1. First, the concentrations of individual ionic PFASs measured by LC-MS/MS in extracts before oxidation were converted to nmol F/cm² and summed. That value was then subtracted from the total nmol F/cm² of PFCAs and PFSAs formed after oxidation (Equation 1).

Precursors (nmol F/cm²) = Σ (PFCAs + PFSAs)_{after TOP Assay}- Σ (Individual PFASs)_{before TOP Assay} Equation 1

The experiments performed to determine the accuracy and precision of the TOP assay for papers and textiles are described in detail in the SI. The LODs and LOQs of PFCAs in TOP assay samples were determined from a set of preliminary experiment (data not shown) and found to be equivalent to those determined for the individual ionic PFCAs and PFSAs on papers and textiles.

Particle-Induced Gamma Ray Emission (PIGE) Spectroscopy

Paper and textile samples were cut, using methanol rinsed scissors, to pieces roughly 2 x 2 cm and mounted using clear adhesive tape to a stainless steel target ladder frame so the 1 x 1 cm hole for the analysis was obstructed only by the sample. In the event of the paper or textile was exposed to solvent, the material was air-dried before being cut and mounted. For thicker samples or dimensionality larger than the penetration depth (0.1mm), two samples were mounted in front and back orientations. The sample side with the higher fluorine signature, if present, was evaluated for quantification. Total fluorine nmol F/cm²was determined from external calibration curves created by coating a paper and a textile in a PFOA stock solution.⁵⁶ The precision of PIGE, as indicated by RSD, is $\pm 12\%$ with a LOD of 13 nmol F/cm² for papers and 18-45 nmol F/cm² for fabrics. The LOQ is 42 nmol F/cm² for papers and ranged from 59 - 150 nmol F/cm² for fabrics of varying thicknesses.

Results and Discussion

Concentrations for volatile PFAS (Table 2.9) and ionic PFAS (Table 2.10) are reported in units of ug/m² in order to facilitate comparison of the data obtained in this study to that of others.^{40, 48} To the best of our knowledge, there are no reports of precursors as determined by the TOP assay. Lastly in order to compare the concentrations of individual PFASs and precursors to that determined by PIGE, all units are reported in units of nmol F/cm² (Table 2.1).

Volatiles by GC/MS

Papers. Two of the papers (Papers 3 and 8), were found to be <LOQ for the volatile PFASs (Table 2.9). Conversely, six of the eight papers had one or more FTOHs that ranged from 3.0 to 30 ug/m², which is consistent with values found by others.^{31, 45-48} Overall, 8:2 FTOH was the most frequently detected, as reported by Liu et al.³⁰ The only other volatile PFAS, N-EtFOSE, was not present above the LOD in any of the papers.

Textiles. Of the nine textiles, all were found to have concentrations >LOQ for one or more of the four volatile PFASs (Table 2.1). The concentrations were significantly higher than those of the papers, and ranged from 2.1 to 14,000 ug/m² (Table 2.9). The 8:2 FTOH was the dominant FTOH for Textiles 1-7; however, 6:2 FTOH was the most abundant in Textile 8. Long-chain 8:2 and 10:2 FTOHs are present on six out of eight papers and on all nine textiles purchased in 2015. The EPA's voluntary C8 Stewardship program targeted a 95% reduction in PFOA and PFOA precursors by 2015, but only 8 participating companies signed onto the voluntary agreement.⁶³ It is difficult to assess compliance with the C8 Stewardship Program from this limited sample set and because the manufacturers of surface treatments are not known.

Only Textile 9 gave measurable concentration of N-EtFOSE. To the best of our knowledge, N-EtFOSE is a target analyte in select studies, but has not been reported above the LOD/LOQ. ^{48, 49} Textile 9 had volatile N-EtFOSE and FTOHs, which indicates treatment of the textile with a mixture of ECF- and telomer-based chemistries. The absence of N-EtFOSE on the newer textiles is consistent with the phase-out of 3M C8-based chemistry between 2000-2002⁶⁴ and indicates no use of N-EtFOSE from other sources. Even though Textile 9 was manufactured 28 years ago in 1988, volatile PFASs persist on textiles and potentially act as sources of human exposure for decades in indoor environments. The volatile PFASs may occur as residuals from the manufacturing process¹⁷ or from physical or biological degradation of precursors on the textile. The likelihood of biodegradation on an office chair under indoor environment conditions is low; however, there are no data on the degradation of N-EtFOSE on consumer products

under indoor conditions. It is also possible that textiles act as passive samplers of volatile and particulate PFASs from other sources.

Ionic Individual PFASs by LC-MS/MS

When the concentrations of individual ionic PFASs (ug/m^2) were converted to nmol F/cm² and summed, ionic PFASs were significantly lower than those of the volatile PFASs on paper and textiles, with the exception of Paper 8 (Table 2.1).

Papers. Three of the eight papers (Papers 1,3, and 4) had concentrations <LOD for all 73 ionic PFASs (Table 2.9). On the remaining five papers, only five classes (PFCAs, FTUCAs, FTCAs, diPAPs, SAmPAP) comprised of 10 individual ionic PFASs were present (Table 2.9). Overall, the frequency of detection for individual ionic PFASs was very low (Table 2.9) and the concentrations were also low (0.12-19ug/m²; Table 2.9 and Table2.1). Although, no papers gave PFOS or PFOA >LOD, C8-based 6:2/8:2; 8:2/10:2; 10:2 diPAPs or SAmPAP (Table 2.9) were present on Papers 2 and 7 (food contact papers with recycled content), and 6 (Table 2.1). Although others have found diPAPs,^{38, 39, 65} to the best of our knowledge this is the first report of a homologous series consisting of five diPAPs (Table 2.9). Two papers (Papers 2 and 7) contained SAmPAP only, and are the only two papers with recycled content.

Textiles. Concentrations of individual PFASs ($0.061-190 \text{ ug/m}^2$) on textiles were higher than those on papers (Table 2.9), but lower than those of volatile PFASs on both paper and textiles (Table 2.1). Of the nine textiles analyzed, two were <LOQ for ionic PFASs (Paper 1 and 2). For Textiles 3-8, PFCAs and FTCAs were frequently detected (Table 2.9). This is the second report of short-chained (\leq C6) fluorotelomer saturated and

unsaturated carboxylates (Table 2.9) on paper⁴² and the first for textiles. The quantification of FTCAs and FTUCAs in this study indicate that they are not only intermediate products as a result of degradation,⁶⁶ but are also available on consumer goods in the current market. PFOA was detected in two textiles, in contrast to papers for which no PFOA was detected above the LOD. PFOS itself was present in two textiles in Papers 6 and 9 (Table 2.9).

The oldest Textile 9 from 1988, had the greatest diversity of individual volatile and ionic (32 total) PFASs with chain-lengths up to C18 (Table 2.9). For example, Textile 9 gave the first reported quantifiable concentrations of PFPrS (the C3 sulfonate); 8:2 FtS; C6, C7, C8 MeFASAAs; and the C8 EtFOSAA. While N-EtFOSAA may be due to the 3M product FC129,⁶⁷ there is no documented use of N-MeFASAAs as a product in commerce. The two families, MeFASAAs and EtFASAAs, are typically reported as degradation products of N-ethyl and N-methyl perfluoroalkyl sulfonamido ethanols.⁶⁸ Given the low potential for the biodegradation of the sulfonamide ethanols to the sulfonamide acetic acids under office conditions, we hypothesize that the MeFASAAs were used as products or occurred as impurities in 3M formulations.

The PFCAs on Textile 9 were branched and linear, as was PFOS (Figure 2.2), which is consistent with the finding of N-EtFOSE on this textile and the idea that ECFbased treatment was applied to this textile. In contrast, PFCAs in the other newer papers and textiles were only linear, indicating treatment with fluorotelomer-based chemistry.

TOP Assay

The recovery of individual precursor from aqueous solution was 0-45 % (Table 2.8). An overall recovery of 57 % \pm 4.7 % was obtained for the mixture spiked onto paper (data not shown). The higher recovery (57%) obtained for PFASs in the presence of material may be due to competition by the material for oxidant. Others report variable and low recovery of precursor from the TOP assay.^{9, 53, 69} Precision, represented by % RSD about the reported nmol F/cm² was 11 % for papers and 7.8 % for textiles. Regardless, it was assumed that precursors on a paper or textile were converted quantitatively upon oxidation.

While the TOP assay has relatively good precision, the accuracy is poor, and ultimately results in a bias low for quantification of precursors. Preliminary experiments using 6:2 and 8:2 FTOH spiked into a dry centrifuge tube and taken to dryness, did not give any PFCA production < LOD. Paper 4 was <LOQ for individual ionic PFASs and for precursors by the TOP assay, but had quantifiable levels of 8:2 FTOH (Table 2.1, Table 2.9, 2.10). Given the need to remove all methanol to avoid oxidant consumption, any volatile precursors not captured by GC-MS will not be captured by the TOP assay, and are not included in Equation 1 for the calculation of precursor concentrations. Additionally, of the known individual precursors poor recovery is achieved (Table 2.2, Table 2.8). For example, Paper 2 which had quantifiable levels of individual ionic PFASs (Table 2.9) but <LOQ after the TOP assay (Table 2.2, Table 2.10). For these reasons, precursor concentrations estimated by the TOP assay are likely biased low and < LOQ may represent a false negative.

However, in order to ensure that the precursors determined by TOP assay are representative of only unknown precursors all individual ionic PFASs measured are subtracted from those quantified after TOP assay (Equation 1). In order to compute precursor concentrations (Table 2.10) by Equation 1, the concentration of all measured individual precursors that can be oxidized, such as 6:2 diPAP (Table 2.9), are subtracted from the total PFCAs and PFSAs measured after oxidation. It is important to note that the unknown precursors are only representative of those loosely bound to the surface application of a paper or textiles because they are dislodged in methanol. Methanol is not used as a food simulant,⁷⁰ but could represent the potentially available fraction available for PFAS exposure. Additionally, TOP assay performed on food simulants needs to be researched further.

Papers. No precursors, determined as the net production of PFCAs and PFSAs (Σ PFASs nmol F/cm²) by the TOP assay, were > LOQ for two of the eight papers (Table 2.10). The other six papers gave precursor concentrations ranging from 0.0046-7.8 nmol F/cm² (Table 2.10). The precursor concentrations, on a nmol F/cm² basis, were greater than the sum individual ionic PFASs, except for Paper 2 (Table 2.1). The precursor concentrations were both higher and lower than those of the volatile concentrations, and no clear trend or correlation could be identified.

When applied to papers, oxidation produced a homologous series (C3-C9) of PFCAs with C4 as the most abundant (Table 2.10, Figure 2.3a). Individual C6- and C8-based precursors oxidized for this study (Table 2.8) as well as by Houtz et al. 2012⁵⁴ yield C4-C9 PFCAs upon oxidation. Therefore, precursors on paper give a PFCA distribution after oxidation that is consistent with C6- and C8-based precursors. The PFCAs generated upon oxidation were only linear (data not shown). Linear PFCAs before and after

oxidation, FTOHs, and the absence of ECF-based PFASs indicates that the papers purchased in 2015 were only treated with fluorotelomer-based chemicals.

Textiles. Of the nine textiles, all had quantifiable precursors, ranging from 0.040-73 nmol F/cm² (Table 2.10). Precursor concentrations were similar for papers and textiles with the exception of Textile 9 (Table 2.1). Textiles gave broader distributions of PFCAs (C4-C18) both before and upon oxidation than did papers (C4-C9)(Figure 2.3). In the case of Textile 5 and 7, PFCAS up to C18 (PFOcDA) were produced upon oxidation, which indicates precursors with chain lengths significantly longer than C8. Thus, not all producers of textile treatments are compliant with the C8 Stewardship Program.⁶⁰ Similar to papers, the concentrations of the precursors identified by TOP assay were both higher and lower than those of the volatile PFASs, and no clear correlation between the two could be made.

Textiles 1-8 produced PFCAs upon oxidation that were only linear, while Textile 9, manufactured in 1988, gave branched and linear PFCAs (Figure 2.2). In addition, Textile 9 gave a net increase in PFOS upon oxidation, indicating the presence of a precursor that oxidized to PFOS. No known precursor have yet been observed to produce PFOS or any other PFSA in this or any other study.^{11, 41, 53, 54, 69} Textile 9 was clearly treated with ECF-based chemistries as indicated earlier. The concentration of unknown precursors on Textile 9 was the greater than any other paper or textiles purchased in 2015 (Table 2.1).

PIGE

Papers and Textiles. Papers tended either to be blank (Papers 1-4) or highly fluorinated (61-440 nmolF/cm²) while all the textiles were fluorinated (370-2400 nmolF/cm²) (Table 2). Total fluorine concentrations were converted to % fluorine by weight. Papers ranged from 0.040-0.088 wt% fluorine, while textiles ranged from 0.027-0.38 wt% fluorine. The wt% values are low relative to those reported by Kissa² for papers (1.0-1.5 wt %) and fabrics (2-3 wt %) but the reported values were given for a specific example, fluoroalkyl phosphates, and do not represent the wt% of fluorine alone. Total fluorine concentrations for papers were significantly lower than those for textiles; however, Ritter et al report cases where the total fluorine concentrations on papers exceed those on textile.⁵⁶ No statistically-significant correlations were found between volatile PFASs, ionic PFASs, precursors, and total fluorine by PIGE (data not shown).

The amount of fluorine remaining on the surface of paper or textiles was determined by PIGE after methanol extraction (Table 2.2). Papers 1-4 remained <LOD for total fluorine, while Papers 6-8 and all textiles gave total fluorine concentrations that was not statistically different from the original total fluorine concentrations (Table 2.2). One paper, Paper 5, gave a total fluorine concentration after solvent extraction that was significantly higher than the original concentration prior to extraction. The reason for this apparent increase after extraction is unknown; Ritter et al. described the accuracy and precision of PIGE in greater detail.⁵⁶ The lack of a significant decrease in total fluorine after methanol extraction indicates that fluorinated polymeric treatments are not extracted by methanol. In contrast, methanol removes the less strongly bound monomeric PFASs. Monomeric PFASs are described by Prevedourus et al.⁷¹ as residual monomers of unreacted raw materials (e.g, FTOHs), residual by-products of reactions, and as unintended manufacturing by-products (e.g., PFCAs), which are soluble in solvent such as methanol and ethyl acetate.

Closing the mass balance on fluorine

In order to determine if mass balance was achieved, we considered the original PIGE value as the total fluorine concentration for each paper and textile. Volatile PFASs only accounted for 0-2.2% of the total fluorine (Table 2.1 and 2.2). Ionic PFASs only accounted for 0-0.41% of total fluorine (Table 2.1 and 2.2). Unknown precursors accounted for 0.012-1.9% of the total fluorine of papers and textiles purchased in 2015 (Table 2.1 and 2.2). In contrast, unknown precursors accounted for a larger fraction (14%) of the total fluorine on Textile 9 from 1988 (Table 2.1 and 2.2).

For simplicity, the concentrations of volatile PFASs, ionic PFASs, and precursors were summed and accounted for a maximum of 16% total fluorine (Table 2.2). As stated earlier, the total fluorine remaining after extraction was not significantly different from the original concentration (Table 2.2).

To evaluate mass balance, the summed concentrations of volatile and ionic PFASs and precursors were added to the total fluorine after extraction (Equation 2). Mass balances ranged from 64 ± 28 % to 110 ± 30 %, with the exception of Paper 5 which had a higher value for total fluorine after solvent extraction than before.

Mass balance (%) = $\frac{\text{(Volatile PFASs+Ionic PFASs+Precursors+Total Fluorine^{after extraction})}}{\text{Total Fluorine}^{\text{before extraction}}}*100$

Equation 2

Clearly, the residual PFASs captured as volatile, ionic, and precursor are very small (within the error bounds of PIGE before and after extraction) compared to the large fraction of total fluorine that is more strongly bound to papers and textiles. While Textile 9 is not the highest measurement of total fluorine by PIGE, it has a higher relative concentration of PFASs (volatile, ionic, and precursors) that are potentially available for human exposure. The increase in solvent extractable PFASs could be a result in older surface chemistry applications being less efficiently bound to the surface of the material, the material acting as a passive sampler, or the weakening of the surface application over time.

Implications

Given the limited number of analytes in the present study, the concentration of volatile PFASs on papers and textiles is likely biased low. The presence of additional volatile PFASs should be investigated by non-target analysis, which is not yet reported in the literature. While the number of ionic PFASs analyzed by LC-MS/MS for this study is greater than typically reported, the identification of additional PFASs was attempted using non-target screening by LC quadrupole time of flight; however, this effort did not reveal any additional PFASs (data not shown). The TOP assay data clearly indicates that there are additional fluorinated substances that are not yet captured as individual PFASs. Further analytical investigations are needed to identify the PFASs in the precursor fraction.

A higher fraction of total fluorine remained of the surface of newer papers and textiles after extraction, while the older textile had a higher fraction of extractable PFASs, which suggests that either newer application techniques are more efficient or older articles have a higher fraction of monomers that may become mobile. As a result, older materials may be a greater potential source of exposure to PFASs than are newer papers and textiles. Additional research is needed on the release of PFASs from older papers and textiles and how the releases inform human exposure. For example, mass balances on the total fluorine using food simulants should be performed because solvent extraction is not a proxy for food simulants. The potential removal of unknown precursors from foodcontact papers by food simulants is simply unknown. The vast majority of the total fluorine that remained on papers and textiles after extraction represents not only the fraction that remains with articles over their useful lifetimes but that enter landfills.

Acknowledgements

We would like to thank Alex Stone (Washington Department of Ecology), Chris Higgins and Simon Roberts (Colorado School of Mines), Tom Webster (Department of Environmental Health Boston School of Public Health), McKay Allred, and Justin Rewerts (Oregon State University) for assistance in this project. This project was supported by the Washington Department of Ecology and, in part, by the National Science Foundation (PHY-1613188 and PHY – 1306074), with additional support from the Beckman Foundation and the Goldwater Foundation.



Figure 2.1 Sample processing and analysis workflow.



Figure 2.2 Chromatographic depiction of select branched and linear PFCAs and PFOS

before (A) and after (B) oxidation by TOP assay.



Figure 2.3 Distribution of % average contribution normalized after TOP Assay for a) eight papers and b) nine textiles.

			Σ Volatile		
			PFASs (nmol	Σ Ionic PFASs	Σ Precursors
		Material Type	F/cm ²)	(nmol F/cm ²)	(nmol F/cm ²)
	1	FC	0.16 ± 0.004	<loq< td=""><td>0.011 ± 0.001</td></loq<>	0.011 ± 0.001
	2	Copy Paper ^b	0.013 ± 0.001	0.0011 ± 0.0002	<loq< td=""></loq<>
	3	FC	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.0046 ± 0.0006</td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.0046 ± 0.0006</td></loq<>	0.0046 ± 0.0006
rs	4	Gift Bag	0.033 ± 0.001	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""></loq<>
Pape	5	FC	0.18 ± 0.003	0.0013 ± 0.0001	0.53 ± 0.06
	6	FC	0.055 ± 0.002	0.0062 ± 0.0004	0.36 ± 0.04
	7	FC^{b}	0.13 ± 0.004	0.0004 ± 0.0002	0.0013 ± 0.0002
	8	Popcorn bag	<loq< td=""><td>0.14 ± 0.01</td><td>7.8 ± 0.9</td></loq<>	0.14 ± 0.01	7.8 ± 0.9
	1	Children's Fabric	0.40 ± 0.01	<loq< td=""><td>0.040 ± 0.003</td></loq<>	0.040 ± 0.003
	2	Children's Fabric	0.66 ± 0.19	<loq< td=""><td>0.58 ± 0.05</td></loq<>	0.58 ± 0.05
	3	Jacket	6.7 ± 0.2	0.0030 ± 0.0001	1.7 ± 0.1
	4	Jacket	0.89 ± 0.03	0.0093 ± 0.0005	0.18 ± 0.01
les	5	Jacket	0.29 ± 0.01	0.0032 ± 0.0003	0.27 ± 0.02
Textil	6	Hat	0.082 ± 0.003	0.0048 ± 0.0002	0.15 ± 0.01
	7	Pillowcase	6.1 ± 0.2	0.025 ± 0.002	0.59 ± 0.05
	8	Jacket	53 ± 1	0.19 ± 0.01	0.28 ± 0.04
		Office	11 ± 0.1	2.1 ± 0.1	73 ± 6
	9	Upholstery			

Table 2.1 Total nmol F/cm ² for volatile PFASs, ionic individual PFASs, and precursor	ſS
from the TOP assay. ^a	

^a propagated standard error computed as % RSD associated with analyte multiplied by the experimentally-derived concentration ^bcontains post-consumer recycled content

FC=food contact

LOQ = Limits of quantification

Table 2.2 The sum of volatile, ionic, and total F on solvent extracted paper/textile, total

 fluorine by PIGE and the % of mass balance accounted for in comparison to total fluorine

 by PIGE.

		Material Type	PIGE (nmol F/cm ²) ^b	The sum of volatile PFASs, ionic PFASs, and precursors (nmol F/cm ²) ^a	Total fluorine remaining on material (nmol F/cm ²) ^b	Accounted for mass (%) ^{c,d}
	1	FC	<lod< td=""><td>0.17 ± 0.004</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC</td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.17 ± 0.004	<lod< td=""><td>NC</td></lod<>	NC
	2	Copy Paper ^e	<lod< td=""><td>0.014 ± 0.001</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC</td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.014 ± 0.001	<lod< td=""><td>NC</td></lod<>	NC
	3	FC	<lod< td=""><td>0.0046 ± 0.0006</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC</td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.0046 ± 0.0006	<lod< td=""><td>NC</td></lod<>	NC
S	4	Gift Bag	<lod< td=""><td>0.033 ± 0.001</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC</td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.033 ± 0.001	<lod< td=""><td>NC</td></lod<>	NC
Papers	5	FC	61 ± 14	0.71 ± 0.06	110 ± 17	180 ± 28
	6	FC	180 ± 27	0.42 ± 0.04	180 ± 25	99 ± 21
	7	FC ^e	430 ± 49	0.13 ± 0.004	330 ± 40	77 ± 17
	8	Popcorn bag	420 ± 49	7.9 ± 0.9	460 ± 52	110 ± 16
	1	Children's Fabric	<loq< td=""><td>0.44 ± 0.01</td><td><loq< td=""><td>NC</td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.44 ± 0.01	<loq< td=""><td>NC</td></loq<>	NC
	2	Children's Fabric	530 ± 98	1.2 ± 0.2	340 ± 66	64 ± 28
	3	Jacket	1100 ± 250	8.4 ± 0.2	920 ± 210	84 ± 32
	4	Jacket	840 ± 170	1.1 ± 0.03	680 ± 140	81 ± 29
xtiles	5	Jacket	370 ± 79	0.56 ± 0.02	410 ± 88	110 ± 30
Te	6	Hat	<loq< td=""><td>0.24 ± 0.01</td><td><loq< td=""><td>NC</td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.24 ± 0.01	<loq< td=""><td>NC</td></loq<>	NC
	7	Pillowcase	1600 ± 290	6.7 ± 0.2	1300 ± 250	82 ± 27
	8	Jacket	2400 ± 420	53 ± 1	2300 ± 410	98 ± 25
	9	Office Upholstery	520 ± 92	86 ± 6	480 ± 83	100 ± 26

^a propagated standard error for the sum of ionic, volatile, and precursors data shown in Table 2.1

^b propagated error for PIGE as discussed in Ritter et al. (2016)

^c propagated error for data in column 1-3 ^dcomputed as (Column 1+ 2)/Column 3)*100 ^econtains post consumer recycled content. FC=food contact **Table 2.2 (Continued)** Limits of quantification (LOQ) for papers = 43 nmol F/cm and 150 nmol F/cm

NC = not computed

Literature Cited

1. Buck, R.; Franklin, J.; Berger, U.; Conder, J.; Cousins, I.; Voogt, P. d.; Jensen, A.; Kannan, K.; Mabury, S.; Leeuwen, S. v., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in the environment: terminology, classifications, and origins. *Integr Environ Assess Man* **2011**, *7*, 513.

2. Kissa, E., *Fluorinated Surfactants and Repellants*. Second ed.; Marcel Dekker, Inc.: New York, 2001.

3. De Silva, A. O.; Mabury, S. A., Isomer distribution of perfluorocarboxylates in human blood: Potential correlation to source. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2006**, *40*, (9), 2903-2909.

4. Yeung, L. W. Y.; Miyake, Y.; Taniyasu, S.; Wang, Y.; Yu, H. X.; So, M. K.; Jiang, G. B.; Wu, Y. N.; Li, J. G.; Giesy, J. P.; Yamashita, N.; Lam, P. K. S., Perfluorinated Compounds and Total and Extractable Organic Fluorine in Human Blood Samples from China. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2008**, *42*, (21), 8140-8145.

5. Perez, F.; Nadal, M.; Navarro-Ortega, A.; Fabrega, F.; Domingo, J. L.; Barcelo, D.; Farre, M., Accumulation of perfluoroalkyl substances in human tissues. *Environ. Int.* **2013**, *59*, 354-362.

6. Ahrens, L.; Felizeter, S.; Sturm, R.; Xie, Z. Y.; Ebinghaus, R., Polyfluorinated compounds in waste water treatment plant effluents and surface waters along the River Elbe, Germany. *Mar. Pollut. Bull.* **2009**, *58*, (9), 1326-1333.

7. Allred, B.; Lang, J.; Barlaz, M.; Field, J., Physical and biological release of polyand perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) from municipal solid waste in anaerobic model landfill reactors. *Environ Sci Technol* **2015**, *49*, 7648-7656.

8. Benskin, J. P.; Li, B.; Ikonomou, M. G.; Grace, J. R.; Li, L. Y., Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Landfill Leachate: Patterns, Time Trends, and Sources. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (21), 11532-11540.

9. Boiteux, V.; Bach, C.; Sagres, V.; Hemard, J.; Colin, A.; Rosin, C.; Munoz, J. F.; Dauchy, X., Analysis of 29 per- and polyfluorinated compounds in water, sediment, soil and sludge by liquid chromatography-tandem mass spectrometry. *Int. J. Environ. Anal. Chem.* **2016**, *96*, (8), 705-728.

10. Boulanger, B.; Vargo, J.; Schnoor, J.; Hornbuckle, K., Detection of perfluorooctane surfactants in Great Lakes water. *Environ Sci Tech* **2004**, *38*, 4064-4070.

11. Houtz, E. F.; Sutton, R.; Park, J. S.; Sedlak, M., Poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances in wastewater: Significance of unknown precursors, manufacturing shifts, and likely AFFF impacts. *Water Res.* **2016**, *95*, 142-149.

12. Gremmel, C.; Fromel, T.; Knepper, T., HPLC-MS/MS methods for the determination of 52 perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in aqueous samples. *Anal. Bioanal. Chem.* **2017**, *409*, (6), 1643-1655.

13. Bytingsvik, J.; van Leeuwen, S. P. J.; Hamers, T.; Swart, K.; Aars, J.; Lie, E.; Nilsen, E. M. E.; Wiig, O.; Derocher, A. E.; Jenssen, B. M., Perfluoroalkyl substances in polar bear mother-cub pairs: A comparative study based on plasma levels from 1998 and 2008. *Environ. Int.* **2012**, *49*, 92-99.

14. Martin, J. W.; Smithwick, M. M.; Braune, B. M.; Hoekstra, P. F.; Muir, D. C. G.; Mabury, S. A., Identification of long-chain perfluorinated acids in biota from the Canadian Arctic. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2004**, *38*, (2), 373-380.

15. Tomy, G. T.; Budakowski, W.; Halldorson, T.; Helm, P. A.; Stern, G. A.; Friesen, K.; Pepper, K.; Tittlemier, S. A.; Fisk, A. T., Fluorinated organic compounds in an eastern Arctic marine food web. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2004**, *38*, (24), 6475-6481.

16. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Water, Provisonal Health Advisories for Perfluooctanoic Acid (PFOA) and Perfluorooctane Sulfonate (PFOS). **2009**.

 Wang, Z. Y.; Cousins, I. T.; Scheringer, M.; Hungerbuhler, K., Fluorinated alternatives to long-chain perfluoroalkyl carboxylic acids (PFCAs), perfluoroalkane sulfonic acids (PFSAs) and their potential precursors. *Environ. Int.* 2013, *60*, 242-248.
 Washington, J. W.; Jenkins, T. M.; Weber, E. J., Identification of Unsaturated and 2H Polyfluorocarboxylate Homologous Series and Their Detection in Environmental

Samples and as Polymer Degradation Products. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2015**, *49*, (22), 13256-13263.

19. Gomis, M. I.; Wang, Z. Y.; Scheringer, M.; Cousins, I. T., A modeling assessment of the physicochemical properties and environmental fate of emerging and novel per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2015**, *505*, 981-991.

20. Ruan, T.; Lin, Y. F.; Wang, T.; Liu, R. Z.; Jiang, G. B., Identification of Novel Polyfluorinated Ether Sulfonates as PFOS Alternatives in Municipal Sewage Sludge in China. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2015**, *49*, (11), 6519-6527.

21. Chu, S. G.; Letcher, R. J., Side-chain fluorinated polymer surfactants in aquatic sediment and biosolid-augmented agricultural soil from the Great Lakes basin of North America. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2017**, *607*, 262-270.

22. De Silva, A. O.; Spencer, C.; Scott, B. F.; Backus, S.; Muir, D. C. G., Detection of a Cyclic Perfluorinated Acid, Perfluoroethylcyclohexane Sulfonate, in the Great Lakes of North America. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2011**, *45*, (19), 8060-8066.

23. Yeung, L. W. Y.; Robinson, S. J.; Koschorreck, J.; Mabury, S. A., Part I. A Temporal Study of PFCAs and Their Precursors in Human Plasma from Two German Cities 1982-2009. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (8), 3865-3874.

24. Yeung, L. W. Y.; Robinson, S. J.; Koschorreck, J.; Mabury, S. A., Part II. A Temporal Study of PFOS and Its Precursors in Human Plasma from Two German Cities in 1982-2009. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (8), 3875-3882.

25. Kim, S. K.; Shoeib, M.; Kim, K. S.; Park, J. E., Indoor and outdoor poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in Korea determined by passive air sampler. *Environ. Pollut.* **2012**, *162*, 144-150.

26. Tian, Z.; Kim, S. K.; Shoeib, M.; Oh, J. E.; Park, J. E., Human exposure to perand polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) via house dust in Korea: Implication to exposure pathway. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2016**, *553*, 266-275.

27. Shoeib, M.; Harner, T.; Wilford, B. H.; Jones, K. C.; Zhu, J. P., Perfluorinated sulfonamides in indoor and outdoor air and indoor dust: Occurrence, partitioning, and human exposure. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2005**, *39*, (17), 6599-6606.

28. Fraser, A. J.; Webster, T. F.; Watkins, D. J.; Strynar, M. J.; Kato, K.; Calafat, A. M.; Vieira, V. M.; McClean, M. D., Polyfluorinated compounds in dust from homes,

offices, and vehicles as predictors of concentrations in office workers' serum. *Environ. Int.* **2013**, *60*, 128-136.

29. Dinglasan-Panlilio, M. J. A.; Mabury, S. A., Significant residual fluorinated alcohols present in various fluorinated materials *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2006**, *40*, 1447–1453.

30. Liu, X. Y.; Guo, Z. S.; Folk, E. E.; Roache, N. F., Determination of fluorotelomer alcohols in selected consumer products and preliminary investigation of their fate in the indoor environment. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 81-86.

31. Liu, X. Y.; Guo, Z. S.; Krebs, K. A.; Pope, R. H.; Roache, N. F., Concentrations and trends of perfluorinated chemicals in potential indoor sources from 2007 through 2011 in the US. *Chemosphere* **2014**, *98*, 51-57.

32. Martinez-Moral, M. P.; Tena, M. T., Determination of perfluorocompounds in popcorn packaging by pressurised liquid extraction and ultra-performance liquid chromatography-tandem mass spectrometry. *Talanta* **2012**, *101*, 104-109.

33. Mawn, M. P.; McKay, R. G.; Ryan, T. W.; Szostek, B.; Powley, C. R.; Buck, R. C., Determination of extractable perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) in water, sweat simulant, saliva simulant, and methanol from textile and carpet samples by LC/MS/MS. *Analyst* **2005**, *130*, (5), 670-678.

34. Poothong, S.; Boontanon, S. K.; Boontanon, N., Extraction procedure optimization for perfluorooctane sulfonate and perfluorooctanoic acid in food packaging determination by LC-MS/MS. *J. Environ. Sci. Heal. B.* **2013**, *48*, (10), 830-835.

35. Stadalius, M.; Connolly, P.; L'Empereur, K.; Flaherty, J. M.; Isemura, T.; Kaiser, M. A.; Knaup, W.; Noguchi, M., A method for the low-level (ng g(-1)) determination of perfluorooctanoate in paper and textile by liquid chromatography with tandem mass spectrometry. *J. Chromatogr. A* **2006**, *1123*, (1), 10-14.

36. Supreeyasunthorn, P.; Boontanon, S. K.; Boontanon, N., Perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) contamination from textiles. *J. Environ. Sci. Health Part A-Toxic/Hazard. Subst. Environ. Eng.* **2016**, *51*, (6), 472-477.

37. Surma, M.; Wiczkowski, W.; Zielinski, H.; Cieslik, E., Determination of Selected Perfluorinated Acids (PFCAs) and Perfluorinated Sulfonates (PFASs) in Food Contact Materials Using LC-MS/MS. *Packag. Technol. Sci.* **2015**, *28*, (9), 789-799.

38. Trier, X.; Granby, K.; Christensen, J. H., Polyfluorinated surfactants (PFS) in paper and board coatings for food packaging. *Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res.* **2011**, *18*, (7), 1108-1120.

39. Trier, X.; Nielsen, N. J.; Christensen, J. H., Structural isomers of polyfluorinated di- and tri-alkylated phosphate ester surfactants present in industrial blends and in microwave popcorn bags. *Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res.* **2011**, *18*, (8), 1422-1432.

40. van der Veen, I.; Weiss, J. M.; Hanning, A. C.; de Boer, J.; Leonards, P. E. G., Development and validation of a method for the quantification of extractable perfluoroalkyl acids (PFAAs) and perfluorooctane sulfonamide (FOSA) in textiles. *Talanta* **2016**, *147*, 8-15.

41. Ye, F.; Tokumura, M.; Islam, M. S.; Zushi, Y.; Oh, J.; Masunaga, S., Spatial distribution and importance of potential perfluoroalkyl acid precursors in urban rivers and sewage treatment plant effluent - Case study of Tama River, Japan. *Water Res.* **2014**, *67*, 77-85.

42. Zabaleta, I.; Bizkarguenaga, E.; Bilbao, D.; Etxebarria, N.; Prieto, A.; Zuloaga, O., Fast and simple determination of perfluorinated compounds and their potential precursors in different packaging materials. *Talanta* **2016**, *152*, 353-363.

43. Zafeiraki, E.; Costopoulou, D.; Vassiliadou, I.; Bakeas, E.; Leondiadis, L., Determination of perfluorinated compounds (PFCs) in various foodstuff packaging materials used in the Greek market. *Chemosphere* **2014**, *94*, 169-176.

44. Berger, U.; Haukas, M., Validation of a screening method based on liquid chromatography coupled to high-resolution mass spectrometry for analysis of perfluoroalkylated substances in biota. *J. Chromatogr. A* **2005**, *1081*, (2), 210-217.

45. Herzke, D.; Olsson, E.; Posner, S., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in consumer products in Norway – A pilot study. *Chemosphere* 2012, 88, (8), 980-987.

46. Kotthoff, M.; Muller, J.; Jurling, H.; Schlummer, M.; Fiedler, D., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in consumer products. *Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res.* **2015**, *22*, (19), 14546-14559.

47. Sinclair, E.; Kim, S. K.; Akinleye, H. B.; Kannan, K., Quantitation of gas-phase perfluoroalkyl surfactants and fluorotelomer alcohols released from nonstick cookware and microwave popcorn bags. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2007**, *41*, (4), 1180-1185.

48. Vestergren, R.; Herzke, D.; Wang, T.; Cousins, I. T., Are imported consumer products an important diffuse source of PFASs to the Norwegian environment? *Environ. Pollut.* **2015**, *198*, 223-230.

49. Ye, F.; Zushi, Y.; Masunaga, S., Survey of perfluoroalkyl (PFAAs) and their precursors present in Japanese consumer products. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *127*, 262-268.

50. Miyake, Y.; Yamashita, N.; So, M. K.; Rostkowski, P.; Taniyasu, S.; Lam, P. K. S.; Kannan, K., Trace analysis of total fluorine in human blood using combustion ion chromatography for fluorine: A mass balance approach for the determination of known and unknown organofluorine compounds. *J. Chromatogr. A* **2007**, *1154*, (1-2), 214-221.

51. Wagner, A.; Raue, B.; Brauch, H. J.; Worch, E.; Lange, F. T., Determination of adsorbable organic fluorine from aqueous environmental samples by adsorption to polystyrene-divinylbenzene based activated carbon and combustion ion chromatography. *J. Chromatogr. A* **2013**, *1295*, 82-89.

52. Willach, S.; Brauch, H. J.; Lange, F. T., Contribution of selected perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances to the adsorbable organically bound fluorine in German rivers and in a highly contaminated groundwater. *Chemosphere* **2016**, *145*, 342-350.

53. Houtz, E. F.; Sedlak, D. L., Oxidative conversion as a means of detecting precursors to perfluoroalkyl acids in urban runoff. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (17), 9342-9349.

54. Houtz, E. F.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A.; Sedlak, D. L., Persistence of perfluoroalkyl acid precursors in AFFF-impacted groundwater and soil. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (15), 8187-8195.

55. Gruber, L. W., G.; Hagl, T.; Schlummer, M., , Water-repellent textiles for technical applications release perfluorinated carboxylic acids (PFAA) after chemical oxidation. In In 6th International Workshop on PFASs, At Idstein, Idstein, Germany, 2014, 2014.

56. Ritter, E. E.; Dickinson, M. E.; Harron, J. P.; Lunderberg, D. M.; DeYoung, P. A.; Robel, A. E.; Field, J. A.; Peaslee, G. F., PIGE as a screening tool for Per- and polyfluorinated substances in papers and textiles. *Nuclear Instruments & Methods in Physics Research Section B-Beam Interactions with Materials and Atoms* **2017**, *407*, 47-54.

57. Nakai, K.; Yamamoto, Y.; Okamoto, E.; Yamamoto, T.; Yoshida, F.; Matsumura, A.; Yamada, N.; Kitamura, A.; Koka, M.; Satoh, T., Boron analysis for neutron capture therapy using particle-induced gamma-ray emission. *Appl. Radiat. Isot.* **2015**, *106*, 166-170.

58. Schaider, L. A.; Balan, S. A.; Blum, A.; Andrews, D. Q.; Strynar, M. J.; Dickinson, M. E.; Lunderberg, D. M.; Lang, J. R.; Peaslee, G. F., Fluorinated Compounds in US Fast Food Packaging. *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2017**, *4*, (3), 105-111.

59. Allred, B.; JR, L.; MA, B.; Field, J., Orthogonal zirconium diol/C18 liquid chromatography-tandem mass spectrometry analysis of poly and perfluoroalkyl substances in landfill leachate. *J. Chrom A* **2014**.

60. Butt, C. M.; Muir, D. C. G.; Mabury, S. A., Biotransformation of the 8:2 Fluorotelomer Acrylate in Rainbow Trout 1 In Vivo Dietary Exposure. *Environ. Toxicol. Chem.* **2010**, *29*, (12), 2726-2735.

61. Backe, W. J.; Day, T. C.; Field, J. A., Zwitterionic, cationic, and anionic fluorinated chemicals in aqueous film forming foam formulations and groundwater from us military bases by nonaqueous large-volume injection HPLC-MS/MS. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (10), 5226-5234.

62. Vial, J.; Jardy, A., Experimental comparison of the different approaches to estimate LOD and LOQ of an HPLC method. *Anal. Chem.* 1999, 71, (14), 2672-2677.
63. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Pollution Prevention and Toxics 2010/15 PFOA Stewardship Program Guidance on Reporting Emissions and Product Content; 2006.

64. EPA, U. S. EPA and 3M Announce Phase Out of PFOS; 2000.

65. De Silva, A. O.; Allard, C. N.; Spencer, C.; Webster, G. M.; Shoeib, M., Phosphorus-Containing Fluorinated Organics: Polyfluoroalkyl Phosphoric Acid Diesters (diPAPs), Perfluorophosphonates (PFPAs), and Perfluorophosphinates (PFPIAs) in Residential Indoor Dust. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (22), 12575-12582.

66. Zhang, S.; Lu, X.; Wang, N.; Buck, R. C., Biotransformation potential of 6:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate (6:2 FTSA) in aerobic and anaerobic sediment. *Chemosphere* **2016**, *154*, 224-230.

67. 3M, 3M Fluorad Fluorosurfactant FC-129 Product Information Brochure. In Document 98-0212-0169-8, 1997; pp 1-4.

68. Rhoads, K. R.; Janssen, E. M. L.; Luthy, R. G.; Criddle, C. S., Aerobic biotransformation and fate of N-ethyl perfluorooctane sulfonamidoethanol (N-EtFOSE) in activated sludge. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2008**, *42*, (8), 2873-2878.

69. Munoz, G.; Duy, S. V.; Labadie, P.; Botta, F.; Budsinski, H.; Lestremau, F.; Liu, J.; Sauve, S., Analysis of zwitterionic, cationic, and anionic poly- and perfluoroalkyl surfactants in sediments by liquid chromatography polarity-switching electrospray ionization coupled to high resolution mass spectrometry. *Talanta* **2016**.

70. Begley, T.; White, K.; Honigfort, P.; Twaroski, M.; Neches, R.; Walker, R., Perfluorochemicals: potential sources of and migration from food packaging. *Food Add. Contam.* **2005**, *22*, (10), 1023-1031.

71. Prevedouros, K.; Cousins, I.; Buck, R.; Korzeniowski, S., Sources, Fate, and Transport of Perfluorocarboxylates. *ES&T* **2006**, *40*, (1), 32-44.

Supporting Information

Closing the Mass Balance of Fluorine for Papers and Textiles

Alix E Robel,^a Kristin Marshall,^a Margaret Dickinson,^b David Lunderberg, ^b Craig Butt,^c Graham Peaslee,^d Heather M. Stapleton,^c Jennifer A Field^{a*}
^{a,} Department of Environmental and Molecular Toxicology, 2750 Campus Way, Oregon State University, Corvallis, OR, 97331
^b Science Center Rm 2106A, 35 E. 12th St., Holland, Michigan 49422-9000, peaslee@hope.edu
^c Nicholas School of the Environment, Duke University, Durham, North Carolina 27708 University, Raleigh, NC 27695-7908, jrlang@ncsu.edu, barlaz@ncsu.edu
^d Department of Physics, University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, IN 46556 *Corresponding Author

Experimental Methods

Reagents

For LC-MS/MS analysis HPLC grade water (>99%, high purity, Burdick and Jackson brand), hydrochloric acid (BDH Chemicals), and ammonium acetate (regent grade, Macrom Chemicals) were purchased from VWR (Radnor, PA). Sodium hydroxide (98%, reagent grade), ethyl acetate (99.9%, reagent grade), potassium persulfate (>99%, ACS reagent), and 2,2,2-Trifluoroethanol (99%, Fluka Analytical) were purchased from Sigma Aldrich (St. Louis, MO). Methanol (>99%, LC/MS grade) was purchased from Fisher Scientific (Hampton, NH). For GC-MS analysis Ethyl acetate (HLPC grade) was purchased from EMD Millipore Corp (Bilerica, MA).

Volatile Analysis by GC-MS

Instrumental Analysis

Extracts were analyzed for volatile PFASs using positive chemical ionization mode gas chromatography mass spectrometry (GC-MS) operated in single ion monitoring mode (SIM), with SIM ions given in Table 2.3. The calibration range for all analytes was from 10-200 ng. Analytes were separated using a DB-WAX column (30 m x 0.250 mm, 0.25 μ m film thickness, Agilent, Santa Clara, CA). The carrier gas was helium and the injection volume was 2 μ l. The initial oven temperature was 60 °C, held 1 min, increased at 5 °C/min to 75 °C, increased at 10 °C/min to 130 °C, and then 50 °C/min to 240 °C. Analyte responses were normalized to internal standards as indicated in Table 2.1. If values were outside of the calibration range further dilutions were performed and the extract was re-analyzed.

Whole method performance

Spike and recovery experiments were conducted using a $2x2 \text{ cm}^2$ of "pre-cleaned" cotton twill fabric that served as a surrogate matrix. The cotton twill fabric was precleaned with 1:1 hexane: acetone using a Soxhlet overnight and then air dried in a fume hood. The sample was then spiked with 20 ng (n=3) to give an equivalent of 50 μ g m2 of each analyte (6:2, 8:2, 10:2 FTOH and N-EtFOSE) or 120 ng (n=3) to given an equivalent of 300 μ g/m² of each analyte and allowed to dry for 10 min. Each sample was then extracted as described above in the main manuscript. Precision was determined by an n=5 analysis at a 120 ng using the spiking and extraction procedures described above. The instrumental limit of detection (LOD) was determined to be three times the standard deviation? error of the calibration curve slope and the limit of quantification (LOQ) was determined as ten times the standard deviation? error of the slope of the calibration curve Vial and Jardy 1999. Each batch of samples contained three solvent blanks that consisted of internal standards in pre-cleaned glass vials. Separate spike and recovery experiments were not performed for papers, but the performance parameters of the method were assumed to apply equally to both papers and textiles.

Ionic PFASs by LC-MS/MS

Extraction efficiency of Individual Ionic PFASs

An experiment was done to determine the number of necessary extraction cycles to remove >90% of methanol extractable mass of individual PFASs similar to van der Veen et al., 2016. A single representative paper and textile was selected based on the presence of the greatest range of individual PFASs present. Two replicates of each paper and textile were cut from the sample $(0.3\pm0.01g)$ and placed in 15mL centrifuge tubes. One of the two was spiked with 0.72 ng of all labeled internal standards and allowed to dry, the other was not spiked. Both sets were then extracted in methanol as described above, but four individual rounds of extraction were performed. Rather than collecting all supernatant in one centrifuge tube, each round of extraction was collected individually. For the samples with mass labeled internal standards added before extraction, each round of extraction was diluted 1:5 in methanol and analyzed. For samples without mass labelled internal standard present, each round of extraction was diluted 1:5, 0.72 ng of mass labeled internal standard was added, and then analyzed.

TOP Assay by LC-MS/MS

Recovery for the TOP assay was determined using two sets of measurements. The mass recovery of individual polyfluorinated precursors (no paper or textile present) was determined by adding 2.4 ng each of seven oxidizable polyfluorinated precursors into seven separate 1.2mL autosampler vial containing 60 \Box L of methanol. The methanol was then blown to dryness, after which 3 mL of the TOP assay reaction solution was added, followed by the subsequent micro liquid-liquid extraction as described above. Known precursor experiments were performed, but showed very poor recovery when spiked into reaction solution with no paper or textile. The second measure of accuracy for the TOP assay was determined by spiking n=4 of a paper and n=4 replicates of a single textile to give an equivalent of 8.3 ng/g of all Qn and Sq analytes. Methanolic extraction was carried out on all eight samples, as described above. The resulting extract was blown to dryness, reacted, spiked with internal standards, and extracted as described above. All extracts created for the recovery of TOP assay were analyzed for PFCAs by LC-MS/MS as described above. Concentrations of PFCAs formed after oxidation were converted to nmol F. Recovery was determined by dividing the summed nmol F formed after oxidation by the initial of the respective polyfluorinated precursor in nmol F prior to oxidation. Mass recovery was calculated by subtracting expected overspiked concentrations of PFCAs, the molar conversion equivalent of all overspiked Qn and Sq analytes, and any background present in the sample. Precision, described as % RSD, was computed from n=4 replicates of the 8.3 ng/g equivalent overspike mixture.

Results and Discussion

Ionic Individual PFASs -

Methanol was selected as the extraction solvent based on preliminary experiments, and on literature precedent.¹⁻⁹ Preliminary experiments indicated that the ratio of 0.3 ± 0.01 g to 3.33mL methanol per round of extraction produced the lowest RSD across all analyte classes of interest for both papers and textiles (Table 2.7). The extraction efficiency was consistent in comparison to experiments performed by van der Veen et al., 2016 and Zabaleta et al., 2016. The extraction profiles (% mass of individual PFAS recovered in each extraction/total mass) were similar, indicating that spiked and PFASs associated with the material exhibit similar extraction behavior. Three rounds of extraction removed >90% of ionic PFASs, and were applied to all subsequent analysis and data collection. TOP assay extraction efficiency experiments were not performed because TOP assay was run on the extract resulting from the methanolic extraction, and it was assumed unknown precursors behaved somewhat similarly to known precursors (i.e. diPAPs) and would also be extracted to >90% efficiency.

Tables and Figures Table 2.3. GC-MS target analyte full name, acronym, SIM ions (quantification ion is underlined), internal standard, and data quality tier.

	,	1 2		
Full Name	Acronym	SIM	Internal Standard	Data Quality*
6:2 fluorotelomer alcohol	6:2 FTOH	<u>365</u> , 327	² H ₂ -, ¹³ C ₂ -6:2 FTOH	Qn
8:2 fluorotelomer alcohol	8:2 FTOH	<u>465</u> , 427	² H ₂ -, ¹³ C ₂ -8:2 FTOH	Qn
10:2 fluorotelomer alcohol	10:2 FTOH	<u>565,</u> 527	² H ₂ -, ¹³ C ₂ -8:2 FTOH	Qn
N-ethyl perfluorooctane sulfonamidoethanol	N-EtFOSE	<u>554,</u> 572	⁹ H ₂ -N-EtFOSE	Qn

*Data quality follows the same criteria as established in the ionic PFASs section.

Individual Ionic PFASs by LC-MS/MS Table 2.4. LC-MS/MS target analyte full name, acronym, acquisition masses and parameters, internal standard, calibration reference, and data quality.

Analyte	Acronym	PI* (m/z)	CV* (V)	FI-1* (m/z)	CE* (eV)	FI- 2* (m/z)	CE* (eV)	Internal Standard	Calibration Reference	Data Quality*
Perfluorobutanoic acid	PFBA	213	20	169	8	n/a	n/a	[¹³ C ₄]PFBA	PFBA	Qn
Perfluoropentanoic acid	PFPeA	263	20	219	8	n/a	n/a	[¹³ C ₃]PFPeA	PFPeA	Qn
Perfluorohexanoic acid	PFHxA	313	20	269	8	119	22	[¹³ C ₂]PFHxA	PFHxA	Qn
Perfluoroheptanoic acid	PFHpA	363	20	319	8	169	14	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFHpA	Sq
Perfluorooctanoic acid	PFOA	413	20	369	8	169	18	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFOA	Qn
Perfluorononaoic acid	PFNA	463	22	419	8	169	18	[¹³ C ₅]PFNA	PFNA	Qn
Perfluorodecanoic acid	PFDA	513	22	469	10	269	18	[¹³ C ₂]PFDA	PFDA	Qn
Perfluoroundecanoic acid	PFUnDA	563	22	519	10	169	22	[¹³ C ₂]PFUnDA	PFUnDA	Qn
Perfluorododecanoic acid	PFDoDA	613	22	569	10	169	24	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFDoDA	Qn
Perfluorortridecanoic acid	PFTriDA	663	24	619	12	169	26	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFTriDA	Sq
Perfluorotetradecanoic acid	PFTeDA	713	24	669	12	169	26	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFTeDA	Sq
Perfluoropentadecanoic acid	PFPeDA	763	25	719	12	169	28	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFTeDA	Ql
Perfluorohexadecanoic acid	PFHxDA	813	25	769	12	169	30	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFHxDA	Ql
Perfluoroheptadecanoic acid	PFHpDA	863	25	819	13	169	30	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFHxDA	Ql
Perfluorooctadecanoic acid	PFOcDA	913	25	869	15	169	30	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFOcDA	Ql
2-perfluorobutylethanoic acid	FBEA	277	20	63	7	193	23	[¹³ C ₂]FHEA	FHEA	Ql
2-perfluorohexylethanoic acid	FHEA	377	20	293	22	63	7	[¹³ C ₂]FHEA	FHEA	Qn
2-perfluorooctylethanoic acid	FOEA	477	20	393	20	63	10	[¹³ C ₂]FOEA	FOEA	Qn
2-perfluorodecylethanoic acid	FDEA	577	20	493	18	63	10	[¹³ C ₂]FDEA	FDEA	Qn
2H-perfluoro-2-hexenoic acid	FBUEA	257	19	193	16	143	33	[¹³ C ₂]FHUEA	FHUEA	Ql
2H-perfluoro-2-octenoic acid	FHUEA	357	18	293	17	243	34	[¹³ C ₂]FHUEA	FHUEA	Qn
2H-perfluoro-2-decenoic acid	FOUEA	457	22	393	17	343	36	[¹³ C ₂]FOEA	FOUEA	Qn
2H-perfluoro-2-dodecenoic acid	FDUEA	557	24	493	17	443	38	[¹³ C ₂]FDEA	FOUEA	Sq
3-Perfluoropropyl propanoic acid (3:3)	FPrPA	241	19	177	7	117	24	[¹³ C ₂]FHEA	FPrPA	Sq
3-Perfluoropentyl propanoic acid (5:3)	FPePA	341	19	237	14	217	24	[¹³ C ₂]FHUEA	FPePA	Sq
3-Perfluoroheptyl propanoic acid (7:3)	FHpPA	441	19	337	13	317	23	[¹³ C ₂]FOEA	FHpPA	Sq

3-Perfluorononyl propanoic acid (9:3)	FNPA	541	19	437	14	417	23	[¹³ C ₂]FDEA	FHpPA	Ql
Perfluoroethane sulfonate	PFEtS	199	50	80	28	99	26	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFBS	PFEtS	Ql
Perfluoropropane sulfonate	PFPrS	249	50	80	30	99	26	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFBS	PFPrS	Ql
Perfluorobutane sulfonate	PFBS	299	50	80	32	99	26	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFBS	PFBS	Qn
Perfluoropentane sulfonate	PFPeS	349	54	80	34	99	27	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFHxS	PFHxS	Sq
Branched Perfluorohexane sulfonate	Br-PFHxS	399	58	80	36	99	28	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFHxS	PFHxS	Qn
Perfluorheptane sulfonate	PFHpS	449	64	80	46	99	32	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFOS	Sq
Branched Perfluorooctanesulfonic acid	Br-PFOS	499	70	80	46	99	34	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFOS	Qn
Perfluorononane sulfonate	PFNS	549	73	80	49	99	35	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFDS	Sq
Perfluorodecane sulfonate	PFDS	599	76	80	52	99	36	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFDS	Sq
4:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	4:2 FTS	327	42	307	19	81	26	[¹³ C ₂] 4:2 FtS	4:2 FTS	Sq
6:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	6:2 FTS	427	42	407	22	81	28	[¹³ C ₂] 6:2 FtS	6:2 FTS	Sq
8:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	8:2 FTS	527	48	507	24	81	33	[¹³ C ₂] PFDA	8:2 FTS	Sq
10:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	10:2 FTS	627	54	607	26	81	38	[¹³ C ₂] 6:2 FtS	8:2 FTS	Ql
Perfluorobutane sulfonamido acetic acid	FBSAA	356	35	298	20	78	30	[¹³ C ₂]PFHxA	MeFBSAA	Ql
Perfluoropentane sulfonamido acetic acid	FPeSAA	406	37	348	22	78	32	[¹³ C ₂]PFHxA	MeFBSAA	Ql
Perfluorohexane sulfonamido acetic acid	FHxSAA	456	40	398	24	78	35	d ₃ -MeFOSAA	FOSAA	Ql
Perfluoroheptane sulfonamido acetic acid	FHpSAA	506	42	448	25	78	37	d ₃ -MeFOSAA	FOSAA	Ql
Perfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	FOSAA	556	45	498	27	78	40	d ₃ -MeFOSAA	FOSAA	Sq
Methyl perfluorobutane sulfonamido acetic acid	MeFBSAA	370	28	219	18	283	13	[¹³ C ₂]PFHxA	MeFBSAA	Sq
Methylperfluoropentane sulfonamido acetic acid	MeFPeSAA	420	29	269	18	333	24	[¹³ C ₂]PFHxA	MeFBSAA	Ql
Methyl perfluorohexane sulfonamido acetic acid	MeFHxSAA	470	31	319	19	169	26	d ₃ -MeFOSAA	MeFOSAA	Ql
Methyl perfluoroheptane sulfonamido acetic acid	MeFHpSAA	520	32	369	19	169	28	d ₃ -MeFOSAA	MeFOSAA	Ql
Methylperfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	MeFOSAA	570	34	419	20	169	30	d ₃ -MeFOSAA	MeFOSAA	Qn
Ethylperfluorobutane sulfonamido acetic acid	EtFBSAA	384	28	219	18	326	18	[¹³ C ₂]PFHxA	MeFBSAA	Ql
Ethylperfluoropentane sulfonamido acetic acid	EtFPeSAA	434	29	269	18	376	18	[¹³ C ₂]PFHxA	MeFBSAA	Ql
Ethylperfluorohexane sulfonamido acetic acid	EtFHxSAA	484	31	319	19	426	19	d5-EtFOSAA	EtFOSAA	Ql
Ethylperfluoroheptane sulfonamido acetic acid	EtFHpSAA	534	32	369	19	476	19	d5-EtFOSAA	EtFOSAA	Ql
Ethylperfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	EtFOSAA	584	34	419	20	526	20	d5-EtFOSAA	EtFOSAA	Qn
Bis(perfluorobutyl) phosphinate	4:4 PFPIA	501	50	301	40	101	55	[¹³ C ₄]- 6:2DiPAP	6:6 PFPi	Ql

Perfluorobutyl perfluorohexyl phosphinate	4:6 PFPIA	601	60	301	42	401	43	[¹³ C4]- 6:2DiPAP	6:6 PFPi	Ql
Bis(perfluorohexyl) phosphinate	6:6 PFPIA	701	72	401	43	101	62	[¹³ C ₄]-	6:6 PFPi	Sq
Perfluorohexylperfluorooctyl phosphinate	6:8 PFPIA	801	85	401	44	501	45	[¹³ C ₄]-	6:6 PFPi	Sq
Bis(perfluorooctyl) phosphinate	8:8 PFPIA	901	98	501	46	101	69	6.2DIFAF [¹³ C ₄]- 6:2DiPAP	8:8 PFPi	Sq
4:2 disubstituted polyfluoroalkyl phosphate	4:2 diPAP	589	36	97	27	343	16	[¹³ C4]- 6:2DiPAP	6:2 diPAP	Ql
4:2/6:2 disubstituted polyfluoroalkyl phosphate	4:2/6:2 diPAP	689	37	97	29	343	17	[¹³ C ₄]-	6:2 diPAP	Ql
6:2 disubstituted polyfluoroalkyl phosphate	6:2 diPAP	789	38	97	30	443	18	[¹³ C ₄]- 6:2DiPAP	6:2 diPAP	Qn
6:2/8:2 disubstituted polyfluoroalkyl phosphate	6:2/8:2 diPAP	889	39	97	33	443	19	[¹³ C4]- 6:2DiPAP	8:2 diPAP	Ql
8:2 disubstituted polyfluoroalkyl phosphate	8:2 diPAP	989	40	97	35	543	20	[¹³ C4]- 6:2DiPAP	8:2 diPAP	Sq
8:2/10:2 disubstituted polyfluoroalkyl phosphate	8:2/10:2 diPAP	1089	41	97	37	543	21	[¹³ C4]-	8:2 diPAP	Ql
10:2 disubstituted polyfluoroalkyl phosphate	10:2 diPAP	1189	42	97	39	643	22	6:2DIPAP [¹³ C ₄]- 6:2DiPAP	8:2 diPAP	Ql
6:2 fluorotelomer mercaptoalkyl phosphate diester	6:2 FTMAP	921	70	79	50	575	30	[¹³ C ₄]- 6:2DiPAP	8:2 diPAP	Ql
6:2/8:2 fluorotelomer mercaptoalkyl phosphate diester	6:2/8:2 FTMAP	1021	75	79	50	575	30	[¹³ C ₄]- 6:2DiPAP	8:2 diPAP	Ql
8:2 fluorotelomer mercaptoalkyl phosphate diester	8:2 FTMAP	1121	90	79	50	675	35	[¹³ C ₄]- 6:2DiPAP	8:2 diPAP	Ql
8:2/10:2 fluorotelomer mercaptoalkyl phosphate diester	8:2/10:2 FTMAP	1221	90	79	50	675	40	[¹³ C ₄]- 6:2DiPAP	8:2 diPAP	Ql
10:2 fluorotelomer mercaptoalkyl phosphate diester	10:2 FTMAP	1321	90	79	50	775	40	[¹³ C4]- 6:2DiPAP	8:2 diPAP	Ql
N-ethyl perfluorooctanesulfonamidoethanol-based phosphate diester	SAmPAP	1203	75	526	40	169	65	[¹³ C ₄]- 6:2DiPAP	8:2 diPAP	Ql
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]butanoic acid	[¹³ C ₄] PFBA	217	20	172	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[3,4,5- ¹³ C ₃]pentanoic acid	[¹³ C ₃] PFPeA	266	20	222	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]hexanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFHxA	315	20	270	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]octanoic acid	[¹³ C ₄] PFOA	417	20	372	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a

Perfluoro[1,2,3,4,5- ¹³ C ₅]nonanoic acid	[¹³ C ₅] PFNA	468	22	423	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]decanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFDA	515	22	470	10	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]undecanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFUnDA	565	22	520	10	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]dodecanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFDoDA	615	22	570	10	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
2-perfluorohexyl-[¹³ C ₂]-ethanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] FHEA	379	20	294	22	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
2-perfluorooctyl-[¹³ C ₂]-ethanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] FOEA	479	20	394	20	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
2-perfluorodecyl-[¹³ C ₂]-ethanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] FDEA	579	20	494	18	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
2H-Perfluoro-[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]-2-octenoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] FHUEA	359	18	294	17	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro-1-[2,3,4- ¹³ C ₃]-butanesulfonate	[¹³ C ₂] PFBS	302		99		n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro-1-hexane[¹⁸ O ₂]sulfonate	[¹⁸ O ₂] PFHxS	403	58	103	28	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]octane sulfonate	[¹³ C ₂] PFOS	503	70	99	34	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
$4:2[1,2-^{13}C_2]$ fluorotelomer sulfonate	[¹³ C ₂] 4:2 FTS	329		81		n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
6:2 [1,2- ¹³ C ₂] fluorotelomer sulfonate	[¹³ C ₂] 6:2 FTS	429	42	409	22	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Methyl-d3-perfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	[² H ₃] MeFOSAA	573	34	419	20	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Ethyl-d5-perfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	[² H5] EtFOSAA	589	34	419	20	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
6:2 disubstituted-[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]-polyfluoroalkyl phosphate	[¹³ C ₄] 6:2 diPAP	794	38	97	30	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a

*PI (precursor ion), CV (cone voltage), FI (fragmentation ion), CE (collision energy), Qn (quantitative), Sq (semiquantitative), Ql (qualitative), Sc (Screen)

Table 2.5. Analytical Validation Parameters for Recovery (Accuracy), RSD (Precision), Limit of
Detection (LOD), and Limit of Quantification (LOQ) for volatile analytes.

	Recovery at 20ng (%)	Recovery at 120ng (%)	RSD (%)	LOD (µg/m ²)	LOQ (µg/m ²)							
Analytes												
6:2 FTOH	87	100	2.3	0.37	1.2							
8:2 FTOH	79	98	3.9	0.83	2.8							
10:2 FTOH	94	92	2.7	2.4	8.1							
N-EtFOSE	100	78	1.5	1.2	3.8							
					RSE) (%) rang	ge across	class				
--------------------------------	--------	---------	--------	---	---	-------------------	--	---------	---	---------	-----------------------------------	---------
	PFO	CAs	FT	CAs	PFS	SAs	F	tS	(Me,Et,)FXSAA	diP	APS
Weight to methanol ratio	Papers	Textile	Papers	Textile	Papers	Textile	Papers	Textile	Papers	Textile	Papers	Textile
0.5g:8.33mL	2-25	6-29	5-10	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>7-24</td><td><lod< td=""><td>14-174</td><td><lod< td=""><td>12-31</td><td><lod< td=""><td>23-43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>7-24</td><td><lod< td=""><td>14-174</td><td><lod< td=""><td>12-31</td><td><lod< td=""><td>23-43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	7-24	<lod< td=""><td>14-174</td><td><lod< td=""><td>12-31</td><td><lod< td=""><td>23-43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	14-174	<lod< td=""><td>12-31</td><td><lod< td=""><td>23-43</td></lod<></td></lod<>	12-31	<lod< td=""><td>23-43</td></lod<>	23-43
0.3g:3.33mL	4-17	10-19	12-25	<lod< td=""><td>19</td><td>5-16</td><td><lod< td=""><td>14-26</td><td><lod< td=""><td>7-24</td><td><lod< td=""><td>40-49</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	19	5-16	<lod< td=""><td>14-26</td><td><lod< td=""><td>7-24</td><td><lod< td=""><td>40-49</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	14-26	<lod< td=""><td>7-24</td><td><lod< td=""><td>40-49</td></lod<></td></lod<>	7-24	<lod< td=""><td>40-49</td></lod<>	40-49
0.1g:1.67mL	4-16	10-29	30-40	<lod< td=""><td>35</td><td>14-39</td><td><lod< td=""><td>41-131</td><td><lod< td=""><td>15-62</td><td><lod< td=""><td>30-62</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	35	14-39	<lod< td=""><td>41-131</td><td><lod< td=""><td>15-62</td><td><lod< td=""><td>30-62</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	41-131	<lod< td=""><td>15-62</td><td><lod< td=""><td>30-62</td></lod<></td></lod<>	15-62	<lod< td=""><td>30-62</td></lod<>	30-62

Table 2.6. Sample mass to methanol extraction ratio for determination of minimum material for maximum precision (RSD%) for papers and textiles.

		Ра	per		Рар	er + Intei	rnal Stand	lard		Fal	oric		Fab	ric + Intei	+ Internal Standa 2 3 19 4.1 17 4.5 20 3.6 20 3.6 17 2.5 17 2.1 19 2.7 18 3.6 14 2.8 14 2.8 14 2.8 14 2.8 14 5.1 17 <lod< td=""> 25 4.6 11 5.1 <lod< td=""> <lod< td=""></lod<></lod<></lod<></lod<></lod<></lod<></lod<></lod<></lod<>		
% mass recovered in each extraction/total mass	1	2	3	4	1	2	3	4	1	2	3	4	1	2	3	4	
PFBA	65	29	5.7	<lod< td=""><td>69</td><td>26</td><td>4.2</td><td>0.7</td><td>62</td><td>30</td><td>8.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.1</td><td>1.5</td></lod<></td></lod<>	69	26	4.2	0.7	62	30	8.8	<lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.1</td><td>1.5</td></lod<>	76	19	4.1	1.5	
PFPeA	73	27	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>27</td><td>3.8</td><td>0.7</td><td>55</td><td>28</td><td>12</td><td>5.2</td><td>77</td><td>17</td><td>4.5</td><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>27</td><td>3.8</td><td>0.7</td><td>55</td><td>28</td><td>12</td><td>5.2</td><td>77</td><td>17</td><td>4.5</td><td>1.6</td></lod<>	68	27	3.8	0.7	55	28	12	5.2	77	17	4.5	1.6	
PFHxA	61	31	6.3	1.5	61	36	3.7	<lod< td=""><td>56</td><td>25</td><td>12</td><td>6.7</td><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.4</td></lod<>	56	25	12	6.7	75	20	3.6	1.4	
PFHpA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>36</td><td>3.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>22</td><td>8.5</td><td>4.1</td><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>36</td><td>3.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>22</td><td>8.5</td><td>4.1</td><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>36</td><td>3.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>22</td><td>8.5</td><td>4.1</td><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>36</td><td>3.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>22</td><td>8.5</td><td>4.1</td><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<>	61	36	3.7	<lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>22</td><td>8.5</td><td>4.1</td><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.4</td></lod<>	65	22	8.5	4.1	75	20	3.6	1.4	
PFOA	100	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>34</td><td>4.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td>69</td><td>22</td><td>6.8</td><td>2.6</td><td>81</td><td>17</td><td>2.5</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>34</td><td>4.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td>69</td><td>22</td><td>6.8</td><td>2.6</td><td>81</td><td>17</td><td>2.5</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>34</td><td>4.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td>69</td><td>22</td><td>6.8</td><td>2.6</td><td>81</td><td>17</td><td>2.5</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	61	34	4.9	<lod< td=""><td>69</td><td>22</td><td>6.8</td><td>2.6</td><td>81</td><td>17</td><td>2.5</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	69	22	6.8	2.6	81	17	2.5	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
PFNA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>32</td><td>3.2</td><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>21</td><td>4.4</td><td>2.9</td><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.1</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>32</td><td>3.2</td><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>21</td><td>4.4</td><td>2.9</td><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.1</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>32</td><td>3.2</td><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>21</td><td>4.4</td><td>2.9</td><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.1</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>32</td><td>3.2</td><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>21</td><td>4.4</td><td>2.9</td><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.1</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<>	65	32	3.2	<lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>21</td><td>4.4</td><td>2.9</td><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.1</td><td>0.4</td></lod<>	72	21	4.4	2.9	80	17	2.1	0.4	
PFDA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>34</td><td>4.6</td><td>0.6</td><td>77</td><td>16</td><td>5.4</td><td>0.9</td><td>77</td><td>19</td><td>2.7</td><td>0.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>34</td><td>4.6</td><td>0.6</td><td>77</td><td>16</td><td>5.4</td><td>0.9</td><td>77</td><td>19</td><td>2.7</td><td>0.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>34</td><td>4.6</td><td>0.6</td><td>77</td><td>16</td><td>5.4</td><td>0.9</td><td>77</td><td>19</td><td>2.7</td><td>0.6</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>34</td><td>4.6</td><td>0.6</td><td>77</td><td>16</td><td>5.4</td><td>0.9</td><td>77</td><td>19</td><td>2.7</td><td>0.6</td></lod<>	61	34	4.6	0.6	77	16	5.4	0.9	77	19	2.7	0.6	
PFUnDA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>69</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td>91</td><td>9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>69</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td>91</td><td>9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>69</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td>91</td><td>9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>69</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td>91</td><td>9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	69	26	4.9	<lod< td=""><td>91</td><td>9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	91	9	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>1.0</td></lod<>	77	18	3.6	1.0	
PFDoDA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>30</td><td>3.3</td><td>0.9</td><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>30</td><td>3.3</td><td>0.9</td><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>30</td><td>3.3</td><td>0.9</td><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>30</td><td>3.3</td><td>0.9</td><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	65	30	3.3	0.9	83	17	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	83	14	2.8	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
PFTrDA	48	44	8.0	<lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>30</td><td>3.3</td><td>0.9</td><td>76</td><td>21</td><td>3.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	65	30	3.3	0.9	76	21	3.9	<lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	83	14	2.8	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
PFTeDA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>30</td><td>3.3</td><td>0.9</td><td>61</td><td>29</td><td>6.0</td><td>4.3</td><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>30</td><td>3.3</td><td>0.9</td><td>61</td><td>29</td><td>6.0</td><td>4.3</td><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>30</td><td>3.3</td><td>0.9</td><td>61</td><td>29</td><td>6.0</td><td>4.3</td><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>30</td><td>3.3</td><td>0.9</td><td>61</td><td>29</td><td>6.0</td><td>4.3</td><td>83</td><td>14</td><td>2.8</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	65	30	3.3	0.9	61	29	6.0	4.3	83	14	2.8	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
FHEA	59	33	7.6	<lod< td=""><td>90</td><td>10</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>74</td><td>20</td><td>5.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	90	10	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>74</td><td>20</td><td>5.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>74</td><td>20</td><td>5.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>74</td><td>20</td><td>5.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>74</td><td>20</td><td>5.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>74</td><td>20</td><td>5.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>74</td><td>20</td><td>5.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	74	20	5.6	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
FOEA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>58</td><td>39</td><td>2.4</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>58</td><td>39</td><td>2.4</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>58</td><td>39</td><td>2.4</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>58</td><td>39</td><td>2.4</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	58	39	2.4	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<>	82	11	5.1	1.1	
FDEA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>29</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>29</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>29</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>61</td><td>29</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	61	29	11	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>83</td><td>17</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	83	17	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
FHUEA	57	34	6.1	2.5	67	28	4.4	1.0	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>25</td><td>4.6</td><td>0.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>25</td><td>4.6</td><td>0.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>25</td><td>4.6</td><td>0.6</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>25</td><td>4.6</td><td>0.6</td></lod<>	70	25	4.6	0.6	
FOUEA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>58</td><td>39</td><td>2.4</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>58</td><td>39</td><td>2.4</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>58</td><td>39</td><td>2.4</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>58</td><td>39</td><td>2.4</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	58	39	2.4	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>82</td><td>11</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.1</td></lod<>	82	11	5.1	1.1	
FPePA	58	35	6.3	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
PFEtS	67	33	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>41</td><td>33</td><td>15</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>41</td><td>33</td><td>15</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>41</td><td>33</td><td>15</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>41</td><td>33</td><td>15</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>41</td><td>33</td><td>15</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>41</td><td>33</td><td>15</td><td>11</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	41	33	15	11	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
PFPrS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>19</td><td>4.9</td><td>3.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>19</td><td>4.9</td><td>3.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>19</td><td>4.9</td><td>3.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>19</td><td>4.9</td><td>3.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>19</td><td>4.9</td><td>3.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>19</td><td>4.9</td><td>3.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>19</td><td>4.9</td><td>3.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>19</td><td>4.9</td><td>3.9</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	72	19	4.9	3.9	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
PFBS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>29</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>21</td><td>6.9</td><td>2.5</td><td>83</td><td>11</td><td>4.1</td><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>29</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>21</td><td>6.9</td><td>2.5</td><td>83</td><td>11</td><td>4.1</td><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>29</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>21</td><td>6.9</td><td>2.5</td><td>83</td><td>11</td><td>4.1</td><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>29</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>21</td><td>6.9</td><td>2.5</td><td>83</td><td>11</td><td>4.1</td><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<>	70	29	1.6	<lod< td=""><td>70</td><td>21</td><td>6.9</td><td>2.5</td><td>83</td><td>11</td><td>4.1</td><td>1.4</td></lod<>	70	21	6.9	2.5	83	11	4.1	1.4	
PFPeS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>73</td><td>19</td><td>4.7</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>73</td><td>19</td><td>4.7</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>73</td><td>19</td><td>4.7</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>73</td><td>19</td><td>4.7</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>73</td><td>19</td><td>4.7</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>73</td><td>19</td><td>4.7</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>73</td><td>19</td><td>4.7</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>73</td><td>19</td><td>4.7</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	73	19	4.7	4.0	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>	
PFHxS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>23</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>17</td><td>6.0</td><td>2.4</td><td>74</td><td>21</td><td>3.0</td><td>2.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>23</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>17</td><td>6.0</td><td>2.4</td><td>74</td><td>21</td><td>3.0</td><td>2.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>23</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>17</td><td>6.0</td><td>2.4</td><td>74</td><td>21</td><td>3.0</td><td>2.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>23</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>17</td><td>6.0</td><td>2.4</td><td>74</td><td>21</td><td>3.0</td><td>2.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	77	23	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>17</td><td>6.0</td><td>2.4</td><td>74</td><td>21</td><td>3.0</td><td>2.0</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>17</td><td>6.0</td><td>2.4</td><td>74</td><td>21</td><td>3.0</td><td>2.0</td></lod<>	75	17	6.0	2.4	74	21	3.0	2.0	
PFHpS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>19</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	76	19	4.0	0.7	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>	

 Table 2.7. Analysis of individual extraction cycles for native (not spiked) ionic PFASs and isotopically-labeled ionic PFASs.

1	1															
PFOS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>25</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.5</td><td>1.3</td><td>80</td><td>16</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>25</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.5</td><td>1.3</td><td>80</td><td>16</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>25</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.5</td><td>1.3</td><td>80</td><td>16</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>25</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.5</td><td>1.3</td><td>80</td><td>16</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	75	25	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.5</td><td>1.3</td><td>80</td><td>16</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.5</td><td>1.3</td><td>80</td><td>16</td><td>4.0</td><td>0.4</td></lod<>	77	18	4.5	1.3	80	16	4.0	0.4
PFDS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>79</td><td>18</td><td>3.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>79</td><td>18</td><td>3.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>79</td><td>18</td><td>3.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>79</td><td>18</td><td>3.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>79</td><td>18</td><td>3.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>79</td><td>18</td><td>3.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>79</td><td>18</td><td>3.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>79</td><td>18</td><td>3.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	79	18	3.5	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
4:2 FtS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>67</td><td>29</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>67</td><td>29</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>67</td><td>29</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>67</td><td>29</td><td>4.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	67	29	4.0	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td>1.0</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>68</td><td>26</td><td>4.9</td><td>1.0</td></lod<>	68	26	4.9	1.0
6:2 FtS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>32</td><td>3.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>3.1</td><td>0.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>32</td><td>3.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>3.1</td><td>0.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>32</td><td>3.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>3.1</td><td>0.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>65</td><td>32</td><td>3.7</td><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>3.1</td><td>0.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	65	32	3.7	<lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>3.1</td><td>0.1</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	81	19	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>3.1</td><td>0.1</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>3.1</td><td>0.1</td></lod<>	81	15	3.1	0.1
8:2 FtS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>76</td><td>18</td><td>3.6</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	76	18	3.6	2.6	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
10:2 FtS	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>98</td><td>2</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>98</td><td>2</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>98</td><td>2</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>98</td><td>2</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>98</td><td>2</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>98</td><td>2</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>98</td><td>2</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>98</td><td>2</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	98	2	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FOSAA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>22</td><td>4.2</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>22</td><td>4.2</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>22</td><td>4.2</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>22</td><td>4.2</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>22</td><td>4.2</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>22</td><td>4.2</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>22</td><td>4.2</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>22</td><td>4.2</td><td>1.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	72	22	4.2	1.6	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
MeFBSAA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>75</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	75	20	5.1	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
MeFHxSAA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>88</td><td>11</td><td>1.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>15</td><td>5.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>88</td><td>11</td><td>1.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>15</td><td>5.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>88</td><td>11</td><td>1.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>15</td><td>5.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>88</td><td>11</td><td>1.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>15</td><td>5.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>88</td><td>11</td><td>1.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>15</td><td>5.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>88</td><td>11</td><td>1.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>15</td><td>5.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>88</td><td>11</td><td>1.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>15</td><td>5.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>88</td><td>11</td><td>1.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>15</td><td>5.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	88	11	1.0	<lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>15</td><td>5.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	80	15	5.2	<lod< td=""></lod<>
MeFHpSAA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>66</td><td>29</td><td>5.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>66</td><td>29</td><td>5.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>66</td><td>29</td><td>5.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>66</td><td>29</td><td>5.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>66</td><td>29</td><td>5.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>66</td><td>29</td><td>5.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>66</td><td>29</td><td>5.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>66</td><td>29</td><td>5.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	66	29	5.3	<lod< td=""><td>80</td><td>17</td><td>2.6</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	80	17	2.6	<lod< td=""></lod<>
MeFOSAA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>64</td><td>26</td><td>8.0</td><td>2.6</td><td>73</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td>2.5</td><td>77</td><td>16</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>64</td><td>26</td><td>8.0</td><td>2.6</td><td>73</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td>2.5</td><td>77</td><td>16</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>64</td><td>26</td><td>8.0</td><td>2.6</td><td>73</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td>2.5</td><td>77</td><td>16</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>64</td><td>26</td><td>8.0</td><td>2.6</td><td>73</td><td>20</td><td>5.1</td><td>2.5</td><td>77</td><td>16</td><td>5.1</td><td>1.6</td></lod<>	64	26	8.0	2.6	73	20	5.1	2.5	77	16	5.1	1.6
EtHxSAA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>100</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>100</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>100</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>100</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>100</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>100</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>100</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>100</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	100	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
EtFOSAA	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>63</td><td>30</td><td>5.0</td><td>2.2</td><td>66</td><td>23</td><td>7.4</td><td>3.5</td><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.1</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>63</td><td>30</td><td>5.0</td><td>2.2</td><td>66</td><td>23</td><td>7.4</td><td>3.5</td><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.1</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>63</td><td>30</td><td>5.0</td><td>2.2</td><td>66</td><td>23</td><td>7.4</td><td>3.5</td><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.1</td><td>0.4</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>63</td><td>30</td><td>5.0</td><td>2.2</td><td>66</td><td>23</td><td>7.4</td><td>3.5</td><td>77</td><td>18</td><td>4.1</td><td>0.4</td></lod<>	63	30	5.0	2.2	66	23	7.4	3.5	77	18	4.1	0.4
6:2 Dipap	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>59</td><td>35</td><td>5.0</td><td>1.3</td><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>2.9</td><td>0.6</td><td>84</td><td>13</td><td>2.2</td><td>0.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>59</td><td>35</td><td>5.0</td><td>1.3</td><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>2.9</td><td>0.6</td><td>84</td><td>13</td><td>2.2</td><td>0.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>59</td><td>35</td><td>5.0</td><td>1.3</td><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>2.9</td><td>0.6</td><td>84</td><td>13</td><td>2.2</td><td>0.7</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>59</td><td>35</td><td>5.0</td><td>1.3</td><td>81</td><td>15</td><td>2.9</td><td>0.6</td><td>84</td><td>13</td><td>2.2</td><td>0.7</td></lod<>	59	35	5.0	1.3	81	15	2.9	0.6	84	13	2.2	0.7

		Ра	pers			Tex	ktiles	
	Recovery (%)	RSD (%)	LOD (µg/m²)	LOQ (µg/m²)	Recovery (%)	RSD (%)	LOD (µg/m²)	LOQ (µg/m²)
LC-MS/MS	Analytes				-			
PFBA	74	5.9	0.056	0.18	87	4.2	0.066	0.21
PFPeA	110	8.4	0.052	0.17	90	5.8	0.066	0.22
PFHxA	78	12	0.059	0.20	89	4.1	0.029	0.091
PFHpA	97	11	0.039	0.13	87	7.8	0.081	0.26
PFOA	92	12	0.040	0.13	88	16	0.12	0.40
PFNA	92	4.8	0.028	0.089	88	4.4	0.081	0.26
PFDA	75	15	0.037	0.12	98	6.5	0.053	0.18
PFUdA	94	2.2	0.063	0.21	100	24	0.14	0.47
PFDoDA	79	6.5	0.024	0.076	93	5.1	0.029	0.096
PFTrDA	79	8.5	0.030	0.10	87	5.2	0.062	0.21
PFTeDA	73	12	0.035	0.11	85	7.1	0.066	0.21
FHEA	80	9.6	0.058	0.19	84	16	0.13	0.43
FOEA	120	9.1	0.052	0.17	96	6.8	0.12	0.38
FDEA	130	22	0.095	0.32	81	22	0.18	0.58
FHUEA	71	7.9	0.012	0.039	66	4.9	0.07	0.22
FOUEA	66	16.0	0.032	0.11	85	12	0.073	0.24
FPrPA	93	3.4	0.024	0.076	45	13	0.16	0.52
FPePA	70	6.5	0.03	0.11	54	2.4	0.086	0.28
FHpPa	69	11	0.034	0.11	80	3.4	0.093	0.31
PFBS	72	6.3	0.016	0.053	80	4.3	0.055	0.18
PFPeS	72	8.3	0.031	0.10	91	4.6	0.050	0.17
PFHxS	78	4.6	0.035	0.11	83	3.5	0.076	0.25
PFHpS	71	10	0.029	0.094	77	9.2	0.079	0.26
PFOS	90	15	0.038	0.12	92	3.0	0.15	0.48
PFNS	62	6.8	0.034	0.11	62	6.8	0.059	0.19
PFDS	72	6.2	0.027	0.090	68	9.1	0.054	0.17
4:2 FtS	71	4.8	0.028	0.092	90	3.8	0.048	0.16
6:2 FtS	76	2.9	0.019	0.063	94	5.6	0.044	0.14
8:2 FtS	120	6.5	0.016	0.055	86	4.8	0.039	0.13
FOSAA	36	5.3	0.023	0.077	170	5.9	0.029	0.096
MeFBSAA	74	8.4	0.021	0.069	87	4.3	0.082	0.27
MeFOSAA	78	5.5	0.025	0.084	100	1.6	0.047	0.15
EtFOSAA	77	6.0	0.010	0.034	87	2.3	0.045	0.15
6:6 PFPIA	42	3.1	0.016	0.053	76	4.4	0.044	0.15
8:8 PFPIA	46	11	0.022	0.070	54	12	0.080	0.26
6:2 diPAP	81	8.3	0.022	0.070	88	8.4	0.023	0.073
8:2 diPAP	120	17	0.070	0.23	110	15	0.056	0.18

Table 2.7. Accuracy (% Recovery), Precision (% RSD), and Limit of Detection and
Quantification for Papers and Textiles

Table 2.8. Known precursors % recovery (on a total nmole basis), number of perfluorinated carbons in chain, and distribution of carbon chain length after the TOP Assay (no paper or textile present).

		Number of	Distribution
		perfluorinated	of carbon
	Mass	carbons in	PFCA chain
Known	recovered	precursor	length after
Precursor	(%)	chain	oxidation
6:6PFPi	17	6	C5-C6
FOUEA	3.8	8	C5-C8
8:2 diPAP	45	8	C4-C9
FHUEA	41	6	C4-C7
6:2 FtS	36	6	C4-C7
6:2 diPAP	3.4	6	C5-C8
SAmPaP	0.0	8	none

Table 2.9. Concentrations ($\mu g/m^2$) of Individual Volatile and Ionic PFASs analyzed by GC-MS and LC-MS/MS.Individual Ionic PFASs in $\mu g/m^2$

					Pap	pers								Textiles				
	MW	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
Individual PFASs (V	olatile)																	
6:2 FTOH	364.11	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th>18</th><th>14</th><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th>7.0</th><th>370</th><th><lod< th=""><th>2.1</th><th><lod< th=""><th>11</th><th>14000</th><th>130</th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th>18</th><th>14</th><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th>7.0</th><th>370</th><th><lod< th=""><th>2.1</th><th><lod< th=""><th>11</th><th>14000</th><th>130</th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th>18</th><th>14</th><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th>7.0</th><th>370</th><th><lod< th=""><th>2.1</th><th><lod< th=""><th>11</th><th>14000</th><th>130</th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th>18</th><th>14</th><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th>7.0</th><th>370</th><th><lod< th=""><th>2.1</th><th><lod< th=""><th>11</th><th>14000</th><th>130</th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	18	14	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th>7.0</th><th>370</th><th><lod< th=""><th>2.1</th><th><lod< th=""><th>11</th><th>14000</th><th>130</th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th>7.0</th><th>370</th><th><lod< th=""><th>2.1</th><th><lod< th=""><th>11</th><th>14000</th><th>130</th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th>7.0</th><th>370</th><th><lod< th=""><th>2.1</th><th><lod< th=""><th>11</th><th>14000</th><th>130</th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	7.0	370	<lod< th=""><th>2.1</th><th><lod< th=""><th>11</th><th>14000</th><th>130</th></lod<></th></lod<>	2.1	<lod< th=""><th>11</th><th>14000</th><th>130</th></lod<>	11	14000	130
8:2 FTOH	464.12	30	3.6	<lod< td=""><td>9.1</td><td>16</td><td>12</td><td>25</td><td><lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>130</td><td>990</td><td>170</td><td>73</td><td>22</td><td>1300</td><td>340</td><td>170</td></lod<></td></lod<>	9.1	16	12	25	<lod< td=""><td>72</td><td>130</td><td>990</td><td>170</td><td>73</td><td>22</td><td>1300</td><td>340</td><td>170</td></lod<>	72	130	990	170	73	22	1300	340	170
10:2 FTOH	564.13	12	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>15</td><td>3.0</td><td>10</td><td><lod< td=""><td>37</td><td>42</td><td>490</td><td>70</td><td>4.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>330</td><td>140</td><td>110</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>15</td><td>3.0</td><td>10</td><td><lod< td=""><td>37</td><td>42</td><td>490</td><td>70</td><td>4.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>330</td><td>140</td><td>110</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>15</td><td>3.0</td><td>10</td><td><lod< td=""><td>37</td><td>42</td><td>490</td><td>70</td><td>4.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>330</td><td>140</td><td>110</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	15	3.0	10	<lod< td=""><td>37</td><td>42</td><td>490</td><td>70</td><td>4.3</td><td><lod< td=""><td>330</td><td>140</td><td>110</td></lod<></td></lod<>	37	42	490	70	4.3	<lod< td=""><td>330</td><td>140</td><td>110</td></lod<>	330	140	110
N-EtFOSE	571.25	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>3100</td></lod<>	3100
Individual Ionic PFA	ASs (Non-Vola	atile)																
PFBA	213.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>19</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	19	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.37</td><td>4.7</td><td>39</td></lod<>	0.37	4.7	39
PFPeA	263.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td>7.0</td><td>14</td></lod<>	0.25	7.0	14
PFHxA	313.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>13</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.16</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>13</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.16</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>13</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.16</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>13</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.16</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	0.27	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>13</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.16</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>13</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.16</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	13	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.16</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.16</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.16	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.90</td><td>31</td><td>100</td></lod<>	0.90	31	100
PFHpA	363.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td>8.8</td><td>67</td></lod<>	0.31	8.8	67
PFOA	413.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.45</td><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.45	<lod< td=""><td>3.3</td><td><loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<></td></lod<>	3.3	<loq< td=""><td>110</td></loq<>	110
PFNA	463.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td>0.93</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	0.23	0.93	<loq< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.17	<loq< td=""><td>0.24</td><td>7.5</td></loq<>	0.24	7.5
PFDA	513.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.30</td><td>0.18</td><td>1.1</td><td><loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.30	0.18	1.1	<loq< td=""><td>3.5</td></loq<>	3.5
PFUnDA	563.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.57</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.57	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>1.4</td></lod<>	1.4
PFDoDA	613.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.14</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	0.14	<loq< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.25	<loq< td=""><td>1.5</td></loq<>	1.5
PFTriDA	663.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<>	1.8
PFTeDA	713.95	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>2.9</td></lod<>	2.9
PFPeDA	763.95	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
PFHxDA	813.95	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.45</td></lod<>	0.45
PFHpDA	863.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
PFOcDA	913.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.47</td></lod<>	0.47

FBEA	278.99	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""></lod<>
FHEA	377.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>3.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	3.8	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.82</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	0.82	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FOEA	477.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.27</td><td>0.77</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.27	0.77	<lod< td=""><td>0.32</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	0.32	0.59	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""></loq<>
FDEA	577.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FBUEA	257.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FHUEA	357.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.12</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.12</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.12</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.12</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.12	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>4.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	4.1	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>1.2</td><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	1.2	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FOUEA	457.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FDUEA	557.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FPrPA	242.02	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FPePA	342.01	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.42	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FHpPA	442.01	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FNPA	542.01	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
PFEtS	199.95	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
PFPrS	249.95	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.65</td></lod<>	0.65
PFBS	299.95	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>4.5</td></loq<>	4.5
PFPS	349.95	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>3.7</td></lod<>	3.7
PFHxS	399.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td>11</td></loq<>	11
PFHpS	449.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>6.3</td></lod<>	6.3
PFOS	499.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.69</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.69	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>190</td></lod<>	190
PFNS	549.93	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
PFDS	599.93	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>4.2</td></lod<>	4.2
4:2 FtS	327.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""></loq<>
6:2 FtS	427.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.42</td></lod<>	0.42
8:2 FtS	527.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.49</td></loq<>	0.49
10:2 FtS	627.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""></loq<>
FBSAA	356.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FPeSAA	406.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>

FHxSAA	456.97	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<></th></lod<>	<lod< th=""><th><loq< th=""></loq<></th></lod<>	<loq< th=""></loq<>
FHpSAA	506.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
FOSAA	556.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>6.6</td></lod<>	6.6
MeFBSAA	370.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""></loq<>
MeFPeSAA	420.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
MeFHxSAA	470.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>3.3</td></lod<>	3.3
MeFHpSAA	520.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>1.8</td></lod<>	1.8
MeFOSAA	570.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>17</td></lod<>	17
EtFBSAA	385.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
EtFPeSAA	435.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
EtFHxSAA	485.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
EtFHpSAA	534.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
EtFOSAA	584.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.71</td></lod<>	0.71
4:4 PFPiA	501.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
4:6 PFPiA	601.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
6:6 PFPiA	701.93	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
6:8 PFPiA	801.92	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
8:8 PFPiA	901.92	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
4:2 diPAP	590.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
4:2/6:2 diPAP	689.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
6:2 diPAP	789.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.17</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	0.17	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.31	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>8.8</td></lod<>	8.8
6:2/8:2 diPAP	889.98	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.73</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.73</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.73</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.73</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.73</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.73	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.43</td></lod<>	0.43
8:2 diPAP	989.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.35</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.35</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.35</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.35</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.35</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.35	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>3.9</td></lod<>	3.9
8:2/10:2 diPAP	1089.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.31</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.31	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td>3.3</td></loq<>	3.3
10:2 diPAP	1189.96	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.25</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	0.25	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>1.6</td></lod<>	1.6
6:2 FTMAP	921.99	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>1.1</td></lod<>	1.1
6:2/8:2 FTMAP	1021.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""></loq<>

JOD L	11	- f 1 - i	4															
SAmPAP	1203.98	<loq< td=""><td>0.39</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	0.39	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>4.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>4.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	4.8	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""></loq<>
10:2 FTMAP	1321.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
8:2/10:2 FTMAP	1221.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>
8:2 FTMAP	1121.98	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""></lod<>

<LOD=Less than limit of detection

<LOQ=Less than limit of quantification Bolded number=above quantification

						Net Pro	oduction ((Δ) of ioni	ic PFASs	after TOI	P Assay in	$\mu g/m^2$						
					Pap	bers								Textiles				
	MW	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8^{a}	9
PFBA	213.99	0.81	<lod< td=""><td>0.40</td><td><lod< td=""><td>42</td><td>29</td><td><lod< td=""><td>600</td><td><lod< td=""><td>6.8</td><td>40</td><td>2.5</td><td>2.8</td><td>1.8</td><td>6.1</td><td>16</td><td>781</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.40	<lod< td=""><td>42</td><td>29</td><td><lod< td=""><td>600</td><td><lod< td=""><td>6.8</td><td>40</td><td>2.5</td><td>2.8</td><td>1.8</td><td>6.1</td><td>16</td><td>781</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	42	29	<lod< td=""><td>600</td><td><lod< td=""><td>6.8</td><td>40</td><td>2.5</td><td>2.8</td><td>1.8</td><td>6.1</td><td>16</td><td>781</td></lod<></td></lod<>	600	<lod< td=""><td>6.8</td><td>40</td><td>2.5</td><td>2.8</td><td>1.8</td><td>6.1</td><td>16</td><td>781</td></lod<>	6.8	40	2.5	2.8	1.8	6.1	16	781
PFPeA	263.98	2.2	<lod< td=""><td>1.0</td><td><lod< td=""><td>100</td><td>70</td><td>1.8</td><td>1300</td><td>1.6</td><td>12</td><td>84</td><td>5.6</td><td>6.4</td><td>4.8</td><td>15</td><td>69</td><td>1186</td></lod<></td></lod<>	1.0	<lod< td=""><td>100</td><td>70</td><td>1.8</td><td>1300</td><td>1.6</td><td>12</td><td>84</td><td>5.6</td><td>6.4</td><td>4.8</td><td>15</td><td>69</td><td>1186</td></lod<>	100	70	1.8	1300	1.6	12	84	5.6	6.4	4.8	15	69	1186
PFHxA	313.98	0.23	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>13</td><td>6.9</td><td>1.7</td><td>420</td><td>1.3</td><td>24</td><td>98</td><td>11</td><td>11</td><td>6.7</td><td>21</td><td>0.3</td><td>1900</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>13</td><td>6.9</td><td>1.7</td><td>420</td><td>1.3</td><td>24</td><td>98</td><td>11</td><td>11</td><td>6.7</td><td>21</td><td>0.3</td><td>1900</td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>13</td><td>6.9</td><td>1.7</td><td>420</td><td>1.3</td><td>24</td><td>98</td><td>11</td><td>11</td><td>6.7</td><td>21</td><td>0.3</td><td>1900</td></lod<>	13	6.9	1.7	420	1.3	24	98	11	11	6.7	21	0.3	1900
PFHpA	363.98	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.57</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td>19</td><td>3.5</td><td>59</td><td>170</td><td>20</td><td>21</td><td>11</td><td>52</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>1633</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.57</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td>19</td><td>3.5</td><td>59</td><td>170</td><td>20</td><td>21</td><td>11</td><td>52</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>1633</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.57</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td>19</td><td>3.5</td><td>59</td><td>170</td><td>20</td><td>21</td><td>11</td><td>52</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>1633</td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.57</td><td>0.59</td><td><loq< td=""><td>19</td><td>3.5</td><td>59</td><td>170</td><td>20</td><td>21</td><td>11</td><td>52</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>1633</td></loq<></td></lod<>	0.57	0.59	<loq< td=""><td>19</td><td>3.5</td><td>59</td><td>170</td><td>20</td><td>21</td><td>11</td><td>52</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>1633</td></loq<>	19	3.5	59	170	20	21	11	52	0.0 ^b	1633
PFOA	413.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.9</td><td>17</td><td>43</td><td>6.9</td><td>7.8</td><td>5.9</td><td>22</td><td>0.54</td><td>14890</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.9</td><td>17</td><td>43</td><td>6.9</td><td>7.8</td><td>5.9</td><td>22</td><td>0.54</td><td>14890</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.9</td><td>17</td><td>43</td><td>6.9</td><td>7.8</td><td>5.9</td><td>22</td><td>0.54</td><td>14890</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.9</td><td>17</td><td>43</td><td>6.9</td><td>7.8</td><td>5.9</td><td>22</td><td>0.54</td><td>14890</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.9</td><td>17</td><td>43</td><td>6.9</td><td>7.8</td><td>5.9</td><td>22</td><td>0.54</td><td>14890</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.9</td><td>17</td><td>43</td><td>6.9</td><td>7.8</td><td>5.9</td><td>22</td><td>0.54</td><td>14890</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.9</td><td>17</td><td>43</td><td>6.9</td><td>7.8</td><td>5.9</td><td>22</td><td>0.54</td><td>14890</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>1.9</td><td>17</td><td>43</td><td>6.9</td><td>7.8</td><td>5.9</td><td>22</td><td>0.54</td><td>14890</td></lod<>	1.9	17	43	6.9	7.8	5.9	22	0.54	14890
PFNA	463.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td>1.5</td><td>22</td><td>41</td><td>4.1</td><td>11</td><td>6.1</td><td>20</td><td><lod< td=""><td>222</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td>1.5</td><td>22</td><td>41</td><td>4.1</td><td>11</td><td>6.1</td><td>20</td><td><lod< td=""><td>222</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td>1.5</td><td>22</td><td>41</td><td>4.1</td><td>11</td><td>6.1</td><td>20</td><td><lod< td=""><td>222</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td>1.5</td><td>22</td><td>41</td><td>4.1</td><td>11</td><td>6.1</td><td>20</td><td><lod< td=""><td>222</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td>1.5</td><td>22</td><td>41</td><td>4.1</td><td>11</td><td>6.1</td><td>20</td><td><lod< td=""><td>222</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.42</td><td><lod< td=""><td>1.5</td><td>22</td><td>41</td><td>4.1</td><td>11</td><td>6.1</td><td>20</td><td><lod< td=""><td>222</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.42	<lod< td=""><td>1.5</td><td>22</td><td>41</td><td>4.1</td><td>11</td><td>6.1</td><td>20</td><td><lod< td=""><td>222</td></lod<></td></lod<>	1.5	22	41	4.1	11	6.1	20	<lod< td=""><td>222</td></lod<>	222
PFDA	513.97	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.88</td><td>8.8</td><td>6.8</td><td>1.2</td><td>6.3</td><td>2.7</td><td>13</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>47</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.88</td><td>8.8</td><td>6.8</td><td>1.2</td><td>6.3</td><td>2.7</td><td>13</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>47</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.88</td><td>8.8</td><td>6.8</td><td>1.2</td><td>6.3</td><td>2.7</td><td>13</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>47</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.88</td><td>8.8</td><td>6.8</td><td>1.2</td><td>6.3</td><td>2.7</td><td>13</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>47</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.88</td><td>8.8</td><td>6.8</td><td>1.2</td><td>6.3</td><td>2.7</td><td>13</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>47</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.88</td><td>8.8</td><td>6.8</td><td>1.2</td><td>6.3</td><td>2.7</td><td>13</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>47</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.88</td><td>8.8</td><td>6.8</td><td>1.2</td><td>6.3</td><td>2.7</td><td>13</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>47</td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.88</td><td>8.8</td><td>6.8</td><td>1.2</td><td>6.3</td><td>2.7</td><td>13</td><td>0.0^b</td><td>47</td></lod<>	0.88	8.8	6.8	1.2	6.3	2.7	13	0.0 ^b	47
PFUnDA	563.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>6.5</td><td>0.82</td><td><loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>6.5</td><td>0.82</td><td><loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>6.5</td><td>0.82</td><td><loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>6.5</td><td>0.82</td><td><loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>6.5</td><td>0.82</td><td><loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>6.5</td><td>0.82</td><td><loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>6.5</td><td>0.82</td><td><loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>6.5</td><td>0.82</td><td><loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>6.5</td><td>0.82</td><td><loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	6.5	0.82	<loq< td=""><td>4.4</td><td>2.2</td><td>7.5</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<>	4.4	2.2	7.5	<lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<>	NC ^c
PFDoDA	613.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.40</td><td>3.9</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.40</td><td>3.9</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.40</td><td>3.9</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.40</td><td>3.9</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.40</td><td>3.9</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.40</td><td>3.9</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.40</td><td>3.9</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.40</td><td>3.9</td><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	0.40	3.9	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td>2.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>6.6</td><td><lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<></td></lod<>	2.8	1.1	6.6	<lod< td=""><td>25</td></lod<>	25
PFTriDA	663.96	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	1.8	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>1.4</td><td>0.48</td><td>1.8</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<>	1.4	0.48	1.8	<lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<>	NC ^c
PFTeDA	713.95	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.90</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.90</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.90</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.90</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.90</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.90</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.90</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.90</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.90</td><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.90	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.22</td><td>0.89</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></loq<>	0.22	0.89	<lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<>	NC ^c
PFPeDA	763.95	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<>	NC ^c
PFHxDA	813.95	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.61</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.61</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.61</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.61</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.61</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.61</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.61</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.61</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.61</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.61	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.73</td><td>0.20</td><td>0.67</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.73	0.20	0.67	<lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<>	NC ^c
PFHpDA	863.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>0.22</td><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.22	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""></loq<>
PFOcDA	913.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	<lod< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<></td></lod<>	<loq< td=""><td>0.41</td><td><lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></loq<>	0.41	<lod< td=""><td>0.23</td><td><lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.23	<lod< td=""><td>NC^c</td></lod<>	NC ^c
PFOS	499.94	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td><lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<></td></lod<>	<lod< td=""><td>160</td></lod<>	160
$\Sigma \ PFASs$																		
nmol																		
F/m^2		0.011	<loq< td=""><td>0.0046</td><td><loq< td=""><td>0.53</td><td>0.36</td><td>0.014</td><td>7.8</td><td>0.040</td><td>0.58</td><td>1.7</td><td>0.18</td><td>0.27</td><td>0.15</td><td>0.59</td><td>0.28</td><td>73</td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.0046	<loq< td=""><td>0.53</td><td>0.36</td><td>0.014</td><td>7.8</td><td>0.040</td><td>0.58</td><td>1.7</td><td>0.18</td><td>0.27</td><td>0.15</td><td>0.59</td><td>0.28</td><td>73</td></loq<>	0.53	0.36	0.014	7.8	0.040	0.58	1.7	0.18	0.27	0.15	0.59	0.28	73
Textile	8 had	2.2% n	on-con	verted	PFASs a	fter TO	P assay	/ (not sl	nown).									

Table 2.10. Ionic PFASs after TOP assay, described as net production of PFCAs and PFSAs.

^bThe quantity of PFHpA and PFDA showed no net production (Δ), and remained the same.

^cDue to larger dilutions done for the TOP assay analysis, these values fell below the LOQ and no net value could be computed (NC= not computed).

Table 2.10 (Continued)

<LOD=less than the limit of detection <LOQ=less than the limit of quantification MW=Molecular weight

Literature Cited

1. Vial, J.; Jardy, A., Experimental comparison of the different approaches to estimate LOD and LOQ of an HPLC method. Anal. Chem. 1999, 71, (14), 2672-2677.

2. van der Veen, I.; Weiss, J. M.; Hanning, A. C.; de Boer, J.; Leonards, P. E. G., Development and validation of a method for the quantification of extractable perfluoroalkyl acids (PFAAs) and perfluorooctane sulfonamide (FOSA) in textiles. Talanta 2016, 147, 8-15.

3. Barzen-Hanson, K. A.; Roberts, S. C.; Choyke, S.; Oetjen, K.; McAlees, A.; Riddell, N.; McCrindle, R.; Ferguson, P. L.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A., Discovery of 40 Classes of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Historical Aqueous Film-Forming Foams (AFFFs) and AFFFImpacted Groundwater. Environ. Sci. Technol. 2017, 51, (4), 2047-2057.

4. Ritter, E. E.; Dickinson, M. E.; Harron, J. P.; Lunderberg, D. M.; DeYoung, P. A.; Robel, A. E.; Field, J. A.; Peaslee, G. F., PIGE as a screening tool for Per- and polyfluorinated substances in papers and textiles. Nuclear Instruments and Methods in Physics Research Section B: Beam Interactions with Materials and Atoms 2017, 407, 47-54.

5. Blom, C.; Hanssen, L., Analysis of per-and polyfluorinated substances in articles. 2015.

6. Herzke, D.; Olsson, E.; Posner, S., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in consumer products in Norway - A pilot study. Chemosphere 2012, 88, (8), 980-987.

7. Mawn, M. P.; McKay, R. G.; Ryan, T. W.; Szostek, B.; Powley, C. R.; Buck, R. C., Determination of extractable perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) in water, sweat simulant, saliva simulant, and methanol from textile and carpet samples by LC/MS/MS. Analyst 2005, 130, (5), 670-678.

8. Poothong, S.; Boontanon, S. K.; Boontanon, N., Extraction procedure optimization for perfluorooctane sulfonate and perfluorooctanoic acid in food packaging determination by LCMS/MS. J. Environ. Sci. Heal. B 2013, 48, (10), 830-835.

9. Sinclair, E.; Kim, S. K.; Akinleye, H. B.; Kannan, K., Quantitation of gas-phase perfluoroalkyl surfactants and fluorotelomer alcohols released from nonstick cookware and microwave popcorn bags. Environ. Sci. Technol. 2007, 41, (4), 1180-1185.

10. Stadalius, M.; Connolly, P.; L'Empereur, K.; Flaherty, J. M.; Isemura, T.; Kaiser, M. A.; Knaup, W.; Noguchi, M., A method for the low-level (ng g(-1)) determination of perfluorooctanoate in paper and textile by liquid chromatography with tandem mass spectrometry. J. Chrom. A 2006, 1123, (1), 10-14. S19

11. Supreeyasunthorn, P.; Boontanon, S. K.; Boontanon, N., Perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) contamination from textiles. J. Environ. Sci. Health Part A-Toxic/Hazard. Subst. Environ. Eng. 2016, 51, (6), 472-477.

12. Xiao-Lan, H.; Hui-Qin, W.; Fang, H.; Xiao-Shan, L.; Zhi-Xin, Z., Determination of perfluorooctane sulphonate in fabric and leather by liquid chromatography-mass spectrometry. Chin. J. Anal. Chem. 2007, 35, (11), 1591-1595.

13. Ye, F.; Zushi, Y.; Masunaga, S., Survey of perfluoroalkyl (PFAAs) and their precursors present in Japanese consumer products. Chemosphere 2015, 127, 262-268.
14. Zabaleta, I.; Bizkarguenaga, E.; Bilbao, D.; Etxebarria, N.; Prieto, A.; Zuloaga, O., Fast and simple determination of perfluorinated compounds and their potential precursors in different packaging materials. Talanta 2016, 152, 353-363.

Chapter 3: Much Ado About (Almost) Nothing: Field Sampling Materials Unlikely Source of False Positives for Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Field Samples

Alix Robel,¹ Emerson Christie,¹ Graham Peaslee,² Jennifer Field,¹ Dorin Bogdan,³ Bill DiGuiseppi⁴

¹Department of Environmental and Molecular Toxicology, Oregon State University, Corvallis, OR ²Department of Physics, University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, IN ³AECOM, Atlanta, GA ⁴Jacobs, Denver, CO

Abstract

Per-and Polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) are used in numerous applications, including consumer products, oil and water repellents, and aqueous film-forming foams (AFFF). Repeat use of AFFF containing PFAS for fire-fighter training since the 1960s has resulted in a large number of military sites that are now impacted by PFASs, including perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoate (PFOA). Given the low EPA Drinking Water Health Advisory Value of 70 ng/L for PFOS and PFOA, it is imperative that activities related to collecting and shipping samples not contribute to measurable levels of PFOS, PFOA, or other PFAS in water samples. Both the Air Force and Navy offer guidance on sampling, but there are few data to support the selection of materials for sampling and shipping of water and soil/sediment samples. Many state and federal agencies in the US and abroad offer guidance on the selection of materials for sampling and shipping of water and soil/sediment samples, but few data actually exist to support the guidance, especially the numerous restrictions placed on materials and equipment used. In order to address the lack of data and to inform the selection and use of materials during field sampling, 66 materials used during four stages of groundwater sample collection were analyzed by liquid chromatography tandem mass spectrometry (LC-MS/MS) for 52 individual PFAS commonly found at AFFFcontaminated sites and for total fluorine by particle-induced gamma-ray emission (PIGE) spectroscopy. Only 15% of materials had quantifiable concentrations of PFASs by LC-MS/MS, whereas 35% of the materials were fluorinated, as indicated by PIGE. Given the nature of the materials that tested positive for PFAS, the low

concentrations present and the manner in which the materials are used in the field, no plausible scenarios support the potential for cross-contamination of groundwater, soil, and sediment from field sampling materials tested in this study.

Introduction

The occurrence of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in water sources used for drinking water^{1, 2} combined with toxicity evaluations, resulted in issuance of US EPA drinking water lifetime Health Advisory Levels (HAL) of 70 ng/L.³ California recently announced a Notification Levels for drinking water of 6.5 and 5.1 ng/L for PFOs and PFOA, respectively.⁴ The U.S. EPA's HAL and California's notification Limits are two orders of magnitude lower than the maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) for other common environmental contaminants (e.g., benzene 5,000 ng/L and vinyl chloride 2,000 ng/L)³⁻⁵. Given that ng/L concentrations are very low, combined with the ubiquitous nature of PFAS in our society from widespread usage, it is imperative to avoid creating false positives when collecting field samples, since detection of PFAS potentially has significant consequences for facility owners, the public, and other stakeholders.

Field sampling materials, especially fluorinated materials (e.g. comprised of polytetrafluoroethylene), can cause concern for false positives. For these reasons, many materials are listed as prohibited materials in guidance documents published by federal and civilian organizations, including the Navy,⁶ Army,⁷ and Australian organizations/entities including (CRCCare)⁸, as well as civilian organizations

(NGWA).⁹ However, to the best of our knowledge, the materials identified in guidance documents for exclusion are not based on published analytical data. Although there are data on PFASs associated with consumer products (e.g. papers, textiles),¹⁰⁻¹⁹}, few if any published data document PFAS on materials used in the field. Restrictions on sampling equipment (e.g., membrane interface probes (MIPs)) and materials including reusable ice packs, water-repellent field notebooks, indelible markers, sticky notes, and others increase the cost, time, and difficulty of sampling, yet with unknown benefit. Further, many materials that are prohibited from use in the field have no known direct contact with groundwater, sediment, or soil samples. Although an industry-standard level of care should keep most of those materials from ever contacting the sampled media, it is important to determine if materials that have quantifiable PFAS concentrations can realistically pose a risk for cross-contaminating field samples.

In this study, 66 materials associated with field sampling were collected between 2016 and 2019 and analyzed for 52 PFASs observed in AFFF impacted groundwater by liquid chromatography tandem mass spectrometry (LC-MS/MS), and for total fluorine by particle-induced gamma-ray emission (PIGE) spectroscopy. The materials tested include those representative of materials used during the four stages of sample collection: Group 1: used by field personnel prior to arriving at a field site, but that do not come in direct contact with samples; Group 2: used in the field during sampling or for staging a sampling event, but do not come in direct contact with samples; Group 3: used in the field and come in direct contact with field samples; and Group 4: used in the field for shipping, but that do not come in direct contact with field samples. Materials were extracted with methanol to obtain the maximum PFAS concentration associated with a material. Materials with PFAS were then considered in the context of their use in the field to determine if they pose a risk for cross-contaminating samples. The situation is analogous to human exposure; a pathway must exist for the contaminant to reach the receptor (field sample) to conclude that the source (field sampling material) can actually contribute to exposure (e.g., cross contamination).

Experimental Method

Field Materials Selection and Extraction

Field sampling and related materials were selected based upon the authors' knowledge of materials commonly used during field sampling campaigns. A total of 66 materials were collected by Oregon State University and the University of Notre Dame between 2016-2019 (Table 3.1, Table 3.2). Of those, 11 materials used for sampling of soils and sediments (Sample ID: 41-51, Table 3.1) were donated by Geoprobe Systems and shipped to Oregon State University.

During all sample handling, nitrile gloves were worn and changed between all samples. Swatches or larger sections of each material were cut from the original material using methanol-rinsed scissors and distributed into resealable PTFE-free plastic bags. Although no field blanks were collected, some samples collected by all participating organizations (Oregon State University, University of Notre Dame, and Geoprobe) were ND for all PFASs, indicating no PFAS contamination occurred during sample collection and shipping.

For dense plastic materials (Sample ID: 41-48, 50, 51), stainless steel cutters were used and methanol-rinsed between materials. Except for dense plastics, inks, and sealants, the sample mass was required to be 0.3 ± 0.25 g. For permanent ink from markers, a piece of copy paper known to ND for all analytes of interest was saturated with ink until the paper weighed an additional 0.3 ± 0.25 g. For the three sealants, a mass of 0.3 ± 0.25 g was weighed onto a piece of copy paper known to be ND for all analytes of interest, and allowed to dry before extraction. For dense plastics, surface area was used as the basis for sample preparation, and required to fall between 4.0 ± 0.5 cm². Both mass and surface area were recorded for all materials to capture differences in density and to report data in units of μ g/m². All cut materials were place into individual 15 mL polypropylene (PP) centrifuge tubes (VWR, Radnor, PA).

Materials were extracted as in Robel et al.¹¹ Briefly, 3.3 mL of heated methanol (60–65 °C) were added to the 15 mL polypropylene (PP) centrifuge tube, shaken on a wrist-action shaker at 10° of rotation (Burrell, Model 75, Pittsburgh, PA) for 10 min, and then centrifuged (Eppendorf, model 5810R, Hauppauge, NY) at 2808 g for 10 min. The supernatant was collected in a secondary centrifuge tube, and the process was repeated two additional times yielding roughly 7-9.9 mL total methanol and stored at -20 °C. After at least 24 h, all extracts were removed from -20 °C, immediately centrifuged for an additional 10 min at 2808 g. The final supernatant was transferred to a 10 mL volumetric flask and brought to volume with additional methanol and then stored in 15 mL PP centrifuge tubes. Extracts were prepared for analysis as follows: 60 μ L aliquots of extract were placed in PP autosampler vials, each spiked with 0.72 ng of all isotopically labeled standards (Table 3.2), and brought to a final volume of 1.5 mL with additional methanol.

Instrumental Analysis

LC-MS/MS

Extracts were analyzed by LC-MS/MS using two Zorbax DIOL guard columns (4.6 mm x 12.5 mm x 6 µm; Agilent, Santa Clara, CA), one Zorbax SIL guard column (4.6 mm x 12.5 mm x 6 µm; Agilent, Santa Clara, CA), and a Zorbax Eclipse Plus C18 analytical column (4.6 mm x 75 mm x 1.8 µm, Agilent, Santa Clara, CA) with an Agilent 1100 HPLC attached to a Triple-Quadrupole Detector MS/MS system (Waters Corporation Milford, MA). The injection volume for all extracts was 900 µL. The LC-MS/MS operating specifications were identical to those found in Robel et al.¹¹

Analyte identification and quantification, data quality tiers (quantitative, Qn; qualitative (Ql), and semi-quantitative (Sq)), and the process for generating whole method blanks and solvent blank are described in Robel et al (Table 3.2).¹¹ All process blanks and solvent blanks were required to fall below ½ LOQ. Analytical sequences contained a 5-7-point calibration curve over the linear range 10–10,000

ng/L, with the exception of 6:2 and 8:2 FTS, which gave a linear range of 10–5000 ng/L. Whole method recovery and precision (RSD) for the Qn PFAS ranged from 62 - 130 % and 2.2 - 16%, respectively.¹¹ Recovery of PFAS in the Ql data tier PFAS (Table 3.2; e.g. N-TAmP-FHxSA, 6:2 FtSAB) have not been determined because analytical standards are not commercially available. Instrumental LOQs were set as the lowest calibration standard, 0.45 μ g/m² for all analytes except for FOSA which was 2.2 μ g/m² for the 66 materials analyzed. The instrumental limit of detection (ND), was determined to be 3x less than the LOQ (0.15 μ g/m² for all analytes except for FOSA which was 0.75 μ g/m²).

PIGE

All materials were cut to a 2 x 2 cm² and adhered to an open-air stainless steel target ladder frame with a 1 cm² hole in the center using clear adhesive tape.¹⁸ For the three sealants, (Sample ID # 38-40, Table 3.1) 500 mg of each sealant was spread over pre-cut 2 x 2 cm² of copier paper (previously determined to be ND for total fluorine) with a methanol-washed spatula and then mounted to the stainless steel target ladder frame as above. For materials known to contain very high concentrations of total fluorine or be made of PTFE, a thin strip (< 2x2 cm²) was cut from the original material and mounted. PIGE analyses were performed as in Ritter et al.¹⁸ and Robel et al.¹¹ with a ND and LOQ of 2500 μ g F/m² and 8000 μ g F/m² for papers and dense plastics.

For each day of PIGE analysis performed, a series of inorganic sodium fluoride (Sigma Aldrich) standards mixed with cellulose nitrate powder (Sigma Aldrich) were also analyzed to give a calibration curve relating the signal sensitivity to external standards. Normalization between different days was performed by normalizing the data to this calibration curve for each day. The calibration curve was linear in each case, but the slope varies by a few percent typically depending on the beam delivery parameters of the particular day of analysis. Roughly 10% of the materials were analyzed in duplicate and gave <10 % difference in concentration.

Results and Discussion

PFAS Composition and Concentration

Although 52 PFASs were included in analysis (Table 3.2), only 12 PFAS were observed at concentrations \geq LOQ (Table 3.1). The total fluorine concentration range of all materials was ND to 56,000,000 ± 11,000,000 µgF/m². Only 10 out of 66 (15%) materials gave quantifiable (> LOQ) concentrations of individual PFASs, while 23 out of 66 (35%) of the materials gave quantifiable levels of total fluorine by PIGE. The difference between the total fluorine and the sum of individual PFAS obtained by methanol extraction is likely a result of the presence of fluorinated polymers.^{11, 20}

The concentrations of perfluoroalkyl carboxylates (PFCAs) and perfluoroalkyl sulfonates obtained by methanol extraction and total fluorine by PIGE were within the range observed by others.^{10, 11, 14, 18, 19, 21} Even though leaching by water is

documented for select materials, ²² there must be direct contact between the field material and water sample as well as sufficient time for PFAS transfer from the material to achieve cross contamination by a leaching mechanism. In addition, leaching is likely impacted by a number of factors including temperature, time, and water chemistry. For this reason, extraction with methanol was selected to obtain the maximum PFAS concentration(s) associated with a material. The maximum concentrations are then used with simplifying assumptions to examine the plausibility of cross contaminating field samples.

Group 1 is composed of five materials that are potentially used by field personnel prior to arriving at a field site, but that do not come in direct contact with samples. The dryer sheets were of specific interest since guidance documents indicate that no personal care products, including dryer sheets should be used by field personnel.^{4, 6-8, 23, 24} The three dryer sheets were ND for PFAS and total fluorine. The packaging of the first-aid bandage gave quantifiable PFHxA. In contrast, the wrapper around the bandage gave the greatest number (six) of PFAS. Four PFCAs (PFBA, PFHxA, PFHpA, and PFOA) were present as a homologous series with branched and linear isomers evident for PFHpA and PFOA, (Table 3.1) which indicates manufacture by electrochemical fluorination (ECF).²⁵ In addition, PFBS and branched and linear PFOS were observed, again consistent with ECF chemistry. The First Aid bandage packaging and wrapper also gave measurable concentrations of total fluorine by PIGE. Although the first aid bandage materials in Group 1 tested positive for PFAS, there is no direct pathway for the material to come in direct contact with samples since field personnel wear gloves during sampling and shipping. Implausibly, one would have to put an entire bandage wrapper *directly* into a 1 L water sample and the PFOS could have to completely desorb in order to reach a maximum PFOS concentration of 27.5 ng/L.

Group 2 includes 24 materials that are used in the field when staging a sampling event, but are not used when actively sampling and thus, do not come in direct contact with samples. Materials in this group included PTFE tape, aluminum foil, lab tissues, labels, paper towels, various papers, adhesive note pads, and plastic shovel packaging. Six materials in Group 2 gave concentrations >LOQ for PFAS, while eight gave total fluorine >LOQ (Table 3.1). Both PTFE tape 1 and 2 had very high total fluorine, which was off scale in the case of PTFE tape 2. In contrast, PTFE tape 1 gave no PFAS >LOQ and PTFE tape 2 gave PFOA ($4.4 \mu g/m^2$) and <LOQ for PFAS and PFOS (Table 3.1). Of the three aluminum foils tested, only the non-stick aluminum foil had detectable PFAS with PFOA ($27 \mu g/m^2$) and PFBS ($4.5 \mu g/m^2$). However, the non-stick aluminum foil was <LOQ total fluorine, which indicates that the PFAS concentration was too low to be quantified by PIGE. The other two aluminum foils were ND for PFAS and ND for total fluorine.

Of the four lab tissues and packaging products tested, only tissue 3 gave a detectable PFAS concentration of 1.7 μ g/m² PFBS (Table 3.1). Tissues 1 and 3 and the tissue packaging gave <LOQ total fluorine (Table 3.1). Only one label backing, which is a portion of the non-stick sheet beneath the label, had the only 6:2 and 8:2

FTSs detected in this study (Table 3.1). In contrast, all four label materials tested positive (\geq LOQ) for total fluorine by PIGE (Table 3.1). Although FTSs are typically observed in AFFF impacted groundwater,²⁶⁻³¹ FTSs were previously reported papers and textiles before. ^{10, 11, 15, 32, 33} Three of four paper towel materials had either quantifiable PFOS (4.9 µg/m²; Paper towel 1) or < LOQ PFOS (Table 3.1), and three of the four were <LOQ for total fluorine (Table 3.1). All 3 of these paper towel types were advertised as having some measure of "recycled content", which could contribute to PFAS content in the product.^{11, 20} Paper towels, specifically listed as containing recycled content or that are chemically treated are listed on some guidance documents.²³

While the waterproof paper was ND or <LOQ for PFAS, the lab notebook paper had measurable concentrations of PFHxA (1.4 μ g/m²) and PFOS (3.8 μ g/m²), but was <LOQ for PFHpA, PFOA, and PFHxS and ND for all others (Table 3.1). Finally, the plastic shovel packaging material was ND for PFAS but gave the measured highest concentration of total fluorine by PIGE in Group 2 (370,000 ± 45,000 μ g F/m²) and the third highest of any material, second only to the PTFE tapes.

In terms of current sampling guidance, PTFE tape, waterproof notebook, lab notebook paper, and plastic binder covers are all listed as prohibited items on guidance documents.^{4, 6-8, 23, 24} As indicated for Group 2, none of the materials (e.g., paper towel, bound notebook paper, lab tissues, and aluminum foil) are likely to come into direct contact with groundwater, sediment, or soil samples. Thus, while it remains prudent to exclude material manufactured with PTFE, the data do not support the exclusion of Group 2 materials during field sampling for PFAS.

Group 3 materials are used in the field and come in direct contact with groundwater or soil/sediment when sampling. Materials in Group 3 included nitrile gloves (and glove packaging), sealants used in well development, and soil sampling materials. Of the 22 materials tested, only nitrile glove 6 had a quantifiable (5 μ g/m²) concentration of N-TAmP-FPeSA, but was ND for total fluorine (Table 3.1). In contrast, the packaging of nitrile glove 1 and 2 had total fluorine but either ND or <LOQ for PFAS (Table 3.1).

Because N-TAmP-FPeSA is present in both branched and linear forms, it derives from electrofluorination chemistry. It is not known if N-TAmP-FPeSA is a chemical in commerce or an unintended product of PFAS or fluoropolymer production. Evidence for N-TAmP-FPeSA in nitrile gloves indicates that it may be a chemical in commerce and occur in other consumer products. To the best of our knowledge, N-TAmP-FPePA has been observed in AFFF impacted groundwater,²⁸ but this is the first report of N-TAmP-FPePA in consumer products.

The well sealants and all but three soil sampling materials were all ND for PFAS. The three materials used for soil and sediment that gave <LOQ for some PFAS included the PVC screen, MIP membrane, and PVC liner (Table 3.1). In contrast, eight of the 11 materials for soil and sediment sampling were positive for

total fluorine and the MIP membrane, which is constructed of PTFE material, gave total fluorine that was off scale (Table 3.1).

Guidance documents³⁴ recommend frequent changing of gloves in the field to minimize PFAS contamination. This recommendation is prudent, not because nitrile gloves have background PFAS (Table 3.1), but because they may come in direct contact with one or more field samples and have the potential to transfer PFAS from one sample to another. Of the materials included in Group 3, only the MIP, which is constructed of PTFE, is prohibited materials on guidance documents.^{4, 6-8, 23, 24} However, none of the materials in Group 3 have concentrations for the commonly measured PFAS that are >LOQ. Thus, while the materials potentially come in direct contact with field samples, they are unlikely to impact measured PFAS concentrations in field samples.

Group 4 materials are used in the field and are externally applied to or surround sample containers and include: elastic sealing film, permanent marker ink, plastic bags, various tapes, and reusable cold packs. Of the 15 materials tested, only two gave quantitative concentrations of PFAS (83 μ g/m² PFOA in marker ink 2 and 0.77 μ g/m² PFBS in duct tape 2; Table 3.1), and five materials gave quantitative concentrations of total fluorine (Table 3.1).

None of the Group 4 materials come in *direct* contact with groundwater, soil, or sediment samples. To examine the potential for cross contamination, reusable cold

packs were selected as an example because they are convenient, reusable, and are more "green" than packing non-reusable plastic bags with ice. Despite the positive attributes, reusable cold packs are listed.^{4, 6, 7, 23} as prohibited items in guidance documents. Among the Group 4 materials, all five cold packs were either ND or <LOQ for PFAS. The plausibility of cross contaminating a water sample with cold pack number 3 (Table 3.1), which was <LOQ for PFOA, was estimated. An assumed concentration equivalent to $\frac{1}{2}$ of the LOQ (0.225 μ g/m²) was multiplied by the estimated area of a typical cold pack (e.g., $15x15 \text{ cm}^2$ for each of two sides), which gave a maximum of $0.0103 \,\mu g$ PFOA. If the entire cold pack was placed *directly into* the one liter of water sample, and all the PFOA transferred, a maximum concentration of 10.3 ng/L PFOA would be achieved. Not only is this an implausible scenario, but when cold packs are used in field shipping coolers, excess water that could serve as a transfer medium is negligible. Furthermore, guidance documents indicate that sample containers should be shipped in secondary containment (e.g., plastic bag) before being placed in coolers.^{4, 6, 7, 23} Thus, there are no direct exposure pathways by which cold packs that are applied externally to or surround sample containers can plausibly cross contaminate water samples. Such arguments can be applied to all Group 4 materials and to the implausibility of them contaminating sediment and soil samples.

Conclusions

Materials utilized by personnel before going to the field or used in the field for sampling and shipping should be selected and utilized with care. It remains prudent to avoid materials that are clearly labeled as made of PFTE or labeled as having nonstick properties. However, for materials in Groups 1, 2, and 4 that are ND or <LOQ for PFAS, there are no plausible routes of exposure to support published sampling guidance documents that prohibit these materials from use.

Of the ten materials that >LOQ for individual PFAS, three (30%) were packaging and of 25 materials that gave >LOQ total fluorine, six materials (24%) were packaging. Thus, while only food packaging is addressed in guidance documents, packaging as a whole is not addressed and represents a fraction of materials used at field sites that have associated PFAS. However, as illustrated, handling of packaging in the field is unlikely to result in false positives for PFAS in field samples.

Nine out of 11 materials that tested positive for individual PFAS were also positive for total fluorine by PIGE, which indicates that PFAS are associated with fluorinated materials. Only two materials that tested positive for PFAS did not give total fluorine above the ND (2,500 μ g F/m²), which is higher than the ND of LC-MS/MS (0.14 μ g/m²). Thus, it is possible to have detectable PFAS on materials that are too low to be detected by PIGE. Despite its relative ease and lower cost, PIGE gave a higher frequency of detection among the field materials, which indicates that total fluorine is not a surrogate for individual PFAS that can be potentially transferred to field samples. However, it is possible that even with 52 analytes in the LC-MS/MS analysis used in this study, more PFASs were present in the materials but not captured. Non-target analysis by LC-high resolution mass spectrometry could potentially reveal other PFASs present in field sampling materials, but was outside of the scope of this study.

Although C8 chain length PFAS were voluntarily phased out³⁵ prior the purchase of the materials in this study which were purchased between 2016 and 2019, C8 chain lengths in the form of PFOA, PFOS, and 8:2 FTS (Table1) occurred in seven out of the ten materials that were >LOQ for individual PFAS. Three materials had PFAS generated by ECF chemistry as indicated by branched and linear PFOS and PFCAs, including PFHpA and PFOA. It is unclear if the ECF and C8 PFAS are due to materials that were produced prior to the 3M and C8 Stewardship phase outs but not sold until 2016-2019, or the result of imported material from countries still employing ECF and C8 chemistry or the inclusion of older recycled content.

Acknowledgements

This work was made possible through support of: The U.S. Navy (ESTCP ER-201633) and AECOM (AFCEE BAA-12-001), Oregon State University, and the CH2MHill/Jacobs Innovation Grant Program.

Table 3.1. Concentrations of individual PFASs in μ g/m² and PIGE values in ug F/m² for field materials with **branched**, **linear** values separated when applicable (one number indicates all linear or for PFBA, PFPeA, and PFBS a lack of analytical separation between branched/linear). Bolded field material **Descriptions** indicate materials listed on a field sampling guidance document.^{4, 6, 7, 23}

	Sample ID	Description	PFBA	PFHxA	PFHpA	PFOA	PFDA	PFPrS	PFBS	PFHxS	PFOS	6:2 FtS	8:2 FtS	N- TAmP-	PIGE
b 0	1	Dryer sheet 1	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
taging	2	Dryer sheet 2	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
Pre-s	3	Dryer sheet3	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
oup 1:	4	First Aid packaging	ND	6	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{r} 120000 \pm \\ 41000 \end{array}$
Gre	5	First Aid adhesive wrapper*	0.88	0.68	0.22, 0.40	0.09, 3.9	ND	ND	1.1	ND	0.19, 0.32	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{c} 660000 \pm \\ 83000 \end{array}$
	6	PTFE tape 1	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>$56000000 \pm \\11000000$</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$56000000 \pm \\11000000$
	7	PTFE tape 2	ND	ND	ND	4.4	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td><loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>####</td></loq<></td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>####</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	####
ging	8	Aluminum foil 1 (non- stick)	ND	ND	ND	27	ND	ND	4.5	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>
2: Sta	9	Aluminum foil 2	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
roup	10	Aluminum foil 3	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
G	11	Lab tissue 1	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>
	12	Lab tissue 2	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	13	Lab tissue 3	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	1.7	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>
	14	Lab tissue 4	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	15	Lab tissue packaging	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>

	16	Label backing 1	ND	<loq< th=""><th>ND</th><th>ND</th><th><loq< th=""><th>ND</th><th>ND</th><th>ND</th><th>ND</th><th>2.7</th><th>5.7</th><th>ND</th><th>63000 ± 13000</th></loq<></th></loq<>	ND	ND	<loq< th=""><th>ND</th><th>ND</th><th>ND</th><th>ND</th><th>2.7</th><th>5.7</th><th>ND</th><th>63000 ± 13000</th></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	2.7	5.7	ND	63000 ± 13000
	17	Label backing 2	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>
	18	Label 1	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{r} 28000 \pm \\ 5400 \end{array}$
	19	Label 2	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{r} 22000 \pm \\ 5200 \end{array}$
	20	Paper towel adhesive	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>
	21	Paper towel 1	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	1.1, 3.8	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>
	22	Paper towel 2	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td><loq< td=""></loq<></td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>
	23	Paper towel 3	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	24	Water- proof notepaper	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>$\begin{array}{c} 16000 \pm \\ 3500 \end{array}$</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{c} 16000 \pm \\ 3500 \end{array}$
	25	Lab notebook	ND	1.4	<loq< td=""><td><loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td><loq< td=""><td>2.2, 1.7</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>57000 ± 10000</td></loq<></td></loq<></td></loq<>	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td><loq< td=""><td>2.2, 1.7</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>57000 ± 10000</td></loq<></td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>2.2, 1.7</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>57000 ± 10000</td></loq<>	2.2, 1.7	ND	ND	ND	57000 ± 10000
	26	Adhesive notepad 1	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>
	27	Adhesive notepad 2	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""></loq<>
	28	Binder plastic cover	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	29	Plastic shovel packaging	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{r} 370000 \pm \\ 45000 \end{array}$
dn	30	Nitrile glove	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
Grou 3:	31	Nitrile glove 2	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND

	32	Nitrile glove	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	33	Nitrile glove	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	34	Nitrile glove 5	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	35	Nitrile glove 6	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	5	ND
	36	Nitrile glove 1 packaging	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td><loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>$\begin{array}{r} 160000 \pm \\ 33000 \end{array}$</td></loq<></td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>$\begin{array}{r} 160000 \pm \\ 33000 \end{array}$</td></loq<>	ND	$\begin{array}{r} 160000 \pm \\ 33000 \end{array}$
	37	Nitrile glove 2 packaging	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td><loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>$\begin{array}{r} 270000 \pm \\ 95000 \end{array}$</td></loq<></td></loq<>	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>$\begin{array}{r} 270000 \pm \\ 95000 \end{array}$</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{r} 270000 \pm \\ 95000 \end{array}$
	38	putty caulk	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	39	clear resin	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	40	white glue	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	41	PVC liner	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{c} 10000 \pm \\ 3300 \end{array}$
	42	PVC liner	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{c} 10000 \pm \\ 2900 \end{array}$
	43	core catcher	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{c} 16000 \pm \\ 4100 \end{array}$
	44	vinyl end caps	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{c} 16000 \pm \\ 3800 \end{array}$
	45	Core catcher liner	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{c} 10000 \pm \\ 3100 \end{array}$
	46	PVC liner	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{c} 16000 \pm \\ 4200 \end{array}$
	47	PVC screen	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>$\begin{array}{c} 28000 \pm \\ 6200 \end{array}$</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{c} 28000 \pm \\ 6200 \end{array}$
	48	Polyethylene bladder	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	49	Core bag	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
	50	MIP Membrane	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td><loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>***</td></loq<></td></loq<>	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>***</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	***
	51	PVC liner	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
Gr ou	52	Elastic sealing film	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND

53	Marker ink 1 (permanent) 1	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
54	Marker ink 2 (permanent)	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{r} 16000 \pm \\ 5700 \end{array}$
	Marker ink													ND
55	3	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	
56 57	Plastic bag 1 Plastic bag 2	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND	ND ND
58	Tape 1 (electrical)	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	10000 ± 3300
59	Tape 2 (duct)	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	0.77	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
60	Tape 3 (duct)	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
61	Tape 4 (duct)	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
62	Cold pack 1 (outside)	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	250000 ± 33000
63	Cold pack 2 (outside)	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
64	Cold pack 3 (outside)	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>87000 ± 13000</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	87000 ± 13000
65	Cold pack 4 (outside)	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND
66	Cold pack 5 (outside)	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	ND	<loq< td=""><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>ND</td><td>$\begin{array}{r} 81000 \pm \\ 12000 \end{array}$</td></loq<>	ND	ND	ND	ND	$\begin{array}{r} 81000 \pm \\ 12000 \end{array}$
	LOQ	0.45	0.45	0.45	0.45	0.45	0.45	0.45	0.45	0.45	0.45	0.45	0.45	8000

* material density is lower than the average material density used to calculate the LOQ, thus the LOQ for this material is $0.22 \,\mu g/m^2$ #### The concentration of F was too high to measure by PIGE.

ND=Below the limit of detection. <LOQ=below the limit of quantification.

Literature Cited

1. Boiteux, V.; Dauchy, X.; Bach, C.; Colin, A.; Hemard, J.; Sagres, V.; Rosin, C.; Munoz, J. F., Concentrations and patterns of perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in a river and three drinking water treatment plants near and far from a major production source. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2017**, *583*, 393-400.

2. Hu, X. D. C.; Andrews, D. Q.; Lindstrom, A. B.; Bruton, T. A.; Schaider, L. A.; Grandjean, P.; Lohmann, R.; Carignan, C. C.; Blum, A.; Balan, S. A.; Higgins, C. P.; Sunderland, E. M., Detection of Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs) in US Drinking Water Linked to Industrial Sites, Military Fire Training Areas, and Wastewater Treatment Plants. *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2016**, *3*, (10), 344-350.

3. U.S. EPA Office of Water, Drinking Water Health Advisories for PFOA and PFOS. In https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/drinking-water-health-advisories-pfoa-and-pfos, 2017.

4. California Water Boards State Water Resources Control Board, Perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and Perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS). In

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/PFOA_PFOS.html, 2019.

5. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency *National Primary Drinking Water Regulations*; https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/national-primary-drinking-water-regulations, 2009.

6. U.S. Department of Defense Department of the Navy, Interim Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) Site Guidance for NAVFAC Remedial Project Managers (RPMs)/Septmber 2017 Update;

file:///C:/Users/robela/Downloads/US%20Navy%20PFAS%20GUIDANCE%20SEPT%2 02017.pdf, 2017.

7. U.S. Department of Defense Department of the Army, Army Guidance for Addressing Releases of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances;

file:///C:/Users/robela/Downloads/ARMY%20PFAS%20Guidance%20Signed%204-Sep%2018.pdf, 2018.

8. Cooperative Research Centre for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment *Assessment, management and remediation for PFOS and PFOA Part 4: application of HSLs and ESLs*; https://www.crccare.com/publications/technical-reports, 2017.

9. NGWA The Groundwater Association Press *Groundwater and PFAS: State of Knowledge and Practice*; https://www.ngwa.org/what-is-groundwater/groundwater-issues/Groundwater-and-PFAS, 2019.

10. Herzke, D.; Olsson, E.; Posner, S., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in consumer products in Norway – A pilot study. *Chemosphere* **2012**, *88*, (8), 980-987.

11. Robel, A. E.; Marshall, K.; Dickinson, M.; Lunderberg, D.; Butt, C.; Peaslee, G.; Stapleton, H. M.; Field, J. A., Closing the Mass Balance on Fluorine on Papers and Textiles. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (16), 9022-9032.

12. Tokranov, A. K.; Nishizawa, N.; Amadei, C. A.; Zenobio, J. E.; Pickard, H. M.; Allen, J. G.; Vecitis, C. D.; Sunderland, E. M., How Do We Measure Poly- and

Perfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs) at the Surface of Consumer Products? *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2019**, *6*, (1), 38-43.

13. Vestergren, R.; Herzke, D.; Wang, T.; Cousins, I. T., Are imported consumer products an important diffuse source of PFASs to the Norwegian environment? *Environ. Pollut.* **2015**, *198*, 223-230.

14. Ye, F.; Zushi, Y.; Masunaga, S., Survey of perfluoroalkyl (PFAAs) and their precursors present in Japanese consumer products. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *127*, 262-268.

15. Favreau, P.; Poncioni-Rothlisberger, C.; Place, B. J.; Bouchex-Bellomie, H.; Weber, A.; Tremp, J.; Field, J. A.; Kohler, M., Multianalyte profiling of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in liquid commercial products. *Chemosphere* **2017**, *171*, 491-501.

16. Rewerts, J. N.; Morre, J. T.; Simonich, S. L. M.; Field, J. A., In-Vial Extraction Large Volume Gas Chromatography Mass Spectrometry for Analysis of Volatile PFASs on Papers and Textiles. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2018**, *52*, (18), 10609-10616.

17. van der Veen, I.; Weiss, J. M.; Hanning, A. C.; de Boer, J.; Leonards, P. E. G., Development and validation of a method for the quantification of extractable perfluoroalkyl acids (PFAAs) and perfluorooctane sulfonamide (FOSA) in textiles. *Talanta* **2016**, *147*, 8-15.

18. Ritter, E. E.; Dickinson, M. E.; Harron, J. P.; Lunderberg, D. M.; DeYoung, P. A.; Robel, A. E.; Field, J. A.; Peaslee, G. F., PIGE as a screening tool for Per- and polyfluorinated substances in papers and textiles. *Nucl. Instrum. Meth. B.* **2017**, *407*, 47-54.

19. Schaider, L. A.; Balan, S. A.; Blum, A.; Andrews, D. Q.; Strynar, M. J.; Dickinson, M. E.; Lunderberg, D. M.; Lang, J. R.; Peaslee, G. F., Fluorinated Compounds in US Fast Food Packaging. *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2017**, *4*, (3), 105-111.

20. Kissa, E., *Fluorinated Surfactants and Repellants*. Second ed.; Marcel Dekker, Inc.: New York, 2001.

21. Vestergren, R.; Cousins, I. T.; Trudel, D.; Wormuth, M.; Scheringer, M., Estimating the contribution of precursor compounds in consumer exposure to PFOS and PFOA. *Chemosphere* **2008**, *73*, (10), 1617-1624.

22. Denly, L., Occhialini, J., Bassignani, P., Eberle, M., Rabah, N., Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances in environmental sampling products: Fact or fiction? *Remediation The Journal of Environmental Cleanup Costs, Technologies, & Techniques* **2019**, *29*, (4), 65-76.

23. Michigan Department of Environmental Quality For Homeowners - Private Residential Well PFAS Sampling Guidance;

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/pfasresponse/Residential_Well_PFAS_Sampling_ Guidance_For_Homeowners_637294_7.pdf, 2018.

24. New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services Sampling for Per- and Polyfluoroakyl Substances/Perfluorinated Chemicals (PFASs/PFCs) at Contaminated Sites; https://www.des.nh.gov/organization/commissioner/pfas.htm, 2016.

25. 3M, The Science of Organic Fluorochemistry. US EPA Document OPPT-2002-0043-0006. The document can be found: http://www.fluoridealert.org/wp-content/pesticides/pfos.fr.final.docket.0006.pdf **1999**.
26. Backe, W. J.; Day, T. C.; Field, J. A., Zwitterionic, cationic, and anionic fluorinated chemicals in aqueous film forming foam formulations and groundwater from us military bases by nonaqueous large-volume injection HPLC-MS/MS. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (10), 5226-5234.

27. Baduel, C.; Mueller, J. F.; Rotander, A.; Corfield, J.; Gomez-Ramos, M. J., Discovery of novel per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) at a fire fighting training ground and preliminary investigation of their fate and mobility. *Chemosphere* **2017**, *185*, 1030-1038.

28. Barzen-Hanson, K. A.; Roberts, S. C.; Choyke, S.; Oetjen, K.; McAlees, A.; Riddell, N.; McCrindle, R.; Ferguson, P. L.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A., Discovery of 40 Classes of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Historical Aqueous Film-Forming Foams (AFFFs) and AFFF-Impacted Groundwater. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (4), 2047-2057.

29. Filipovic, M.; Woldegiorgis, A.; Norstrom, K.; Bibi, M.; Lindberg, M.; Osteras, A. H., Historical usage of aqueous film forming foam: A case study of the widespread distribution of perfluoroalkyl acids from a military airport to groundwater, lakes, soils and fish. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 39-45.

30. Houtz, E. F.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A.; Sedlak, D. L., Persistence of perfluoroalkyl acid precursors in AFFF-impacted groundwater and soil. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (15), 8187-8195.

31. Place, B. J.; Field, J. A., Identification of novel fluorochemicals in aqueous filmforming foams used by the US military. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (13), 7120-7127.

32. Schultes, L.; Vestergren, R.; Volkova, K.; Westberg, E.; Jacobson, T.; Benskin, J. P., Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances and fluorine mass balance in cosmetic products from the Swedish market: implications for environmental emissions and human exposure. *Environmental Science: Processes & Impacts* **2018**, *20*, (12), 1680-1690.

33. Herzke, D.; Huber, S.; Bervoets, L.; D'Hollander, W.; Hajslova, J.; Pulkrabova, J.; Brambilla, G.; De Filippis, S. P.; Klenow, S.; Heinemeyer, G.; de Voogt, P.,

Perfluorinated alkylated substances in vegetables collected in four European countries; occurrence and human exposure estimations. *Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res.* **2013**, *20*, (11), 7930-7939.

34. Environmental Data Quality Working Group *Bottle Selection and other Sampling Considerations When Sampling for Per- and Poly-Fluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS)*; https://www.denix.osd.mil/edqw/home/what-s-new/unassigned/edqw-pfas-sampling-factsheet-rev-1-2-july-2017/.

35. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Pollution Prevention and Toxics 2010/15 PFOA Stewardship Program Guidance on Reporting Emissions and Product Content; https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2015-10/documents/pfoaguidance.pdf, 2006.

Supporting Information Much Ado About (Almost) Nothing: Field Sampling Materials Unlikely Source of False Positives for Per and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Field Samples

Alix Robel,¹ Emerson Christie,¹ Graham Peaslee,² Jennifer Field,¹ Dorin Bogdan,³ Bill DiGuiseppi⁴

¹Department of Environmental and Molecular Toxicology, Oregon State University, Corvallis, OR ²Department of Physics, University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, IN ³AECOM, Atlanta, GA ⁴Jacobs, Denver, CO

Experimental Methods Table 3.2. Material origin from Oregon State University (OSU), University of Notre Dame (UND), or Geoprobe Systems® (GP). Sample

	Sample ID	Description	Origin
	1	Dryer sheet type 1	OSU
ę	2	Dryer sheet type 2	OSU
: Pı ng	3	Dryer sheet type 3	UND
p 1 agi	4	First Aid cardboard	
St	4	packaging	UND
J	5	First Aid adhesive	
	5	wrapper	UND
	6	PTFE tape type 1	OSU
	7	PTFE tape type 2	OSU
	8	Foil type 1 (non-stick,	
	0	aluminum)	UND
	9	Foil type 2	OSU
	10	Foil type 3	OSU
	11	Lab tissue wipe type 1	UND
	12	Lab tissue wipe type 2	OSU
	13	Lab tissue wipe type 3	UND
	14	Lab tissue wipe type 4	OSU
	15	Lab tissue wipe	
F 0	15	packaging	UND
ing	16	Label backing type 1	OSU
tag	17	Label backing type 2	UND
S	18	Sticker label type 1	OSU
di	19	Sticker label type 2	UND
rou	20	Paper towel adhesive	UND
G	21	Paper towel type 1	UND
	22	Paper towel type 2	UND
	23	Paper towel type 3	UND
	24	Water-proof notepaper	
	27	(bound)	OSU
	25	Lab notebook page	
		(bound)	OSU
	26	Adhesive notepad type 1	UND
	27	Adhesive notepad type 2	UND
	28	Binder plastic (outside	1005
	-	cover)	UND
	29	Plastic snovel plastic	
н п -	20	packaging	
Dod	- 30	Nitrile glove type 1	USU

31	Nitrile glove type 2	OSU
32	Nitrile glove type 3	OSU
33	Nitrile glove type 4	UND
34	Nitrile glove type 5	UND
35	Nitrile glove type 6	UND
36	Nitrile glove packaging	
50	type 1	UND
37	Nitrile glove packaging	
20	type 2	UND
38	putty caulk	UND
39	clear resin	UND
40	white glue	UND
41	PVC liner 48"	GP*
42	PVC liner 48"	GP*
43	core catcher	GP*
44	vinyl end caps	GP*
45	Core catcher liner	GP*
46	PVC liner 60"	GP*
47	PVC screen	GP*
48	Polyethylene bladder	GP*
49	Core bag 8"	GP
50	MIP Membrane	GP*
51	PVC liner	GP*
52	Laboratory film	OSU
53	Marker ink (permanent)	
55	type 1	UND
54	Marker ink (permanent)	
51	type 2	UND
55	Marker ink (permanent)	
	type 3	UND
56	Plastic bag type I	UND
57	Plastic bag type 2	UND
58	Tape (electrical) type 1	OSU
59	Tape (duct) type 2	UND
60	Tape (duct) type 3	UND
61	Tape (duct) type 4	UND
62	Cold pack (outside) type	0.077
		OSU
63	Cold pack (outside) type	OCL
	L Cold pack (outside) type	020
64		OSU
	5	050

Group 4: Shipping

*Indicates materials considered dense plastics.

Analyte	Acronym	PI* (m/z)	CV* (V)	FI-1* (m/z)	CE* (eV)	FI- 2* (m/z)	CE* (eV)	Internal Standard	Calibration Reference	Data Quality*
Perfluorobutanoic acid	PFBA	213	20	169	8	n/a	n/a	[¹³ C ₄]PFBA	PFBA	Qn
Perfluoropentanoic acid	PFPeA	263	20	219	8	n/a	n/a	[¹³ C ₃]PFPeA	PFPeA	Qn
Perfluorohexanoic acid	PFHxA	313	20	269	8	119	22	[¹³ C ₂]PFHxA	PFHxA	Qn
Perfluoroheptanoic acid	PFHpA	363	20	319	8	169	14	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFHpA	Ql
Perfluorooctanoic acid	PFOA	413	20	369	8	169	18	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFOA	Qn
Perfluorononaoic acid	PFNA	463	22	429	8	169	18	[¹³ C ₅]PFNA	PFNA	Qn
Perfluorodecanoic acid	PFDA	513	22	469	10	269	18	[¹³ C ₂]PFDA	PFDA	Qn
Perfluoroundecanoic acid	PFUnDA	563	22	519	10	169	22	[¹³ C ₂]PFUnDA	PFUnDA	Qn
Perfluorododecanoic acid	PFDoDA	613	22	569	10	169	24	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFDoDA	Qn
Perfluorortridecanoic acid	PFTriDA	663	24	619	12	169	26	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFTriDA	Ql
Perfluorotetradecanoic acid	PFTeDA	713	24	669	12	169	26	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFTeDA	Ql
N-sulfo propyl perfluorobutane sulfonamide	SPr-FBSA	420	40	78	22	298	28	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFOA	Sq
N-sulfo propyl perfluoropentane sulfonamide	SPr-FPeSA	470	40	78	22	348	28	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFOA	Sq
N-sulfo propyl perfluorohexane sulfonamide	SPr-FHxSA	520	40	78	30	398	30	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFOA	Sq
Perfluoropropane sulfonate	PFPrS	249	46	80	32	99	26	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFBS	PFPrS	Ql
Perfluorobutane sulfonate	PFBS	299	50	80	32	99	26	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFBS	PFBS	Qn
Perfluoropentane sulfonate	PFPeS	349	56	80	34	99	28	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFHxS	PFHxS	Ql
Branched Perfluorohexane sulfonate	Br-PFHxS	399	58	80	36	99	28	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFHxS	PFHxS	Qn
Perfluorheptane sulfonate	PFHpS	449	64	80	46	99	32	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFOS	Ql
Branched Perfluorooctanesulfonic acid	Br-PFOS	499	70	80	46	99	34	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFOS	Qn
Perfluorononane sulfonate	PFNS	549	72	80	50	99	36	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFDS	Ql
Perfluorodecane sulfonate	PFDS	599	76	80	52	99	36	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFDS	Ql
4:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	4:2 FTS	327	42	307	19	81	26	[¹³ C ₂] 4:2 FtS	4:2 FTS	Qn
6:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	6:2 FTS	427	40	407	22	81	28	[¹³ C ₂] 6:2 FtS	6:2 FTS	Qn

Table 3.3. LC-MS/MS target analyte full name, acronym, acquisition masses and parameters, internal standard, calibration reference, and data quality.

8:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	8:2 FTS	527	45	507	25	81	32	[¹³ C ₂] PFDA	8:2 FTS	Qn
N-(carboxymethyl)-N,N-dimethyl-3-(1H,1H,2H,2H- perfluoro-1-octanesulfonamido)propan-1-aminium	6:2 FtSaB	571	78	104	28	58	38	M-PFOS	6:2 FtSaB	Sq
N-(carboxymethyl)-N,N-dimethyl-3-(1H,1H,2H,2H- perfluoro-1-octanesulfonamido)propan-1-aminium	6:2 FtSaAm	513	60	58	44	86	34	M-PFOS	PFOS	Sq
Perfluoropropane sulfonamide	FPrSA	248	40	78	32	119	26	M-PFBS	PFBS	Sq
Perfluorobutane sulfonamide	FBSA	298	50	119	26	78	32	M-PFBS	PFBS	Sq
Perfluoropentane sulfonamide	FPeSA	348	40	78	35	119	35	M-FOSA	FOSA	Sq
Perfluorohexane sulfonamide	FHxSA	398	58	78	36	119	28	M-FOSA	FHxSA	Ql
Perfluorooctane sulfonamide	FOSA	498	40	78	30	319	30	M-FOSA	FOSA	Qn
Perluorobutane sulfinate	PFBSi	283	50	83	32	119	26	M-PFBS	PFBS	Sq
Perfluoropentane sulfinate	PFPeSi	333	40	83	35	119	35	M-PFPeA	PFPeA	Sq
Perfluorohexane sulfinate	PFHxSi	383	20	319	40	83	40	M-PFHxA	PFHxA	Sq
Perfluorooctane sulfinate	PFOSi	483	40	119	40	419	40	M-PFOA	PFOA	Sq
6:2 fluorotelomer sulfonyl propanoamido- dimethylethyl sulfonate	6:2 FTSO2PrAd- DiMeEtS	618	40	203	30	152	30	M-PFOA	PFOA	Sq
8:2 fluorotelomer sulfonyl propanoamido- dimethylethyl sulfonate	8:2 FTSO2PrAd- DiMeEtS	718	40	206	30	152	30	M-PFOA	PFOA	Sq
N-sulfo propyl dimethyl ammonio propyl	SPrAmPr-	507	40	383	40	182	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Sq
N-sulfo propyl dimethyl ammonio propyl perfluoropentane sulfonamide	FBSA SPrAmPr- FPeSA	557	40	433	40	182	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Sq
N-sulfo propyl dimethyl ammonio propyl perfluorohexane sulfonamide	SPrAmPr- FHxSA	607	40	483	40	182	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Sq
N-Trimethylammoniopropyl perfluorobutane	TAmPr-FBSA	399	40	60	40	116	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Sq
N-Trimethylammoniopropyl perfluoropentane sulfonamide	TAmPr-FPeSA	449	40	60	40	116	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Sq
N-Trimethylammoniopropyl perfluorohexane sulfonamide	TAmPr- FHxSA	499	40	60	40	116	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Sq
6:2 fluorotelomer thia propanoamido dimethyl ethyl sulfonate	6:2 FTTh- PrAd-DiMeEtS	586	35	135	20	80	20	M-PFOS	PFOS	Sq
N-methylperfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	N-MeFOSAA	570	34	169	20	419	10	M-N- MeFOSAA	N- MeFOSAA	Qn

N-ethylperfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	N-EtFOSAA	584	34	419	20	526	20	M-N- EtFOSAA	N- EtFOSAA	Qn
3-Perfluoropentyl propanoic acid (5:3)	FPePA	341	19	237	14	217	24	M-PFPeA	PFPeA	Qn
2H-perfluoro-2-octenoic acid	FHUEA	357	18	293	17	243	34	M-PFHxA	PFHxA	Qn
2-perfluorohexylethanoic acid	FHEA	377	20	293	22	63	7	M-PFHxA	PFHxA	Qn
Perfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	FOSAA	556	45	498	27	78	40	M-PFOA	PFOA	Qn
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]butanoic acid	[¹³ C ₄] PFBA	217	20	172	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[3,4,5- ¹³ C ₃]pentanoic acid	[¹³ C ₃] PFPeA	266	20	222	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]hexanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFHxA	315	20	270	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]heptanoic acid	[¹³ C4] PFHpA	367	15	322	11	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]octanoic acid	[¹³ C ₄] PFOA	417	20	372	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]octanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFOA	415	20	370	9	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4,5- ¹³ C ₅]nonanoic acid	[¹³ C ₅] PFNA	468	22	423	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]decanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFDA	515	22	470	10	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]undecanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFUnDA	565	22	519	10	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]dodecanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFDoDA	615	22	570	10	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
2H-Perfluoro-[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]-2-octenoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] FHUEA	359	18	294	17	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro-1-[2,3,4- ¹³ C ₃]-butanesulfonate	[¹³ C ₂] PFBS	302	31	99	30	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro-1-hexane[¹⁸ O ₂]sulfonate	[¹⁸ O ₂] PFHxS	403	58	103	28	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a

Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]octane sulfonate	[¹³ C ₂] PFOS	503	70	99	34	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
$4:2[1,2-^{13}C_2]$ fluorotelomer sulfonate	[¹³ C ₂] 4:2 FTS	329	30	81	25	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
6:2 $[1,2^{-13}C_2]$ fluorotelomer sulfonate	[¹³ C ₂] 6:2 FTS	429	44	409	22	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
8:2 $[1,2^{-13}C_2]$ fluorotelomer sulfonate	[¹³ C ₂] 8:2 FTS	529	45	81	35	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro-1-[¹³ C ₈]octane sulfonamide	[¹³ C ₈] FOSA	506	40	78	30	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Methyl-d3-perfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	[² H ₃] MeFOSAA	573	34	419	20	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Ethyl-d5-perfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	[² H5] EtFOSAA	589	34	419	20	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a

*PI (precursor ion), CV (cone voltage), FI (fragmentation ion), CE (collision energy), Qn (quantitative), Sq (semiquantitative), Ql (qualitative), Sc (Screen)[1-3]

Chapter 4: Branched and Linear Interpretation for the Removal of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances by Pilot-Scale Granulated Activated Carbon System in Groundwater at a Military Site

Alix E. Robel,¹ Detlef Knappe,² Dora Chiang,³ Dirk Pohlmann,⁴ Catharine Varley,⁵ Adria Bodour,⁵ Jennifer A. Field^{*1}

¹Department of Environmental and Molecular Toxicology, Oregon State University, Corvallis, OR ² Department of Civil, Construction, and Environmental Engineering, North Carolina State University, Raleigh, NC ³CDM Smith, Atlanta, GA ⁴Bay West, St. Paul, MN ⁵United States Air Force

Abstract

Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) are components in aqueous filmforming foams (AFFF), which are applied to hydrocarbon-based fuel fires as part of fire-fighter training. Repeat use of AFFF at fire-fighter training areas results in PFAS contamination in groundwater, soils, and, sediments. Granular activated carbon (GAC) adsorption is a remediation alternative for PFAS removal from water. To identify factors controlling PFAS adsorption from AFFF-impacted groundwater containing µg/L concentrations of PFAS and organic co-contaminants, a pilot study was conducted with two GAC adsorbers in a lead-lag configuration over an 11 month period. The system was designed to evaluate the PFAS order of breakthrough, concentrations of individual PFASs, and of branched and linear distributions. Breakthrough was quantified for branched and linear isomers of fifteen individual PFASs: C4-C8 perfluoroalkyl carboxylates (PFCAs), C4-C8 perfluoroalkyl sulfonates (PFSAs), C6 and C8 perfluoroalkyl sulfonamides (FASAs) along with 4:2-8:2 fluorotelomer sulfonates. A predominance of linear PFCA isomers over branched isomers in groundwater (influent) indicated the use of fluorotelomer-based AFFF and the transformation fluorotelomer precursors at this site. The total oxidizable precursor (TOP) assay quantified precursors in the influent and in select effluent samples and $80 \pm 30\%$ of the total mass was accounted for by individual PFASs. The order of breakthrough on GAC was in the same relative order as analytical retention times for each PFAS. Relative retention time is a relatively fast and inexpensive approach to predict the relative order of breakthrough for a wide range of PFASs.

Introduction

Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) are anthropogenic chemicals which are ubiquitous in the environment.¹ Two PFASs, perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoate (PFOA), have U.S. EPA health advisory limits of 70 nanograms per liter (ng/L) either individually or combined.² Regulatory determination of establishing maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) for PFOS and PFOA is currently being proposed in the USEPA PFAS Action Plan.³ PFASs typically occur as mixtures and are hydrophobic, oleophobic, and heat stable. PFASs are manufactured by either electrochemical fluorination (ECF) or fluorotelomerization processes.⁴ ECF based manufacturing produces branched (Br) and linear (L) PFASs while fluorotelomerization based manufacturing produces only L PFASs. The exception to the latter is the production of isopropyl branched isomers of C9, C11, and C13 PFCAs.¹ However, to the best of our knowledge branched C9, C11, and C13 PFCAs have not been identified as major components in AFFF.⁵⁻⁷

One important input of PFASs into the environment is the application of aqueous film-forming foams (AFFF) for putting out hydrocarbon-based fuel fires at fire-fighter training areas and crash events.^{5, 6, 8-10} Areas designated as fire-fighter training areas were used on a routine basis between 1970s-1990s to train fire fighters,⁶ and several MilSpec AFFF were available for use during this time period.^{11, ¹² Due to the uncontained nature of AFFF applications, PFASs and other AFFF constituents (e.g. hydrocarbon surfactants) have contaminated soils,¹³} groundwater,^{14,García, 2019 #1234} and surface water.¹⁵ Contaminated groundwater impacted by AFFF have the potential to be used as drinking water sources.^{16, 17} Populations exposed to point-sources of PFAS contamination (e.g., industrial discharge¹⁸ and AFFF-contaminated sites¹⁷) have higher blood serum levels of PFASs.^{17, 18} Therefore, in order to reduce human and ecosystem exposure to PFASs, especially near AFFF-contaminated sites, remediation of contaminated groundwater is necessary.

Technologies for the treatment of PFASs are evolving quickly and include sequestration technologies, such as granulated activated carbon (GAC)¹⁹⁻²² and ionexchange resins.^{19, 20, 22, 23} Other treatment technologies include reverse osmosis or nanofiltration, and destruction technologies, such as chemical oxidation,²⁴ electrochemical oxidation²⁵ and reduction,²⁶ or sonolysis.²⁷ Efficacy of GAC and other sorbents are most commonly evaluated using laboratory batch or column experiments with clean laboratory water and only a select number of perfluoroalkyl carboxylates (PFCAs) and perfluoroalkyl sulfonates (PFSAs).^{22, 23, 28-37} Only a few reports document the efficacy of GAC in the laboratory batch or column experiments for PFCA and PFSA removal from drinking water and municipal wastewater, ^{23, 38, 39} and only one bench-scale study documents the adsorptive removal of precursors from AFFF-contaminated groundwater.³⁴ Removal of PFCAs and PFSAs, but not precursors, by GAC at the pilot and full-scale is reported for only drinking water and municipal wastewater.^{19, 29, 35, 40} Currently, no pilot-scale data are reported for the removal of PFCAs, PFSAs, and precursors in AFFF-contaminated groundwater.

Precursors can be transformed biotically or abiotically into PFCAs and PFSAs,⁴¹ and are in AFFF-impacted groundwater^{13, 42, 43} and surface water.^{42, 44} One way to characterize precursors is by the total oxidizable precursor (TOP) assay.⁴⁵ The TOP assay provides a quantifiable estimate of precursors by oxidizing unknown precursors to PFCAs. However, the TOP assay does not identify the individual precursors, and is typically reported as the change in individual PFCA concentrations. In addition to the TOP assay, liquid chromatography mass-spectrometry (LC-MS/MS) is a technique for quantifying target precursors⁴⁶⁻⁴⁹ but current US EPA methods include few precursors (e.g. perfluorooctane sulfonamide (FOSA), methylperfluorooctanesulfanamidoacetic acid, and ethylperfluorooctanesulfonamidoacetic acid).⁵⁰ Precursors not yet captured by LC-MS/MS are identified by LC high-resolution mass spectrometry (HRMS).^{6, 43, 46} LC-HRMS analysis is not yet a routine analysis, however, LC-HRMS is one of the best approaches for identifying unknown precursors (e.g., non-target PFASs).

Precursors adsorption on GAC is largely unknown because of a lack of commercially available analytical standards. Although limited information is available for most precursors, the analytical retention time for a precursor on a C18 analytical column (on any of the above LC mass spectrometry systems) is one of the parameters first measured for a newly identified precursor. Xiao et al. found that the relative order of LC retention times for PFCAs, PFSAs, and precursors correlated with partition coefficients (K_d) describing PFAS adsorption from AFFF-impacted groundwater in batch kinetic tests.³⁴ However, the relationship between LC retention time and PFAS breakthrough on GAC at the pilot scale is not yet reported.

In this study, a pilot-scale GAC system was evaluated for the removal of 17 PFASs in AFFF-contaminated groundwater (influent) over an eleven-month period. Samples of influent, lead effluent, and lag effluent were collected weekly or biweekly and analyzed by LC-MS/MS. The 17 PFASs in the influent included C4-C9 PFCAs and C4-C8 PFSAs; 4:2, 6:2, and 8:2 fluorotelomer sulfonates (FTSAs); and C5,C6, C8 perfluoroalkylsulfonamides (FASAs). The TOP assay was applied to a select number of influent and effluent samples in order to indicate the breakthrough of precursors and to determine the advantages and limitations of the TOP assay for assessing GAC performance. Breakthrough curves for 15 of the 17 PFASs were constructed for each PFAS as well as for the various branched and linear isomers of the PFCAs, PFSAs, and FASAs. The relationship between breakthrough and analytical retention times is also reported.

Experimental Methods

Standards and reagents

Solvents and chemicals used are described in the Supplemental Information (SI). Native and isotopically labeled standards were the same as those used in Backe et al., but with the addition of FHxSA and FOSA (Wellington Laboratories, Guelph, ON, Canada).⁵ For the full list of analytes and acronyms, see Table 4.4.

Study Site and GAC System Design

The military site selected for the pilot-scale system is a former fire-fighter training area that was in operation between 1958 and 1991. Groundwater from seven extraction wells approximately 150 m down gradient from the fire-fighter training area was blended in an equilibration tank before use as the influent for the GAC pilot system. The influent groundwater contained PFASs and a list of co-contaminants identified by a commercially available volatile organic contaminant analysis (data not shown). Co-contaminants included solvents (e.g. acetone) and other contaminants of concern (e.g.1,4-dichlorobenzene) at μ g/L concentrations.

Water was passed through two 200-L steel drum vessels, plumbed in series, containing prepacked, reactivated GAC (DSR-A 8x40, Calgon Carbon Corporation, Pittsburgh, PA). GAC properties and GAC system design parameters are summarized in Table 3.1. A peristaltic pump was used to pump groundwater at a rate of 8.0 L per min into the GAC vessels under low pressure. Interconnecting piping and valves were PTFE free and fabricated of PVC. The final treated water was discharged to an effluent holding tank. The pilot system was operated from November 2016 through August 2017. For the purpose of evaluating PFAS breakthrough, there was no GAC removal or change out, but there was a four week shut down in February 2017.

Sample Collection, Transport, and Storage

Samples of the influent and effluent were collected weekly for the first nine months and then bi-weekly for the following two months. Samples were collected in 30 mL HDPE containers (VWR, Radnor, PA). Field blanks consisted of laboratorydeionized water shipped in 30 mL HDPE containers that were opened during sample collection. Trip blanks consisted of laboratory-deionized water shipped to the site in 30 mL HDPE containers, but not opened at any time during sample collection. All field and trip blanks (n=4 field blanks, n=5 trip blanks) were less than the limit of quantification (LOQ) for all PFASs. The first seven effluent samples from the lag vessel served as blank controls since they were <LOQ for all PFASs, which indicates the PFAS background in the pilot GAC system was negligible. All samples were shipped to Oregon State University (OSU) on ice and frozen until analysis.

Sample Extraction

On the day of analysis, samples were brought to room temperature and inverted several times for homogenization. A 3 mL aliquot was placed in a 15 mL centrifuge tube along with 0.97-1.0 g of NaCl, 10 μ L of 6M hydrochloric acid, and 0.72 ng of all mass-labeled internal standards (Table 4.4). Samples were extracted in triplicate with 10:90 2,2,2-trifluoroethanol in ethyl acetate to give a total volume of 1 mL to which 500 μ L of methanol was added for a final volume of 1.5 mL for analysis by LC-MS/MS.⁵

TOP Assay

Five pairs of influent and effluent (from the lead vessel only) were selected at 3200, 5800, 9200, 11000, and 16000 bed volumes for analysis by the TOP assay.⁴⁵ Each 15 mL centrifuge tube received 1.5 mL of sample and 1.5 mL reaction solution (60 mM potassium persulfate, 125 mM sodium hydroxide in water). Briefly, samples were placed in a water bath between 85-90 °C for 6 h and then stored at 4 °C until analysis. Prior to analysis, samples were brought to room temperature, neutralized with 10 μ L of 6 M HCL and 0.72 ng of all isotopically-labeled internal standards were added and then extracted as described above.

PFAS Selection and Analysis by LC-MS/MS

In an attempt to identify the PFAS mass in the influent, an upgradient groundwater sample nearer to the source zone than the influent sample in this study was analyzed by LC-QTOF as part of a prior experiment in Barzen-Hanson et al.⁶ Analysis by LC-QTOF identified 52 individual PFASs (Table 4.4), and all 52 observed PFASs are included in the LC-MS/MS method created for this study. However, when the GAC influent was screened using the 52-analyte LC-MS/MS method, only 18 individual PFASs were observed. Information on the selection criteria of analytes from the independent LC-QTOF analysis can be found in the SI.

Analyses were performed on an Agilent 1100 series (Agilent, Santa Clara, CA) HPLC attached to a Waters Triple Quadrupole Detector MS/MS system (Waters Corporation, Milford, MA). The LC-MS/MS was fitted with two zirconium modified diol (Zr-diol) and one Zorbax Silica (Sil) guard columns (Agilent) and a Zorbax

113

Eclipse Plus C18 analytical column (Agilent).^{5, 51} Calibration curves consisted of five to seven standards ranging from 10 ng/L- 5,000 ng/L for all analytes, with the exception of FOSA (50 ng/L - 10,000 ng/L) and 6:2 FtSA (10 ng/L- 2,500 ng/L). All curves were required to be linear ($R^2 \ge 0.99$). Each PFAS was quantified by internal standard calibration and assigned a data quality tier of confidence (Table 4.4).⁵² Briefly, quantitative (Qn) analytes are those which contain both authentic analytical and isotopically labeled internal standards, semi-quantitative (Sq) analytes had reference materials but unmatched internal standards, and qualitative (QI) analytes had neither authentic or internal standards. Instrumental LOQs are 10 ng/L for all analytes (Table S1) with the exception of FHxSA and FOSA which have an LOQ of 50 ng/L. All values reported >LOQ gave signal-to-noise values greater than nine. The LOD values for all analytes were defined as 3.3x lower than the LOQ, and with a signal-to-noise value between three and nine. Branched (Br) and linear (L) concentrations were calculated by separately integrating the branched isomers and the linear peaks.

Each analytical sequence was comprised of one to three weeks of samples, a whole extraction blank, and several solvent blanks. Whole extraction process blanks consisted of spiking deionized water with all isotopically labeled standards and extracting as described above. The matrix for solvent blanks was generated by extracting a mixture of 3 mL deionized water, 0.97-1.0 g of NaCl, and 10 uL hydrochloric acid with three rounds of 2,2,2-TFE, ethyl acetate (10:90). One mL of the ethyl acetate was then combined with 500 μ L methanol and spiking with

isotopically labeled standards. All process and solvent blanks fell at or below half of the limit of quantification ($< \frac{1}{2}$ LOQ). Replicate samples of influent (n=4) were used to calculate a standard error as a measure of precision about the reported concentrations.

Data treatment and breakthrough curves

Breakthrough curves for individual PFASs were developed by normalizing concentrations of individual PFASs in the GAC effluent with the corresponding influent concentration and plotting normalized concentrations as a function of the bed volumes of water treated. Resulting breakthrough curves were described with the pore-surface diffusion model (PSDM) using the approach described in Summers et al.⁵³ Adjustable model input parameters included the apparent Freundlich capacity parameter (K*), tortuosity (τ) , and the surface-to-pore diffusion flux ratio (SPDFR). The Freundlich isotherm exponent (1/n) was set to one. When pore diffusion alone effectively described PFAS breakthrough curves, surface diffusion was eliminated by setting the SPDFR to 10^{-30} , and the pore diffusion coefficient was adjusted by varying tortuosity, with the constraint that tortuosity cannot be less than one. For steeper breakthrough curves, pore diffusion alone could not effectively describe the data. In that case, the tortuosity was set to its smallest allowable value (i.e., 1.0), and the SPDFR was increased from 10^{-30} . For the PSDM, the average C₀ was determined from the measured PFAS concentrations in 28 GAC influent samples over the 11month period of the pilot study. For the lead column, K^* , τ , and SPDFR (required for branched PFOA only) values for each analyte are reported in Table 4.2. ⁵⁴ For the lag

column, K* values were within 10% of those for the lead column. Intraparticle diffusion flux values were within a factor of 2 of those for the lead column, except for PFBA, for which the difference was a factor of 5. The latter result was likely due to uncertainty in the PFBA breakthrough curve for the lead column (Figure 4.5).

Results and Discussion

Influent Characterization

The PFASs observed in the influent included C4-C9 PFCAs, C4-C8 PFSAs, 4:2, 6:2, and 8:2 FTSAs, FPeSA, FHxSA, FOSA, and N-TAmP FHxSA (Table 2). The most prevalent PFASs in the influent were PFOS (2700 ng/L), FHxSA (2800 ng/L), PFHxS (2100 ng/L), PFOA (900 ng/L), PFHxA (740 ng/L), and 6:2 FtSA (1000 ng/L; Table 2). While the PFCAs and PFSAs are commonly observed as the most prevalent PFASs,^{5, 9, 44, 55} to the best of the author's knowledge this study is the 3rd report of FHxSA in groundwater or surface water.^{46, 56} A recently reported PFAS,⁶ N-TAmP-FHxSA, was present initially in the influent but was not detected after the 4 week shut-down and thus is not discussed further. Fluorotelomer-based PFASs observed in the influent include 4:2, 6:2, and 8:2 FtSAs (Table 4.2). The most prevalent fluorotelomer based PFAS in the influent was 6:2 FtSA (1000 ng/L) which is more abundant than PFOA (Table 4.2). The presence of PFCAs, PFSAs, FASAs, and N-TAmP-FHxSA are typically associated with ECF-based 3M AFFF.^{1, 6} In 3M manufactured AFFF (ECF) after 1989, PFOA is 1:100 of PFOS and PFHxA is 1:10 of PFHxS.⁵ At this site, the ratio of PFOA to PFOS is 1:3 and the ratio of PFHxA to PFHxS is 1:2 (Table 4.2), which indicates greater PFOA and PFHxA concentrations than expected based on the composition of 3M AFFF. McGuire et al. attributed increased ratios to an alternate PFAS source or *in-situ* transformation of precursors.⁵⁶ The presence of FtSAs, which are linear only, are direct evidence of fluorotelomer-based AFFF use at this site since FTSAs are degredation products of fluorotelomer thioether amido sulfonate.^{57, 58}

Electrochemical fluorination (ECF) manufacturing produces both branched and linear PFASs, and fluorotelomer-based manufacturing produces only L PFASs.^{4, ⁵⁹ Most of the PFCAs, PFSAs, and FASAs were branched and linear in the influent which was anticipated since they are all ECF-based chemistries.⁶⁰ However, PFCAs can be derived from either ECF of fluorotelomer chemistries, and therefore you cannot directly assume PFCAs will be comprised of both Br/L isomers. In contrast, FTSAs are only linear since they are derived from a linear source. Br isomers typically are lower in abundance when concentrations are low. The Br isomers are < LOQ for PFBA, PFHxA, PFBS, PFPeS, FPeSA (Table 4.2). To the best of the authors' knowledge, this is the first report of Br FHxSA (Table 4.2) in AFFFimpacted groundwater. In the GAC influent, PFOS has a Br/L of 38:62 (Figure 4.2.1a) while PFOA has a ratio of 9:91 (Figure 2.1b; Table 2.2). However, the Br/L} ratio of ECF-manufactured PFASs, including PFOS and PFOA, is 25:75.⁶¹ No known microbial biodegradation pathway for PFOS is known to alter the Br/L ratio. Depletion of L PFOS (75% to 62%) in groundwater 150 m down gradient from a source zone is consistent with higher retardation of L PFOS relative to Br PFOS. For example, Labadie et al. found higher log Koc values, thus greater a greater retardation factor, for L-PFOS compared to Br PFOS.⁶² Kwadijk et al. also reported higher log K_{oc} values for L-PFOS and L-PFOA than for total PFOS and PFOA.⁶³ Linear PFOS and PFOA isomers have longer retention times on C18 analytical columns than do their branched counterparts (Table 4.2). As indicated for PFOS, one would expect depletion of L isomers over Br isomers for all ECF-based PFASs in the influent collected down gradient from an aged fire training area source zone. However, L PFOA is relatively enriched compared to Br PFOA, which cannot be attributed to transport alone. Unlike PFOS, there are reports of PFCA formation, including PFOA, from precursors including fluorotelomer thioether amido sulfonate^{57, 58} and FtSAs.^{64,} ⁶⁵ However, these formation studies did not separate or directly document Br/L distribution. It is important to note that PFOA, and all PFCAs, may not have the anticipated ECF-based Br/Ln distribution since through fluorotelomer degradation a L PFCA is possible. For this reason, we hypothesize that the enrichment of L PFOA and other PFCAs (Table 4.2) is due to the biotransformation of linear precursors.

TOP Assay for Characterizing Influent

The TOP assay was utilized in this study for several purposes including 1] estimating unknown precursors not captured by individual PFASs measured in this

study and 2] estimating the total mass of PFASs in the GAC influent. Along with unknown precursors, the TOP assay oxidizes the known precursors identified in the influent including FASAs, FTSAs, and N-TAmP-FHxSA (Table 4.6).

The TOP assay generated a range of PFCAs including PFBA (10%), PFPeA (11%), PFHxA (73%), PFHpA (0.8%), and PFOA (5%) (Table 4.3). When present, the percentage of Br isomers was maintained before and after the TOP assay (15-18% PFOA; 32% PFHxS; 27% PFHpS; 34% PFOS). Of note, the difference in PFSA concentrations before and after the TOP assay were not statistically significant (Table S2, Equation S2). At present, no precursors produce PFSAs under TOP assay conditions. The predominant production of PFHxA (73%) generated by the TOP assay are consistent with the oxidation of the C6-based precursors^{52, 66} present in the influent including 6:2 FTSA, FHxSA, N-TamP-FHxSA (Table 4.2). A more precise delineation of the chain length of precursors is not possible since the original chain length of precursors is not preserved under TOP assay conditions.

For the influent, known precursors accounted for 10.4 nmol \pm 3.1 nmol F (Table 4.5) of the 20 \pm 1 nmol F (known and unknown) precursors (Table 4.5; Equation S1), while unknown precursors accounted for 9.6 \pm 2.1 nmol (Table 4.3).

The total mass of PFASs in the influent was computed as the sum of all measured individual PFASs (PFCAs, PFSAs, FASA, FTSAs, N-TAmP-FHxSA) before oxidation divided by the sum of the PFCAs and PFSAs after oxidation (Equation S2). The total mass of measured individual PFASs before the TOP assay ($29 \pm 1 \text{ nmol}$; Table 4.5) accounted for $75 \pm 30\%$ of the total mass of PFAS in the influent ($37 \pm 1 \text{ nmol}$). Unknown precursors measured by the TOP assay accounted for the remaining 20% ($9.6 \pm 2.1 \text{ nmol}$; Equation S1). The equations and examples for TOP assay values can be found in the SI. Although the influent was screened for ~ 450 individual suspect PFASs by LC-HRMS⁶ yielded only a number of low abundance precursors. Additional precursors not captured by suspect screening may be present and would require identification by non-target LC-HRMS, which was beyond the scope of the study.

Effluent Concentrations

The effluent data from the lag vessel were used for data interpretation and breakthrough modeling because full-scale systems typically run multiple vessels in sequence and the effluent data from lag vessel are used to determine the need of GAC changeout.^{19, 39, 40} The additional empty-bed contact time of the lag vessel improves the separation of PFAS homologs for interpreting breakthrough curves (Figure 4.2a,b). However, data for the lead vessel are shown in the SI (Figure 4.3), which is rarely reported.

Breakthrough Curves

Concentrations of C4-C8 PFCAs (Figure 2a), C5-8 PFSAs, FHxSA, and 6:2 FtSA (Figure 4.2b) were plotted as a function of bed volume to create breakthrough curves. The order of PFCAs breakthrough is strongly associated with fluorinated chain length: PFBA, <PFPeA, <PFHxA, <PFHpA, <PFOA (Figure 4.2a). The order of PFSA breakthrough also followed the same trend with chain length: PFPeS, <PFHxS, <PFHpS, <PFOS (Figure 4.2b). To the best of the authors' knowledge, these are the first reported breakthrough curves for PFPeS, FHxSA, and 6:2 FtSA (Figure 4.2b). Breakthrough on full-scale GAC as a function of chain length is reported for PFBA, PFHxA, PFOA, and PFOS in drinking water.¹⁹ In an analogous manner, increasing sorption of PFASs onto GAC with increasing chain length is reported for batch experiments with AFFF-impacted groundwater.³⁴ To the authors' knowledge, this is the first report of breakthrough curves for a pilot-scale system treating a complex AFFF-contaminated water matrix.

Observation above the <LOQ of PFBA (9192 bed volumes) occurs significantly before PFOA (9321 bed volumes) or PFOS (14752 bed volumes), the only two PFASs with Health Advisory Limits (HALs).² PFBA is included in some state regulations,⁷¹ but is not included in U.S. EPA Method 537. The use of GAC for PFBA removal would require more frequent GAC change outs, which is likely cost prohibitive.^{28, 54} Concentrations of PFBA exceeded that of the influent (C/C₀ > 1) at 9249 bed volumes and is consistent with the observation of PFBA C/Co values > 1 for a full-scale GAC system treating drinking water (Figure 4.2a).¹⁹ Appleman et al. hypothesized PFBA displacement by longer chained PFASs¹⁹ or by other cocontaminants. The groundwater influent in the present study has solvents and fuels co-contaminants at ug/L concentrations as well as hydrocarbon surfactants associated with AFFF⁷² that may compete for weak sorption of PFBA.

Concentrations of PFOS in effluent exceeded the health advisory limit (HAL) of 70 ng/L at 9970 bed volumes. However, concentration of PFOA exceeded the HAL much earlier at 4,681 bed volumes. Because PFOA breaks through before PFOS, the HAL for the combined concentrations of PFOS and PFOA is also 4,681 bed volumes. Comparing the bed volumes corresponding to PFOS and PFOA to those reported by others is limited due to the omission of key descriptors including influent concentration^{19, 29} and breakthrough curves.³⁹

Br/L Isomer Breakthrough

Earlier breakthrough of Br isomers relative to the L isomers from the lag vessel (Figure 4.3) is consistent with the effluent and with lower log K_{oc} values for Br isomers (Figure 4.2),^{62, 63} and had an impact on breakthrough curves (Figure 4.3). The modeling curve for Br PFOS has a K value of 55 as compared to L PFOS which has a K value of 80, which indicates earlier breakthrough of Br PFOS. However, since L-PFOS is more abundant relative to Br-PFOS (Table 4.2), the breakthrough for total PFOS indistinguishable from L-PFOS (Figure 4.3).

The ratio of Br/L PFOS was initially 29:71 at 1500 bed volumes, but increased significantly over time to 52:48 at 11,000 bed volumes (Figure 4.2b). Observation of the enrichment of Br-PFOS at earlier bed volumes is important,

because although the concentration of Br-PFOS is significantly lower than L-PFOS (Table 2), Br-PFOS breaks through faster than L-PFOS.

Breakthrough and Analytical Retention Time

The relative order of breakthrough in the pilot-scale GAC system followed the relative order of Br and L PFAS elution on the C18 analytical column (Figure 4.4, Table 4.1). Similar relative orders of breakthrough on GAC and C18 analytical media indicates similar mechanisms of retention. The C18 analytical column used in this study was endcapped, thus minimizing the potential for retention mechanisms other than van der Waals (e.g., hydrophobicity). The comparison of bed volumes to analytical retention time was performed with Br/L analytes treated as individual data points (Figure 4.4). With all modeled analytes included, the R^2 value is 0.6133; however, when the only analyte of low abundance, PFPeS, is removed the R² values increases to 0.7082 (Figure 4.4). The R^2 value of 0.7082 matches closely to Xiao et al., who reported an \mathbb{R}^2 value of 0.75, indicating a reproducible relationship.³⁴ Importantly, Xiao et al. performed their comparison using predicted bed volume values, whereas, in this study, the bed volumes were calculated from a pilot-scale system (Table 4.6). Practically, the relationship between bed volume breakthrough and analytical retention time could be used to predict the relative breakthrough of other PFASs using only analytical retention time. For example, in this study, FHxSA had an analytical retention time of 13.6 min, which will be expected, and was observed (Figure 4.2b, 4.4) to breakthrough between PFHxS (RT 11.2 min) and PFOS (15.5 min). Although commercial laboratories who perform PFAS analysis by

EPA and modified EPA methods currently use LC-MS/MS there is a trend towards utilizing QTOF for additional PFASs.

Breakthrough and TOP Assay

The TOP assay was performed only on five discrete samples of the lead vessel effluent at varying bed volumes (Table 4.3), since concentrations of precursors were more abundant than in lag vessel effluent (data not shown). Oxidation resulted in net increases in only L C4-C7 PFCAs (Table 4.3) but the increase in PFOA was low so that changes in Br and L isomers could not be distinguished. The dominant PFCA produced, irrespective of bed volume, was PFHxA and was consistent with the breakthrough of known C6-based precursors (Figure 4.5). For the lead vessel effluent, known precursors (FASAs, FTSAs, N-TAmP-FHxSA) accounted for 0-38% of the total precursors by computing the difference between the total net production of PFCAs after oxidation minus the total mass unknown precursors (Table 4.3).

Concentrations of precursors (nmol F; Table 4.3) determined the TOP assay, were plotted against bed volume (Figure 4.5b). Since the TOP assay captures an unknown number of precursors, the breakthrough curve is more challenging to interpret since it is likely weighted by the number of precursors and their relative abundance. As an example, the TOP assay breakthrough curve is similar to those for 6:2 FtSA and FHxSA (Figure 4.5b). The breakthrough curve for the TOP assay (Figure S1b) indicates breakthrough of precursors before PFOS and PFOA. The TOP assay is useful for quantifying precursors in GAC influent and effluent since few precursors are measured in current commercial analyses. Additional unknown precursors may be present in lead vessel effluent; however, attempts to identify additional unknown precursors were unsuccessful and non-target analysis of effluent was beyond the scope of this study.

Implication and limitations

Nearly half of the observed PFASs in the GAC influent had shorter chain lengths than PFOS and PFOA (e.g. 4:2 FtSA; Table 4.2). However, breakthrough curves indicate that shorter chained PFASs (<C8) are not effectively retained by GAC compared to PFOS and PFOA and will be present in finished effluent prior to GAC if only based on PFOS and PFOA. For this reason, it is important to select commercial analysis which include short-chain PFASs such as PFBA, PFPeA, PFBS, PFPeS, and 4:2 FtSA. Analytical standards for 6:2 FtSA and FHxSA are commercially available, and should be included in monitoring programs because both precursors have the potential to degrade to PFAAs,^{36, 73, 74} and because 6:2 FtSA and FHxSA are at similar concentrations to that of PFHxS and PFOA, respectively, the influent (Table 4.2).

Inclusion and differentiation of Br/L ratios should be included not only for analytical accuracy, but also for interpretation of input sources and treatment processes. In this study, the relative enrichment of L PFCA isomers indicate source inputs from linear fluorotelomer precursors. In cases where individual precursors are not directly measured, excess L PFCA isomers are likely signaling the use of fluorotelomer AFFF that have degraded to PFCAs. In the case of GAC as a treatment process, shifting isomer ratios result from preferential sorption of Br over L PFASs.

The commercially available TOP assay provides a quantitative measurement of additional precursors in GAC influent and effluents. A measure of precursors is important since they may compete for sites on GAC and have the potential to end up in treated effluent if GAC changeout is only triggered by PFOS and/or PFOA breakthrough (e.g., exceeding HALs). The TOP assay provides data on the breakthrough of precursors even though the data cannot provide information on individual the behavior of unknown precursors. The TOP assay is more expensive compared to LC-MS/MS, given the need for two analyses on a single sample. While LC-MS/MS can capture a broader array of precursors, an even larger number of suspect PFASs can be determined LC-HRMS. However, LC-HRMS is expensive, not yet commercially available, and does not guarantee mass balance for PFASs since additional non-target PFASs may be present.

The relationship between the relative order of breakthrough on GAC and retention times on C18 analytical columns will prove useful for predicting breakthrough of precursors without having to measure the actual precursor concentration in individual effluent samples. This is particularly important since commercial analyses for precursors are not yet available but are likely to become available with time. Once an influent of a treatment system is fully characterized by LC-HRMS, the retention times of precursors can be used to predict its breakthrough relative to commonly-measured PFASs.

Acknowledgment

The authors would like to acknowledge Anastasia Maydanov and Chris Higgins from Colorado School of Mines, AFCEC (FA8903-13-C-0005), AECOM (AFCEE BAA-12-001) and Oregon State University.

Design Parameter	Value
GAC, type	DSR-A 8x40
	BET surface area: 750 m ² /g
	Micropore volume: 0.310 cm ³ /g
	Macropore plus mesopore volume: $0.242 \text{ cm}^3/\text{g}$
Number of GAC vessels	2 in series
GAC quantity per vessel	91 kg
Volume per vessel	200 L
Hydraulic loading rate	8.0 L/min
Empty bed contact time	13 min (lead)
	26 min (lead + lag)

 Table 4.1. Design parameters for GAC pilot-scale system.

			Analyt	tical	K (L/g), ¹ τ		
	Average	Retention	n Time	(for Modeling)			
	Concentrat	tion (ng/L)	(mir	1)			
PFAS	Branched	Linear	Branched	Linear	Branched	Linear	
PFBA	<lod< td=""><td>100 ± 22</td><td>NA</td><td>6.8</td><td>NA</td><td>12, 1</td></lod<>	100 ± 22	NA	6.8	NA	12, 1	
PFPeA	19 ± 2.5	350 ± 47	7.5	7.9	NA	18, 3	
PFHxA	<loq< td=""><td>740 ± 70</td><td>8.9</td><td>9.4</td><td>NA</td><td>18, 1</td></loq<>	740 ± 70	8.9	9.4	NA	18, 1	
PFHpA	15 ± 2.0	150 ± 20	10.8	11.3	NA	28, 4	
PFOA	81 ± 7.2	820 ± 73	12.8	13.3	18, 1*	40, 2	
PFNA	<lod< td=""><td>18 ± 5.7</td><td>14.8</td><td>15.6</td><td>N/A</td><td>NA</td></lod<>	18 ± 5.7	14.8	15.6	N/A	NA	
PFBS	<lod< td=""><td>17 ± 3.0</td><td>7.6</td><td>8.0</td><td>N/A</td><td>NA</td></lod<>	17 ± 3.0	7.6	8.0	N/A	NA	
PFPeS	<lod< td=""><td>30 ± 9.0</td><td>9.2</td><td>9.4</td><td>NA</td><td>35, 1</td></lod<>	30 ± 9.0	9.2	9.4	NA	35, 1	
PFHxS	190 ± 29	1400 ± 210	10.8	11.2	30, 1	70, 5	
PFHpS	29 ± 5.5	62 ± 11.9	12.7	13.3	NA	NA	
PFOS	1200 ± 110	1900 ± 170	14.8	15.5	55, 1.5	85, 2.5	
4:2 FtSA	NA	13 ± 3.0	NA	9.2	NA	NA	
6:2 FtSA	NA	1000 ± 76	NA	13.3	NA	45, 1.5	
8:2 FtSA	NA	170 ± 35	NA	17.9	NA	NA	
FPeSA	<loq< td=""><td>125 ± 5.8</td><td>10.8</td><td>11.6</td><td>NA</td><td>NA</td></loq<>	125 ± 5.8	10.8	11.6	NA	NA	
FHxSA	700 ± 48	2100 ± 140	13.1	13.6	40, 1	65, 2	
FOSA	100 ± 9.4	200 ± 19	17.7	18.6	N/A	NA	
N-TAmP FHxSA	51 ± 21	97 ± 40	13.5	14.1	N/A	NA	

Table 4.2. Average Br and L PFAS influent concentrations $(ng/L) \pm$ standard error, analytical retention time (min) and PSDM modeling parameters.

<LOD = not detected; <LOQ = less than the limit of quantification; NA = not applicable because branched isomers are not detected because they are not present in fluorotelomer AFFF, *Surface-to-pore diffusion was needed for modeling, so SPDFR was 1 rather than the 10⁻³⁰ value used for all other analytes.

¹K values for the lead and lag vessels were similar and are reported as a single value.



Figure 4.1. Branched (Br) and linear (L) isomers for a) PFOS and b) PFOA in GAC influent and c) PFOS and d) PFOA in GAC effluent.
	Influent 2	3192	5759	9192	10992	16280
PFRA	$2.0 \pm$	<1.00	$0.27 \pm$	$0.36 \pm$	$0.55 \pm$	$1.2 \pm$
	0.34	LUQ	0.046	0.060	0.093	0.21
DED ^o γ	$2.2 \pm$	0.19	$0.31 \pm$	$0.63 \pm$	$0.0064 \pm$	$0.41 \pm$
IIICA	0.63	± 0.05	0.0019	0.18	0.0019	0.12
ΡΕΗν Δ	15 ± 1.4	$0.55 \pm$	23 ± 0.22	$2.7 \pm$	26 ± 0.24	$5.3 \pm$
ΠΠλΑ	1.3 ± 1.4	0.052	2.3 ± 0.22	0.26	2.0 ± 0.24	0.50
PFHnΔ	$0.22 \pm$	<1.00	$0.065 \pm$	$0.086 \pm$	<1.00	<1.00
111p/1	0.03	LUQ	0.012	0.015	LUQ	LUQ
PFOA	0.7 ± 0.5	<1.00	$0.52 \pm$	$0.58 \pm$	<1.00	<1.00
11011	0.7 = 0.5	(TOK	0.048	0.53	LUQ	(LOQ
Total PECAs	$20.10 \pm$	$0.74 \pm$	35 ± 10	43 ± 12	3.2 ± 0.84	$6.9 \pm$
Total TTCAS	5.3	0.12	5.5 ± 1.0	4.3 ± 1.2	3.2 ± 0.04	1.6
Total mass of		0.41 ±	2.1 1.0	24 44	1 4 0 50	
unknown	9.6 ± 2.1	0.12	3.1 ± 1.0	3.4 ± 1.1	1.4 ± 0.52	2.2 ± 1.1
precursors						

Table 4.3. Net production of PFCAs by TOP assay (nmol) \pm propagated relativestandard error and the total mass of unknown precursors at five selected bed volumes inthe lead vessel.Bed volumes (nmol)¹

¹ Propagated relative standard error based on measurement of n=5 influent replicates ² The propagated relative standard error from the influent was applied to the single samples at each of the five bed volumes



Figure 4.2. Breakthrough curves with model fits for a) PFCAs, b) PFSAs, and c)

FHxSA and 6:2 FtSA.^a

^a Due to low concentrations PFNA, PFBS, PFHpS, 4:2 FtSA, 8:2 FtSA, FPeSA, and FOSA are not included.

*Two points significantly above $C/C_0>1$ for PFBA were removed for modeling.



Figure 4.3.Breakthrough curves for Br and L PFOS in lag vessel effluent.



Figure 4.4. Comparison of lead vessel bed volumes required for 20% breakthrough vs. analytical retention times. The one open data point depicts PFPeS which was close to the instrumental LOQ.

*Denotes and analyte where Br/L separation was not possible.

Literature Cited

1. Buck, R.; Franklin, J.; Berger, U.; Conder, J.; Cousins, I.; Voogt, P. d.; Jensen, A.; Kannan, K.; Mabury, S.; Leeuwen, S. v., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in the environment: terminology, classifications, and origins. *Integr Environ Assess Man* **2011**, *7*, 513.

2. U.S. EPA Office of Water, Drinking Water Health Advisories for PFOA and PFOS. In https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/drinking-water-health-advisories-pfoa-and-pfos, 2017.

3. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Press Office, EPA Acting Administrator Announces First-Ever Comprehensive Nationwide PFAS Action Plan Historic plan outlines concrete steps the agency is taking to address PFAS and to protect public health. In 2019.

4. Kissa, E., *Fluorinated Surfactants and Repellants*. Second ed.; Marcel Dekker, Inc.: New York, 2001.

5. Backe, W. J.; Day, T. C.; Field, J. A., Zwitterionic, cationic, and anionic fluorinated chemicals in aqueous film forming foam formulations and groundwater from us military bases by nonaqueous large-volume injection HPLC-MS/MS. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (10), 5226-5234.

6. Barzen-Hanson, K. A.; Roberts, S. C.; Choyke, S.; Oetjen, K.; McAlees, A.; Riddell, N.; McCrindle, R.; Ferguson, P. L.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A., Discovery of 40 Classes of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Historical Aqueous Film-Forming Foams (AFFFs) and AFFF-Impacted Groundwater. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (4), 2047-2057.

7. Place, B. J.; Field, J. A., Identification of novel fluorochemicals in aqueous film-forming foams used by the US military. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (13), 7120-7127.

8. Moody, C. A.; Field, J. A., Determination of perfluorocarboxylates in groundwater impacted by fire-fighting activity. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **1999**, *33*, (16), 2800-2806.

9. Anderson, R.; Long, G.; Porter, R.; Anderson, J., Occurrence of select perfluoroalkyl substances at US Air Force aqueous film-forming foam release sites other than fire-training areas: Field-validation of critical fate and transport properties. *Chemosphere* **2016**.

10. Baduel, C.; Mueller, J. F.; Rotander, A.; Corfield, J.; Gomez-Ramos, M. J., Discovery of novel per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) at a fire fighting training ground and preliminary investigation of their fate and mobility. *Chemosphere* **2017**, *185*, 1030-1038.

11. MIL-F-24385 QPL/QPD History for Type 6 AFFF; 2014.

12. MIL-F-24385 QPL/QPD History for Type 3 AFFF. 2014.

13. Guelfo, J. L.; Higgins, C. P., Subsurface transport potential of perfluoroalkyl acids at aqueous film-forming foam (AFFF)-impacted sites. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (9), 4164-4171.

14. Anderson, J.; Claxton, B.; Long, E. Investigating Emerging Contaminants, The Military Engineer. (Accessed: July 30, 2015),

15. Munoz, G.; Desrosiers, M.; Duy, S. V.; Labadie, P.; Budzinsk, H.; Liu, J. X.; Sauve, S., Environmental Occurrence of Perfluoroalkyl Acids and Novel Fluorotelomer Surfactants in the Freshwater Fish Catostomus commersonii and Sediments Following Firefighting Foam Deployment at the Lac-Megantic Railway Accident. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (3), 1231-1240.

16. Hu, X. D. C.; Andrews, D. Q.; Lindstrom, A. B.; Bruton, T. A.; Schaider, L. A.; Grandjean, P.; Lohmann, R.; Carignan, C. C.; Blum, A.; Balan, S. A.; Higgins, C. P.; Sunderland, E. M., Detection of Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs) in US Drinking Water Linked to Industrial Sites, Military Fire Training Areas, and Wastewater Treatment Plants. *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2016**, *3*, (10), 344-350.

17. Gyllenhammar, I.; Berger, U.; Sundstrom, M.; McCleaf, P.; Euren, K.; Eriksson, S.; Ahlgren, S.; Lignell, S.; Aune, M.; Kotova, N.; Glynn, A., Influence of contaminated drinking water on perfluoroalkyl acid levels in human serum - A case study from Uppsala, Sweden. *Environmental Research* **2015**, *140*, 673-683.

18. Bartell, S. M.; Calafat, A. M.; Lyu, C.; Kato, K.; Ryan, P. B.; Steenland, K., Rate of Decline in Serum PFOA Concentrations after Granular Activated Carbon Filtration at Two Public Water Systems in Ohio and West Virginia. *Environmental Health Perspectives* **2010**, *118*, (2), 222-228.

Appleman, T. D.; Higgins, C. P.; Quinones, O.; Vanderford, B. J.; Kolstad,
 C.; Zeigler-Holady, J. C.; Dickenson, E. R. V., Treatment of poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances in US full-scale water treatment systems. *Water Res.* 2014, *51*, 246-255.
 Carter, K. E.; Farrell, J., Removal of Perfluorooctane and Perfluorobutane Sulfonate from Water via Carbon Adsorption and Ion Exchange. *Sep. Sci. Technol.* 2010, *45*, (6), 762-767.

21. Pan, C. G.; Liu, Y. S.; Ying, G. G., Perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in wastewater treatment plants and drinking water treatment plants: Removal efficiency and exposure risk. *Water Res.* **2016**, *106*, 562-570.

22. Yu, Q.; Zhang, R. Q.; Deng, S. B.; Huang, J.; Yu, G., Sorption of perfluorooctane sulfonate and perfluorooctanoate on activated carbons and resin: Kinetic and isotherm study. *Water Res.* **2009**, *43*, (4), 1150-1158.

23. Franke, V.; McCleaf, P.; Lindegren, K.; Ahrens, L., Efficient removal of perand polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in drinking water treatment: nanofiltration combined with active carbon or anion exchange. *Environmental Science Water Research & Technology* **2019**.

24. Bruton, T. K.; Sedlak, D. L., Treatment of Aqueous Film-Forming Foam by Heat-Activated Persulfate Under Conditions Representative of In Situ Chemical Oxidation. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (23), 13878-13885.

25. Schaefer, C.; Andaya, C.; Urtiaga, A.; McKenzie, E.; Higgins, C., Electrochemical treatment of perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctane sulfonic acid (pfos) in groundwater impacted by aqueous film forming foams (AFFFs). *J Haz Mat* **2015**, *295*, 170–175.

Singh, R. K.; Fernando, S.; Baygi, S. F.; Multari, N.; Thagard, S. M.; Holsen, T. M., Breakdown Products from Perfluorinated Alkyl Substances (PFAS)
Degradation in a Plasma-Based Water Treatment Process. *Environ. Sci. Technol.*2019, *53*, (5), 2731-2738.

27. Campbell, T. Y.; Vecitis, C. D.; Mader, B. T.; Hoffmann, M. R.,

Perfluorinated Surfactant Chain-Length Effects on Sonochemical Kinetics. *Journal of Physical Chemistry A* **2009**, *113*, (36), 9834-9842.

28. Appleman, T. D.; Dickenson, E. R. V.; Bellona, C.; Higgins, C. P., Nanofiltration and granular activated carbon treatment of perfluoroalkyl acids. *J. Hazard. Mater.* **2013**, *260*, 740-746.

29. Inyang, M.; Dickenson, E. R. V., The use of carbon adsorbents for the removal of perfluoroalkyl acids from potable reuse systems. *Chemosphere* **2017**, *184*, 168-175.

30. Ochoa-Herrera, V.; Sierra-Alvarez, R., Removal of perfluorinated surfactants by sorption onto granular activated carbon, zeolite and sludge. *Chemosphere* **2008**, 72, (10), 1588-1593.

31. Senevirathna, S.; Tanaka, S.; Fujii, S.; Kunacheva, C.; Harada, H.; Ariyadasa, B.; Shivakoti, B. R., Adsorption of perfluorooctane sulfonate (n-PFOS) onto non ion-exchange polymers and granular activated carbon: Batch and column test. *Desalination* **2010**, *260*, (1-3), 29-33.

32. Senevirathna, S.; Tanaka, S.; Fujii, S.; Kunacheva, C.; Harada, H.; Shivakoti, B. R.; Okamoto, R., A comparative study of adsorption of perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) onto granular activated carbon, ion-exchange polymers and non-ion-exchange polymers. *Chemosphere* **2010**, *80*, (6), 647-651.

33. Watanabe, N.; Takemine, S.; Yamamoto, K.; Haga, Y.; Takata, M., Residual organic fluorinated compounds from thermal treatment of PFOA, PFHxA and PFOS adsorbed onto granular activated carbon (GAC). *J. Mater. Cycles Waste Manag.* **2016**, *18*, (4), 625-630.

34. Xiao, X.; Ulrich, B. A.; Chen, B. L.; Higgins, C. P., Sorption of Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs) Relevant to Aqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF)-Impacted Groundwater by Biochars and Activated Carbon. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (11), 6342-6351.

35. Zaggia, A.; Conte, L.; Falletti, L.; Fant, M.; Chiorboli, A., Use of strong anion exchange resins for the removal of perfluoroalkylated substances from contaminated drinking water in batch and continuous pilot plants. *Water Res.* **2016**, *91*, 137-146.

36. Zhang, S.; Lu, X.; Wang, N.; Buck, R. C., Biotransformation potential of 6:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate (6:2 FTSA) in aerobic and anaerobic sediment. *Chemosphere* **2016**, *154*, 224-230.

37. Liu, X. Y.; Guo, Z. S.; Folk, E. E.; Roache, N. F., Determination of fluorotelomer alcohols in selected consumer products and preliminary investigation of their fate in the indoor environment. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 81-86.

38. Du, Z. W.; Deng, S. B.; Liu, D. C.; Yao, X. L.; Wang, Y.; Lu, X. Y.; Wang, B.; Huang, J.; Wang, Y. J.; Xing, B. S.; Yu, G., Efficient adsorption of PFOS and F53B from chrome plating wastewater and their subsequent degradation in the regeneration process. *Chem. Eng. J.* **2016**, *290*, 405-413.

39. McCleaf, P.; Englund, S.; Ostlund, A.; Lindegren, K.; Wiberg, K.; Ahrens, L., Removal efficiency of multiple poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in drinking water using granular activated carbon (GAC) and anion exchange (AE) column tests. *Water Res.* **2017**, *120*, 77-87.

40. Eschauzier, C.; Beerendonk, E.; Scholte-Veenendaal, P.; De Voogt, P., Impact of Treatment Processes on the Removal of Perfluoroalkyl Acids from the Drinking Water Production Chain. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (3), 1708-1715.

41. Krafft, M. P.; Riess, J. G., Per- and polyfluorinated substances (PFASs): Environmental challenges. *Curr. Opin. Colloid In.* **2015**, *20*, (3), 192-212.

42. D'Agostino, L. A.; Mabury, S. A., Certain Perfluoroalkyl and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances Associated with Aqueous Film Forming Foam Are Widespread in Canadian Surface Waters. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (23), 13603-13613.

43. Xiao, F.; Golovko, S. A.; Golovko, M. Y., Identification of novel non-ionic, cationic, zwitterionic, and anionic polyfluoroalkyl substances using UPLC-TOF-MSE high-resolution parent ion search. *Anal. Chim. Acta* **2017**, *988*, 41-49.

44. Munoz, G.; Labadie, P.; Botta, F.; Lestremau, F.; Lopez, B.; Geneste, E.; Pardon, P.; Devier, M. H.; Budzinski, H., Occurrence survey and spatial distribution of perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl surfactants in groundwater, surface water, and sediments from tropical environments. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2017**, *607*, 243-252.

45. Houtz, E. F.; Sedlak, D. L., Oxidative conversion as a means of detecting precursors to perfluoroalkyl acids in urban runoff. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (17), 9342-9349.

46. D'Agostino, L. A.; Mabury, S. A., Identification of novel fluorinated surfactants in aqueous film forming foams and commercial surfactant concentrates. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2014**, *48*, (1), 121-129.

47. Liu, Y. N.; Pereira, A. D.; Martin, J. W., Discovery of C-5-C-17 Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances in Water by In-Line SPE-HPLC-Orbitrap with In-Source Fragmentation Flagging. *Anal. Chem.* **2015**, *87*, (8), 4260-4268.

48. Munoz, G.; Duy, S. V.; Budzinski, H.; Labadie, P.; Liu, J. X.; Sauve, S., Quantitative analysis of poly- and perfluoroalkyl compounds in water matrices using high resolution mass spectrometry: Optimization for a laser diode thermal desorption method. *Anal. Chim. Acta* **2015**, *881*, 98-106.

49. Newton, S.; McMahen, R.; Stoeckel, J. A.; Chislock, M.; Lindstrom, A.; Strynar, M., Novel Polyfluorinated Compounds Identified Using High Resolution Mass Spectrometry Downstream of Manufacturing Facilities near Decatur, Alabama. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (3), 1544-1552.

50. Shoemaker, J.; BGrimmett, P.; Boutin, B., Method 537. Determination of selected perfluorinated alkyl acids in drinking water by solid phase extraction and liquid chromatography/tandem mass spectrometry (LC/MS/MS). In US EPA: Cincinnati, 2009; p 50.

51. Allred, B.; JR, L.; MA, B.; Field, J., Orthogonal zirconium diol/C18 liquid chromatography-tandem mass spectrometry analysis of poly and perfluoroalkyl substances in landfill leachate. *J. Chrom A* **2014**.

52. Robel, A. E.; Marshall, K.; Dickinson, M.; Lunderberg, D.; Butt, C.; Peaslee, G.; Stapleton, H. M.; Field, J. A., Closing the Mass Balance on Fluorine on Papers and Textiles. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (16), 9022-9032.

53. Summers, S. R., Kennedy, A.M., Knappe, D. R. U., Reinert, A.M., Fotta, M. E., Mastropole, A. J., Corwin, C. J., Roccaro, J. *Evaluation of Available Scale-Up Approaches for the Design of GAC Contactors.*;

https://www.semanticscholar.org/paper/Evaluation-of-Available-Scale-Up-Approaches-for-the-Mastropole/c5d89e9245612f5350bb0b30f48cfbaedb389587, 2011.

54. Knappe, D. R. U.; Matsui, Y.; Snoeyink, V. L.; Roche, P.; Prados, M. J.; Bourbigot, M. M., Predicting the capacity of powdered activated carbon for trace organic compounds in natural waters. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **1998**, *32*, (11), 1694-1698.

55. Ahrens, L.; Norstrom, K.; Viktor, T.; Cousins, A. P.; Josefsson, S., Stockholm Arlanda Airport as a source of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances to water, sediment and fish. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 33-38.

56. McGuire, M. E.; Schaefer, C.; Richards, T.; Backe, W. J.; Field, J. A.; Houtz, E.; Sedlak, D. L.; Guelfo, J. L.; Wunsch, A.; Higgins, C. P., Evidence of remediationinduced alteration of subsurface poly- and perfluoroalkyl substance distribution at a former firefighter training area. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2014**, *48*, (12), 6644-6652.

57. Harding-Marjanovic, K.; Houtz, E.; Yi, S.; Field, J.; Sedlak, D.; Alvarez-Cohen, L., Aerobic biotransformation of fluorotelomer thioether amido sulfonate (Lodyne) in AFFF-amended microcosms. *Environ Sci Technol* **2015**, *49*, 7666–7674.

58. Weiner, B.; Yeung, L. W. Y.; Marchington, E. B.; D'Agostino, L. A.; Mabury, S. A., Organic fluorine content in aqueous film forming foams (AFFFs) and biodegradation of the foam component 6: 2 fluorotelomermercaptoalkylamido sulfonate (6: 2 FTSAS). *Environ. Chem.* **2013**, *10*, (6), 486-493.

59. Kissa, E., *Fluorinated surfactants: Synthesis, Properties, and Applications.* Marcel Dekker: New York, 1994; Vol. 50.

60. 3M The Science of Organic Fluorochemistry;

http://www.fluoridealert.org/wp-content/pesticides/pfos.fr.final.docket.0006.pdf, 1999.

61. Riddell, N.; Arsenault, G.; Benskin, J. P.; Chittim, B.; Martin, J. W.; McAlees, A.; McCrindle, R., Branched perfluorooctane sulfonate isomer qantification and characterization in blood serum samples by HPLC/ESI-MS(/MS). *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2009**, *43*, (20), 7902-7908.

62. Labadie, P.; Chevreuil, M., Biogeochemical dynamics of perfluorinated alkyl acids and sulfonates in the River Seine (Paris, France) under contrasting hydrological conditions. *Environ. Pollut.* **2011**, *159*, (12), 3634-3639.

63. Kwadijk, C.; Korytar, P.; Koelmans, A. A., Distribution of Perfluorinated Compounds in Aquatic Systems in The Netherlands. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2010**, *44*, (10), 3746-3751.

64. Wang, N.; Szostek, B.; Buck, R. C.; Folsom, P. W.; Sulecki, L. M.; Gannon, J. T., 8-2 Fluorotelomer alcohol aerobic soil biodegradation: Pathways, metabolites, and metabolite yields. *Chemosphere* **2009**, *75*, (8), 1089-1096.

65. Wang, N.; Szostek, B.; Folsom, P. W.; Sulecki, L. M.; Capka, V.; Buck, R. C.; Berti, W. R.; Gannon, J. T., Aerobic biotransformation of C-14-labeled 8-2 telomer B alcohol by activated sludge from a domestic sewage treatment plant. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2005**, *39*, (2), 531-538.

66. Janda, J.; Nödler, K.; Scheurer, M.; Happel, O.; Nürenberg, G.; Zwiener, C.; Lange, F. T., Closing the gap – inclusion of ultrashort-chain perfluoroalkyl carboxylic

acids in the total oxidizable precursor (TOP) assay protocol. *Environ. Sci-Proc. Imp.* **2019**.

67. Houtz, E. F.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A.; Sedlak, D. L., Persistence of perfluoroalkyl acid precursors in AFFF-impacted groundwater and soil. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (15), 8187-8195.

68. Casson, R.; Chiang, S. Y., Integrating total oxidizable precursor assay data to evaluate fate and transport of PFASs. *Remediation* **2018**, *28*, (2), 71-87.

69. Houtz, E. F.; Sutton, R.; Park, J. S.; Sedlak, M., Poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances in wastewater: Significance of unknown precursors, manufacturing shifts, and likely AFFF impacts. *Water Res.* **2016**, *95*, 142-149.

70. Martin, D.; Munoz, G.; Mejia-Avendano, S.; Duy, S. V.; Yao, Y.; Volchek, K.; Brown, C. E.; Liu, J. X.; Sauve, S., Zwitterionic, cationic, and anionic perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances integrated into total oxidizable precursor assay of contaminated groundwater. *Talanta* **2019**, *195*, 533-542.

71. Minnesota Department of Health *Health Based Value for Perfluorobutryic Acid (PFBA)*; February 20, 2008.

72. Garcia, R. A.; Chiaia-Hernandez, A. C.; Lara-Martin, P. A.; Loos, M.; Hollender, J.; Oetjen, K.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A., Suspect Screening of Hydrocarbon Surfactants in AFFFs and AFFF-Contaminated Groundwater by High-Resolution Mass Spectrometry. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2019**, *53*, (14), 8068-8077.

Wang, N.; Liu, J. X.; Buck, R. C.; Korzeniowski, S. H.; Wolstenholme, B.
W.; Folsom, P. W.; Sulecki, L. M., 6:2 Fluorotelomer sulfonate aerobic biotransformation in activated sludge of waste water treatment plants. *Chemosphere* 2011, 82, (6), 853-858.

74. Mejia-Avendano, S.; Duy, S. V.; Sauve, S.; Liu, J. X., Generation of Perfluoroalkyl Acids from Aerobic Biotransformation of Quaternary Ammonium Polyfluoroalkyl Surfactants. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2016**, *50*, (18), 9923-9932.

Supporting Information

Branched and Linear Interpretation for the Removal of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances by Pilot-Scale Granular Activated Carbon System for in Groundwater at a Military Site

Alix E. Robel,¹ Detlef Knappe,² Dora Chiang,³ Dirk Pohlmann,⁴ Catharine Varley,⁵ Adria Bodour,⁵ Jennifer A. Field^{*1} ¹Department of Environmental and Molecular Toxicology, Oregon State University, Corvallis, OR ² Department of Civil, Construction, and Environmental Engineering, North Carolina State University, Raleigh, NC ³CDM Smith, Atlanta, GA ⁴Bay West, St. Paul, MN ⁵United States Air Force

Experimental Methods

Solvents and Chemicals

For analysis HPLC grade water (>99%, high purity, Burdick and Jackson brand), hydrochloric acid (BDH Chemicals), and ammonium acetate (reagent grade, Macrom Chemicals) were purchased from VWR (Radnor, PA). Sodium hydroxide (98%, reagent grade), ethyl acetate (99.9%, reagent grade), potassium persulfate (>99%, ACS reagent), and 2,2,2-Trifluoroethanol (99%, Fluka Analytical) were purchased from Sigma Aldrich (St. Louis, MO). Methanol (>99%, LC/MS grade) was purchased from Fisher Scientific (Hampton, NH).

Analysis by LC-QTOF

Analysis for all individual PFASs were performed on a Shimadzu Exion HPLC (Shimadzu, Kyoto, Japan) attached to a Sciex X500R quadrupole time of flight mass spectrometer (Sciex, Concord, Canada). All instrumental conditions and parameters can be found in Barzen-Hanson et al., 2017.[3] It is important to note that analysis was performed in suspect screening mode for approximately 300 individual PFASs. Non-target analysis for additional unknown PFASs was outside of the scope of this study. In an attempt to identify the PFAS mass in the influent, an upgradient groundwater sample nearer to the source zone than the influent sample in this study was analyzed by LC-QTOF as part of a prior experiment in Barzen-Hanson et al..[3] LC-QTOF analysis identified 52 individual PFASs, and all 52 observed PFASs are included in the LC-MS/MS method created for this study. However, when the positively validated LC-MS/MS method was used to screen the influent, only 16 PFASs were routinely observed.

TOP Assay

Equation S2 assumes equal molar conversion of known precursors to PFCAs after oxidation. No attempt was made to account for expected molar concentrations of any individual precursor due to variability of precursor recovery of TOP assay in the authors' previous work and between other laboratories.[4, 5]

Analyte	Acronym	PI*	CV*	FI-	CE*	FI-	CE*	Internal	Calibration	Data
		(m/z)	(V)	1*	(eV)	2*	(eV)	Standard	Reference	Qual
				(m/z)		(m/z)		10		
Perfluorobutanoic acid	PFBA	213	20	169	8	n/a	n/a	$[^{13}C_4]$ PFBA	PFBA	Qn
Perfluoropentanoic acid	PFPeA	263	20	219	8	n/a	n/a	[¹³ C ₃]PFPeA	PFPeA	Qn
Perfluorohexanoic acid	PFHxA	313	20	269	8	119	22	[¹³ C ₂]PFHxA	PFHxA	Qn
Perfluoroheptanoic acid	PFHpA	363	20	319	8	169	14	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFHpA	Sq
Perfluorooctanoic acid	PFOA	413	20	369	8	169	18	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFOA	Qn
Perfluorononaoic acid	PFNA	463	22	429	8	169	18	[¹³ C ₅]PFNA	PFNA	Qn
Perfluorodecanoic acid	PFDA	513	22	469	10	269	18	[¹³ C ₂]PFDA	PFDA	Qn
Perfluoroundecanoic acid	PFUnDA	563	22	519	10	169	22	[¹³ C ₂]PFUnDA	PFUnDA	Qn
Perfluorododecanoic acid	PFDoDA	613	22	569	10	169	24	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFDoDA	Qn
Perfluorortridecanoic acid	PFTriDA	663	24	619	12	169	26	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFTriDA	Sq
Perfluorotetradecanoic acid	PFTeDA	713	24	669	12	169	26	[¹³ C ₂]PFDoDA	PFTeDA	Sq
N-sulfo propyl perfluorobutane	SPr-FBSA	420	40	78	22	298	28	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFOA	Ql
N-sulfo propyl perfluoropentane	SPr-FPeSA	470	40	78	22	348	28	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFOA	Ql
N-sulfo propyl perfluorohexane	SPr-FHxSA	520	40	78	30	398	30	[¹³ C ₄]PFOA	PFOA	Ql
sulfonamide										
Perfluoropropane sulfonate	PFPrS	249	46	80	32	99	26	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFBS	PFPrS	Ql
Perfluorobutane sulfonate	PFBS	299	50	80	32	99	26	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFBS	PFBS	Qn
Perfluoropentane sulfonate	PFPeS	349	56	80	34	99	28	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFHxS	PFHxS	Sq
Branched Perfluorohexane sulfonate	Br-PFHxS	399	58	80	36	99	28	[¹⁸ O ₂]PFHxS	PFHxS	Qn
Perfluorheptane sulfonate	PFHpS	449	64	80	46	99	32	$[^{13}C_2]$ PFOS	PFOS	Sq
Branched Perfluorooctanesulfonic acid	Br-PFOS	499	70	80	46	99	34	$[^{13}C_2]$ PFOS	PFOS	Qn
Perfluorononane sulfonate	PFNS	549	72	80	50	99	36	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFDS	Sq

Table 4.4. LC-MS/MS target analyte full name, acronym, acquisition masses and parameters, internal standard, calibration reference, and data quality.

Perfluorodecane sulfonate	PFDS	599	76	80	52	99	36	[¹³ C ₂]PFOS	PFDS	Sq
4:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	4:2 FTS	327	42	307	19	81	26	[¹³ C ₂] 4:2 FtS	4:2 FTS	Qn
6:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	6:2 FTS	427	40	407	22	81	28	[¹³ C ₂] 6:2 FtS	6:2 FTS	Qn
8:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate	8:2 FTS	527	45	507	25	81	32	[¹³ C ₂] PFDA	8:2 FTS	Qn
N-(carboxymethyl)-N,N-dimethyl-3-	6:2 FtSaB	571	78	104	28	58	38	M-PFOS	6:2 FtSaB	Sq
(1H,1H,2H,2H-perfluoro-1-										
octanesulfonamido)propan-1-aminium										
N-(carboxymethyl)-N,N-dimethyl-3-	6:2 FtSaAm	513	60	58	44	86	34	M-PFOS	PFOS	Sq
(1H,1H,2H,2H-perfluoro-1-										
octanesulfonamido)propan-1-aminium										~ 1
Perfluoropropane sulfonamide	FPrSA	248	40	78	32	119	26	M-PFBS	PFBS	Ql
Perfluorobutane sulfonamide	FBSA	298	50	119	26	78	32	M-PFBS	PFBS	Ql
Perfluoropentane sulfonamide	FPeSA	348	40	78	35	119	35	M-FOSA	FOSA	Ql
Perfluorohexane sulfonamide	FHxSA	398	58	78	36	119	28	M-FOSA	FHxSA	Qn
Perfluorooctane sulfonamide	FOSA	498	40	78	30	319	30	M-FOSA	FOSA	Qn
Perluorobutane sulfinate	PFBSi	283	50	83	32	119	26	M-PFBS	PFBS	Ql
Perfluoropentane sulfinate	PFPeSi	333	40	83	35	119	35	M-PFPeA	PFPeA	Ql
Perfluorohexane sulfinate	PFHxSi	383	20	319	40	83	40	M-PFHxA	PFHxA	Ql
Perfluorooctane sulfinate	PFOSi	483	40	119	40	419	40	M-PFOA	PFOA	Ql
6:2 fluorotelomer sulfonyl	6:2	618	40	203	30	152	30	M-PFOA	PFOA	Ql
propanoamido-dimethylethyl sulfonate	FTSO2PrAd-									
	DiMeEtS									
8:2 fluorotelomer sulfonyl	8:2	718	40	206	30	152	30	M-PFOA	PFOA	Ql
propanoamido-dimethylethyl sulfonate	FTSO2PrAd-									
	DiMeEtS									
N-sulfo propyl dimethyl ammonio propyl	SPrAmPr-	507	40	383	40	182	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Ql
perfluorobutane sulfonamide	FBSA									~ .
N-sulfo propyl dimethyl ammonio propyl	SPrAmPr-	557	40	433	40	182	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Ql
perfluoropentane sulfonamide	FPeSA									

N-sulfo propyl dimethyl ammonio propyl perfluorobexane sulfonamide	SPrAmPr- FHxSA	607	40	483	40	182	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Ql
N-Trimethylammoniopropyl	TAmPr-	399	40	60	40	116	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Ql
perfluorobutane sulfonamide	FBSA TAmPr-	449	40	60	40	116	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	01
perfluoropentane sulfonamide	FPeSA		10	00	10	110	10		10011	Υ ¹
N-Trimethylammoniopropyl perfluorohexane sulfonamide	TAmPr- FHxSA	499	40	60	40	116	40	M-FOSA	FOSA	Ql
6:2 fluorotelomer thia propanoamido dimethyl ethyl sulfonate	6:2 FTTh- PrAd- DiMeEtS	586	35	135	20	80	20	M-PFOS	PFOS	Ql
N-methylperfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	N- MeFOSAA	570	34	169	20	419	10	M-N- MeFOSAA	N- MeFOSAA	Qn
N-ethylperfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	N-EtFOSAA	584	34	419	20	526	20	M-N- EtFOSAA	N- EtFOSAA	Qn
3-Perfluoropentyl propanoic acid (5:3)	FPePA	341	19	237	14	217	24	M-PFPeA	PFPeA	Sq
2H-perfluoro-2-octenoic acid	FHUEA	357	18	293	17	243	34	M-PFHxA	PFHxA	Sq
2-perfluorohexylethanoic acid	FHEA	377	20	293	22	63	7	M-PFHxA	PFHxA	Sq
Perfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	FOSAA	556	45	498	27	78	40	M-PFOA	PFOA	Sq
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]butanoic acid	[¹³ C ₄] PFBA	217	20	172	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[3,4,5- ¹³ C ₃]pentanoic acid	[¹³ C ₃] PFPeA	266	20	222	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]hexanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFHxA	315	20	270	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]heptanoic acid	[¹³ C4] PFHpA	367	15	322	11	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]octanoic acid	[¹³ C ₄] PFOA	417	20	372	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]octanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFOA	415	20	370	9	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a

Perfluoro[1,2,3,4,5- ¹³ C ₅]nonanoic acid	[¹³ C ₅] PFNA	468	22	423	8	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]decanoic acid	[¹³ C ₂] PFDA	515	22	470	10	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]undecanoic acid	$\begin{bmatrix} 1^{3}C_{2} \end{bmatrix}$	565	22	519	10	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]dodecanoic acid	$[^{13}C_2]$	615	22	570	10	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
2H-Perfluoro-[1,2- ¹³ C ₂]-2-octenoic acid	$[^{13}C_2]$	359	18	294	17	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro-1-[2,3,4- ¹³ C ₃]-butanesulfonate	$[^{13}C_2]$ PFBS	302	31	99	30	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro-1-hexane[¹⁸ O ₂]sulfonate	$[^{18}O_2]$	403	58	103	28	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro[1,2,3,4- ¹³ C ₄]octane sulfonate	$[^{13}C_2]$ PFOS	503	70	99	34	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
4:2[1,2- ¹³ C ₂] fluorotelomer sulfonate	$[^{13}C_2]$ 4:2	329	30	81	25	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
6:2 $[1,2^{-13}C_2]$ fluorotelomer sulfonate	$[^{13}C_2] 6:2$	429	44	409	22	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
8:2 $[1,2^{-13}C_2]$ fluorotelomer sulfonate	$[^{13}C_2]$ 8:2	529	45	81	35	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Perfluoro-1-[¹³ C ₈]octane sulfonamide	$[^{13}C_8]$ FOSA	506	40	78	30	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Methyl-d ₃ -perfluorooctane sulfonamido	$[^{2}H_{3}]$	573	34	419	20	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Ethyl-d ₅ -perfluorooctane sulfonamido acetic acid	[² H ₅] EtFOSAA	589	34	419	20	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a

 EtFOSAA

 *PI (precursor ion), CV (cone voltage), FI (fragmentation ion), CE (collision energy), Qn (quantitative), Sq (semiquantitative), Ql (qualitative), Sc (Screen)[1-3]

Results and Discussion

Table 4.5. Influent analyte concentrations before and after TOP assay (ng/L and nmol) \pm standard error and summed masses (nmol) \pm propagated standard error.

							Net
		Μ	Before TOP	After TOP	Before TOP	After TOP	production
	Analyte	W	Assay (ng/L)	Assay (ng/L)	Assay (nmol)	Assay (nmol)	(nmol)
		21					
	PFBA	4	78 ± 14	510 ± 37	0.36 ± 0.18	2.4 ± 0.1	2.0 ± 0.1
		26					
4s	PFPeA	4	400 ± 83	970 ± 110	1.5 ± 0.1	3.7 ± 0.2	2.2 ± 0.2
Ľ,		31					
PI	PFHxA	4	690 ± 140	5300 ± 460	2.2 ± 0.2	17 ± 1	15 ± 1
wn		36					
no	PFHpA	4	150 ± 19	230 ± 16	0.41 ± 0.02	0.63 ± 0.02	0.22 ± 0.03
X		41					$0.70 \pm$
	PFOA	4	900 ± 210	1200 ± 390	2.2 ± 0.2	2.9 ± 0.4	0.50***
		46					$0.14 \pm$
	PFNA	4	23 ± 16	88 ± 7	0.050 ± 0.015	0.19 ± 0.05	0.05***
		30					
	PFBS	0	16 ± 3	<loq< td=""><td>0.053 ± 0.005</td><td><loq< td=""><td>***</td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.053 ± 0.005	<loq< td=""><td>***</td></loq<>	***
\mathbf{As}		35					
FS	PFPeS	0	28 ± 9	<loq< td=""><td>0.080 ± 0.011</td><td><loq< td=""><td>***</td></loq<></td></loq<>	0.080 ± 0.011	<loq< td=""><td>***</td></loq<>	***
I P		40					
WI	PFHxS	0	1600 ± 430	$1400 \pm$	4.0 ± 0.5	3.5 ± 0.2	***
Knc		45					
×.	PFHpS	0	87 ± 34	$65 \pm$	0.19 ± 0.03	0.14 ± 0.02	***
		50					
	PFOS	0	3500 ± 470	2900 ±	7.0 ± 0.4	5.8 ± 0.2	***
ζn		32					
Ϋ́	4:2 FtSA	8	12 ± 3	<lod< td=""><td>0.037 ± 0.009</td><td><lod< td=""><td></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.037 ± 0.009	<lod< td=""><td></td></lod<>	

		42					
	6:2 FtSA	8	1100 ± 130	<lod< td=""><td>2.6 ± 0.1</td><td><lod< td=""><td></td></lod<></td></lod<>	2.6 ± 0.1	<lod< td=""><td></td></lod<>	
		52					
	8:2 FtSA	8	180 ± 68	<lod< td=""><td>0.34 ± 0.06</td><td><lod< td=""><td></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.34 ± 0.06	<lod< td=""><td></td></lod<>	
		34					
	FPeSA	8	82 ± 36	<lod< td=""><td>0.24 ± 0.05</td><td><lod< td=""><td></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.24 ± 0.05	<lod< td=""><td></td></lod<>	
		39	2500 . 200		(2,0)		
	FHXSA	8	2500 ± 380	<lod< td=""><td>6.3 ± 0.4</td><td><lod< td=""><td></td></lod<></td></lod<>	6.3 ± 0.4	<lod< td=""><td></td></lod<>	
	FOSA	44 Q	360 ± 86		0.80 ± 0.00		
	TOSA	0 49	300 ± 80	<lod< td=""><td>0.00 ± 0.09</td><td><lod< td=""><td></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.00 ± 0.09	<lod< td=""><td></td></lod<>	
	N-Tamp-FHxSA	9	91 ± 29	<lod< td=""><td>0.18 ± 0.05</td><td><lod< td=""><td></td></lod<></td></lod<>	0.18 ± 0.05	<lod< td=""><td></td></lod<>	
	ΣPFCAs (nmol)				6.7 ± 0.8	27 ± 1	20 ± 2
ary	ΣPFSAs (nmol)				11 ± 1	9.4 ± 0.3	***
nm	ΣKnown precursors						
Sur	(nmol)				11 ± 0	<lod< td=""><td></td></lod<>	
	ΣTotal PFASs (nmol)				29 ± 1	37 ± 1	

***The difference in the mean values of the two groups is not great enough to reject the possibility that the difference is due to random sampling variability. There is not a statistically significant difference between the TOP assay before and after oxidation.

Top Assay Calculations

a) Calculation for net production of PFCAs:

Net Production of PFCAs (nmol) $= \Sigma((PFBA_{after \ oxid} - PFBA_{before \ oxid}) + (PFPeA_{after \ oxid} - PFPeA_{before \ oxid}) + (PFHxA_{after \ oxid} - PFHxA_{before \ oxid}) + (PFHxA_{after \ oxid} - PFHpA_{before \ oxid}) + (PFOA_{after \ oxid} - PFOA_{before \ oxid}) + (PFNA_{after \ oxid} - PFNA_{before \ oxid})$ Example: Net Production of PFCAs (nmol) $= \Sigma((2.4 - 0.36) + (3.7 - 1.5) + (17 - 2.2) + (0.63 - 0.41) + (2.9 - 2.2) + (0.19 - 0.050) = 20.100 \ nmol$

b) Calculation for net production of PFCAs (simplified): Net Production of PFCAs (nmol) = $\Sigma PFCAs_{after oxid} - \Sigma PFCAs_{before oxidation}$

Example: Net Production of PFCAs (nmol) = 27 - 6.7 = 20 nmol

c) Equation S1. Calculation of unknown precursor mass. Unknown Precursor Mass (nmol) = $\Sigma PFCAs_{after \ oxid} - \Sigma PFCAs_{before \ oxid} - \Sigma Known Precursors_{before \ oxid}$

Example: Unknown Precursor Mass (nmol) = 27 - 6.7 - 10 = 9.6 nmol

d) Equation S2. Calculation of total mass of PFASs accounted for before the TOP assay (%).^{ψ}

Total mass accounted for by known PFAS (%) = $\left(\frac{(\Sigma PFCAs_{before oxid} + \Sigma PFSAs_{before oxid} + \Sigma Known Precursors_{before oxid})}{(\Sigma PFCAs_{after oxid} + \Sigma PFSAs_{after oxidation})} \times 100\right)$ Example: Ψ Total mass accounted for by known PEAS (%) = $\left(\frac{(6.7+11+10)}{(5.20+100)} \times 100\right) = \frac{28}{5} \times 100$ = 75%

Total mass accounted for by known PFAS (%) = $\left(\frac{(6.7+11+10)}{(27+11)} \times 100\right) = \left(\frac{28}{38} \times 100\right) = 75\%$

^{Ψ}As a result of the insignificant, but different, values for Σ PFSAs before and after oxidation the authors' have elected to underestimate the total mass accounted for by known PFAS (%) by using Σ PFSAs before oxidation.

Figure 4.5. Breakthrough curves for lead vessel of PFCAs, PFSAs, 6:2 FtS and FHxSA. Red stars denote the C/C_0 for the TOP assay at select BVs.



	Bed	Retention
	Volumes	Time (min)
PFBA	3900	6.8
PFPeA	3500	7.9
PFHxA	5500	9.4
PFHpA	4100	11.3
Br-PFOA	6200	12.8
L-PFOA	8500	13.3
PFPeS	10500	9.4
Br-PFHxS	8800	10.8
L-PFHxS	9000	11.2
PFHpS	14000	13.3
Br-PFOS	12900	14.8
L-PFOS	14900	15.5
6:2 FtS	10800	13.3
Br-FHxSA	11600	13.1
L-FHxSA	13000	13.6

Table S2. Analyte name, bed volumes at 20% breakthrough, and analytical retention time.

Literature Cited

1. Allred, B.; JR, L.; MA, B.; Field, J., Orthogonal zirconium diol/C18 liquid chromatography-tandem mass spectrometry analysis of poly and perfluoroalkyl substances in landfill leachate. *J. Chrom A* **2014**.

2. Backe, W. J.; Day, T. C.; Field, J. A., Zwitterionic, cationic, and anionic fluorinated chemicals in aqueous film forming foam formulations and groundwater from us military bases by nonaqueous large-volume injection HPLC-MS/MS. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (10), 5226-5234.

3. Barzen-Hanson, K. A.; Roberts, S. C.; Choyke, S.; Oetjen, K.; McAlees, A.; Riddell, N.; McCrindle, R.; Ferguson, P. L.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A., Discovery of 40 Classes of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Historical Aqueous Film-Forming Foams (AFFFs) and AFFF-Impacted Groundwater. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (4), 2047-2057.

4. Houtz, E. F.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A.; Sedlak, D. L., Persistence of perfluoroalkyl acid precursors in AFFF-impacted groundwater and soil. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (15), 8187-8195.

5. Munoz, G.; Labadie, P.; Botta, F.; Lestremau, F.; Lopez, B.; Geneste, E.; Pardon, P.; Devier, M. H.; Budzinski, H., Occurrence survey and spatial distribution of perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl surfactants in groundwater, surface water, and sediments from tropical environments. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2017**, *607*, 243-252.

Chapter 6: Conclusions

Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) are emerging contaminants that are abundant in the environment. The manufacturing production and application, which dates back to the 40's, continues to evolve as a result of various attempts to phase out PFAS. Humans are exposed to PFAS from a number of sources, and this dissertation discusses two of those sources, including consumer products and aqueous film-forming foams (AFFFs). Only drinking water has lifetime health advisory values for only perfluorooctanoate (PFOA) and perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS), yet many other PFASs are likely to be present in consumer products and AFFFs. The three chapters in this dissertation discuss the number, type, and disposition of PFASs in consumer products, field sampling materials, and AFFF-contaminated groundwater undergoing treatment.

In Chapter 2, 17 papers and textiles were examined for fluorinated content. Since papers and textiles can contribute to exposure to PFASs, it was important to evaluate extractable volatile and ionic PFASs by liquid chromatography mass spectrometry (LC-MS/MS) and gas chromatography mass spectrometry, respectively. In this study, methanol extraction was used as a proxy for transferable PFASs from the surface of papers and textiles. The volatile and ionic PFASs and the unknown precursors in the methanol extracts by the total oxidizable precursor (TOP) assay, were compared to the total fluorine content measured by particle-induced gamma ray emission (PIGE) spectroscopy, measured before and after methanol extraction. Volatile PFAS, ionic PFAS, and unknown precursors by TOP assay only accounted for 0.0-2.2%; 0.0-0.41%;

and 0.021-14%, respectively of the total fluorine by PIGE, prior to extraction. In the oldest material, the summed mass of volatile PFAS, ionic PFAS, and unknown precursors accounted for a maximum of 16% of the total fluorine present before extraction. The total fluorine remaining on papers and textiles after extraction, plus the individual PFAS and unknown precursors removed by methanol extraction accounted for 64 to 110% of the total fluorine originally present. Future research could examine aged materials for a wide range of PFAS and fluoropolymers, and explore the breakdown and leaching of polymeric materials under realistic landfill conditions.

In Chapter 3, 66 materials that are used during field sampling were extracted in methanol and analyzed by LC-MS/MS. The extractable PFAS content was then compared to total fluorine by PIGE. Total fluorine by PIGE was observed in 35% of field materials, where individual PFASs were only observed in 15% of materials, indicating that extractable PFASs are less abundant relative to the total fluorine. Although individual PFASs were observed at μ g/m² concentrations, for many materials that don't come in direct contact with field samples (e.g. groundwater, surface water, soil, sediment) there are no plausible scenarios for cross contamination. However, for materials which do come in direct contact with samples, the concentrations that are <LOD and <LOQ cannot plausibly support a cross contamination scenario. Thus, many materials are unnecessarily excluded from field sampling. Future work should include a larger number of PFASs and a greater number and diversity of field sampling materials that have the potential to directly interact with field samples (e.g. acetate liners, bailers, etc).

In Chapter 4, a pilot-scale granulated activated carbon (GAC) system, containing lead and lag vessels, was operated for nine months at an AFFF-contaminated site. In weekly or bi-weekly samples, a total of 17 PFAS were routinely observed, and 13 PFAS breakthrough curves were modeled. Breakthrough of both branched and linear PFASs was reported, and the total oxidizable precursor (TOP) assay was used to quantify any unknown precursor mass. Of the net production of perfluoroalkyl carboxylates by the TOP assay, $80 \pm 30\%$ was accounted for by individual PFASs. Breakthrough of PFAS at 20% of the influent concentration correlated with chromatographic retention time ($R^2 =$ 0.61) on a C18 analytical column. Practically, this relationship can be applied to other remediation efforts that rely on hydrophobic sorption processes. Chromatographic retention time is a parameter collected for individual PFAS during LC-MS/MS or LChigh resolution mass spectrometry and can be used to predict relative breakthrough order. Future work could further explore the predictive relationship between relative breakthrough order and chromatographic retention times for a larger number of environmentally relevant PFAS.

Bibliography

MIL-F-24385 QPL/QPD History for Type 6 AFFF; 2014.

MIL-F-24385 QPL/QPD History for Type 3 AFFF. 2014.

3M, 3M Fluorad Fluorosurfactant FC-129 Product Information Brochure. In Document 98-0212-0169-8,, 1997; pp 1-4.

3M *The Science of Organic Fluorochemistry*; http://www.fluoridealert.org/wp-content/pesticides/pfos.fr.final.docket.0006.pdf, 1999.

Ahrens, L.; Felizeter, S.; Sturm, R.; Xie, Z. Y.; Ebinghaus, R., Polyfluorinated compounds in waste water treatment plant effluents and surface waters along the River Elbe, Germany. *Mar. Pollut. Bull.* **2009**, *58*, (9), 1326-1333.

Ahrens, L.; Norstrom, K.; Viktor, T.; Cousins, A. P.; Josefsson, S., Stockholm Arlanda Airport as a source of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances to water, sediment and fish. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 33-38.

Allred, B.; JR, L.; MA, B.; Field, J., Orthogonal zirconium diol/C18 liquid chromatography-tandem mass spectrometry analysis of poly and perfluoroalkyl substances in landfill leachate. *J. Chrom A* **2014**.

Allred, B.; Lang, J.; Barlaz, M.; Field, J., Physical and biological release of poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) from municipal solid waste in anaerobic model landfill reactors. *Environ Sci Technol* **2015**, *49*, 7648-7656.

Anderson, J.; Claxton, B.; Long, E. Investigating Emerging Contaminants, The Military Engineer. (Accessed: July 30, 2015),

Anderson, R.; Long, G.; Porter, R.; Anderson, J., Occurrence of select perfluoroalkyl substances at US Air Force aqueous film-forming foam release sites other than fire-training areas: Field-validation of critical fate and transport properties. *Chemosphere* **2016**.

Ankley, G. T.; Kuehl, D. W.; Kahl, M. D.; Jensen, K. M.; Linnum, A.; Leino, R. L.; Villeneuve, D. A., Reproductive and developmental toxicity and bioconcentration of perfluorooctanesulfonate in a partial life-cycle test with the fathead minnow (Pimephales promelas). *Environ. Toxicol. Chem.* **2005**, *24*, (9), 2316-2324.

Appleman, T. D.; Dickenson, E. R. V.; Bellona, C.; Higgins, C. P., Nanofiltration and granular activated carbon treatment of perfluoroalkyl acids. *J. Hazard. Mater.* **2013**, *260*, 740-746.

Appleman, T. D.; Higgins, C. P.; Quinones, O.; Vanderford, B. J.; Kolstad, C.; Zeigler-Holady, J. C.; Dickenson, E. R. V., Treatment of poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances in US full-scale water treatment systems. *Water Res.* **2014**, *51*, 246-255.

Backe, W. J.; Day, T. C.; Field, J. A., Zwitterionic, cationic, and anionic fluorinated chemicals in aqueous film forming foam formulations and groundwater from us military bases by nonaqueous large-volume injection HPLC-MS/MS. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (10), 5226-5234.

Baduel, C.; Mueller, J. F.; Rotander, A.; Corfield, J.; Gomez-Ramos, M. J., Discovery of novel per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) at a fire fighting training ground and preliminary investigation of their fate and mobility. *Chemosphere* **2017**, *185*, 1030-1038.

Bartell, S. M.; Calafat, A. M.; Lyu, C.; Kato, K.; Ryan, P. B.; Steenland, K., Rate of Decline in Serum PFOA Concentrations after Granular Activated Carbon Filtration at Two Public Water Systems in Ohio and West Virginia. *Environmental Health Perspectives* **2010**, *118*, (2), 222-228.

Barzen-Hanson, K. A.; Roberts, S. C.; Choyke, S.; Oetjen, K.; McAlees, A.; Riddell, N.; McCrindle, R.; Ferguson, P. L.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A., Discovery of 40 Classes of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Historical Aqueous Film-Forming Foams (AFFFs) and AFFF-Impacted Groundwater. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (4), 2047-2057.

Begley, T.; White, K.; Honigfort, P.; Twaroski, M.; Neches, R.; Walker, R., Perfluorochemicals: potential sources of and migration from food packaging. *Food Add. Contam.* **2005**, *22*, (10), 1023-1031.

Begley, T. H.; Hsu, W.; Noonan, G.; Diachenko, G., Migration of fluorochemical paper additives from food-contact paper into foods and food simulants. *Food Additives and Contaminants* **2008**, *25*, (3), 384-390.

Benskin, J. P.; Li, B.; Ikonomou, M. G.; Grace, J. R.; Li, L. Y., Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances in Landfill Leachate: Patterns, Time Trends, and Sources. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (21), 11532-11540.

Berger, U.; Haukas, M., Validation of a screening method based on liquid chromatography coupled to high-resolution mass spectrometry for analysis of perfluoroalkylated substances in biota. *J. Chromatogr. A* **2005**, *1081*, (2), 210-217.

Boiteux, V.; Bach, C.; Sagres, V.; Hemard, J.; Colin, A.; Rosin, C.; Munoz, J. F.; Dauchy, X., Analysis of 29 per- and polyfluorinated compounds in water, sediment, soil and sludge by liquid chromatography-tandem mass spectrometry. *Int. J. Environ. Anal. Chem.* **2016**, *96*, (8), 705-728.

Boiteux, V.; Dauchy, X.; Bach, C.; Colin, A.; Hemard, J.; Sagres, V.; Rosin, C.; Munoz, J. F., Concentrations and patterns of perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in a river and three drinking water treatment plants near and far from a major production source. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2017**, *583*, 393-400.

Boucher, J. M.; Cousins, I. T.; Scheringer, M.; Hungerbuhler, K.; Wang, Z. Y., Toward a Comprehensive Global Emission Inventory of C-4-C-10 Perfluoroalkanesulfonic Acids (PFSAs) and Related Precursors: Focus on the Life Cycle of C-6- and C-10-Based Products. *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2019**, *6*, (1), 1-7.

Boulanger, B.; Vargo, J.; Schnoor, J.; Hornbuckle, K., Detection of perfluorooctane surfactants in Great Lakes water. *Environ Sci Tech* **2004**, *38*, 4064-4070.

Bruton, T. K.; Sedlak, D. L., Treatment of Aqueous Film-Forming Foam by Heat-Activated Persulfate Under Conditions Representative of In Situ Chemical Oxidation. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (23), 13878-13885.

Buck, R.; Franklin, J.; Berger, U.; Conder, J.; Cousins, I.; Voogt, P. d.; Jensen, A.; Kannan, K.; Mabury, S.; Leeuwen, S. v., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in the environment: terminology, classifications, and origins. *Integr Environ Assess Man* **2011**, *7*, 513.

Butt, C. M.; Muir, D. C. G.; Mabury, S. A., Biotransformation of the 8:2 Fluorotelomer Acrylate in Rainbow Trout 1 In Vivo Dietary Exposure. *Environ. Toxicol. Chem.* **2010**, *29*, (12), 2726-2735.

Butt, C. M.; Muir, D. C. G.; Mabury, S. A., Biotransformation pathways of fluorotelomer-based polyfluoroalkyl substances: A Review *Environ. Toxicol. Chem.* **2014**, *33*, (2), 243-267.

Bytingsvik, J.; van Leeuwen, S. P. J.; Hamers, T.; Swart, K.; Aars, J.; Lie, E.; Nilsen, E. M. E.; Wiig, O.; Derocher, A. E.; Jenssen, B. M., Perfluoroalkyl substances in polar bear mother-cub pairs: A comparative study based on plasma levels from 1998 and 2008. *Environ. Int.* **2012**, *49*, 92-99.

C8 Science Panel. http://www.c8sciencepanel.org/ (October 8, 2019).

California Water Boards State Water Resources Control Board, Perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and Perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS). In https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/PFOA_PFOS.html , 2019.

Campbell, T. Y.; Vecitis, C. D.; Mader, B. T.; Hoffmann, M. R., Perfluorinated Surfactant Chain-Length Effects on Sonochemical Kinetics. *Journal of Physical Chemistry A* **2009**, *113*, (36), 9834-9842.

Carter, K. E.; Farrell, J., Removal of Perfluorooctane and Perfluorobutane Sulfonate from Water via Carbon Adsorption and Ion Exchange. *Sep. Sci. Technol.* **2010**, *45*, (6), 762-767.

Casson, R.; Chiang, S. Y., Integrating total oxidizable precursor assay data to evaluate fate and transport of PFASs. *Remediation* **2018**, *28*, (2), 71-87.

Chu, S. G.; Letcher, R. J., Side-chain fluorinated polymer surfactants in aquatic sediment and biosolid-augmented agricultural soil from the Great Lakes basin of North America. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2017**, *607*, 262-270.

Cooperative Research Centre for Contamination Assessment and Remediation of the Environment Assessment, management and remediation for PFOS and PFOA Part 4: application of HSLs and ESLs; https://www.crccare.com/publications/technical-reports, 2017.

Cousins, I. T.; Ng, C. A.; Wang, Z. Y.; Scheringer, M., Why is high persistence alone a major cause of concern? *Environ. Sci.-Process Impacts* **2019**, *21*, (5), 781-792

D'Agostino, L. A.; Mabury, S. A., Identification of novel fluorinated surfactants in aqueous film forming foams and commercial surfactant concentrates. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2014**, *48*, (1), 121-129.

D'Agostino, L. A.; Mabury, S. A., Certain Perfluoroalkyl and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances Associated with Aqueous Film Forming Foam Are Widespread in Canadian Surface Waters. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (23), 13603-13613. De Silva, A. O.; Mabury, S. A., Isomer distribution of perfluorocarboxylates in human blood: Potential correlation to source. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2006**, *40*, (9), 2903-2909.

De Silva, A. O.; Spencer, C.; Scott, B. F.; Backus, S.; Muir, D. C. G., Detection of a Cyclic Perfluorinated Acid, Perfluoroethylcyclohexane Sulfonate, in the Great Lakes of North America. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2011**, *45*, (19), 8060-8066.

De Silva, A. O.; Allard, C. N.; Spencer, C.; Webster, G. M.; Shoeib, M., Phosphorus-Containing Fluorinated Organics: Polyfluoroalkyl Phosphoric Acid Diesters (diPAPs), Perfluorophosphonates (PFPAs), and Perfluorophosphinates (PFPIAs) in Residential Indoor Dust. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (22), 12575-12582.

Denly, L., Occhialini, J., Bassignani, P., Eberle, M., Rabah, N., Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances in environmental sampling products: Fact or fiction? *Remediation The Journal of Environmental Cleanup Costs, Technologies, & Techniques* **2019**, *29*, (4), 65-76.

Dinglasan-Panlilio, M. J. A.; Mabury, S. A., Significant residual fluorinated alcohols present in various fluorinated materials *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2006**, *40*, 1447–1453.

Dinglasan, M. J. A.; Ye, Y.; Edwards, E. A.; Mabury, S. A., Fluorotelomer alcohol biodegradation yields poly- and perfluorinated acids. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2004**, *38*, (10), 2857-2864.

Du, Z. W.; Deng, S. B.; Liu, D. C.; Yao, X. L.; Wang, Y.; Lu, X. Y.; Wang, B.; Huang, J.; Wang, Y. J.; Xing, B. S.; Yu, G., Efficient adsorption of PFOS and F53B from chrome plating wastewater and their subsequent degradation in the regeneration process. *Chem. Eng. J.* **2016**, *290*, 405-413.

Environmental Data Quality Working Group *Bottle Selection and other Sampling Considerations When Sampling for Per- and Poly-Fluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS)*; https://www.denix.osd.mil/edqw/home/what-s-new/unassigned/edqw-pfas-sampling-factsheet-rev-1-2-july-2017/.

EPA, U. S. *EPA and 3M Announce Phase Out of PFOS*; 2000. Eschauzier, C.; Beerendonk, E.; Scholte-Veenendaal, P.; De Voogt, P., Impact of Treatment Processes on the Removal of Perfluoroalkyl Acids from the Drinking Water Production Chain. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (3), 1708-1715.

Favreau, P.; Poncioni-Rothlisberger, C.; Place, B. J.; Bouchex-Bellomie, H.; Weber, A.; Tremp, J.; Field, J. A.; Kohler, M., Multianalyte profiling of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in liquid commercial products. *Chemosphere* **2017**, *171*, 491-501.

Filipovic, M.; Woldegiorgis, A.; Norstrom, K.; Bibi, M.; Lindberg, M.; Osteras, A. H., Historical usage of aqueous film forming foam: A case study of the widespread distribution of perfluoroalkyl acids from a military airport to groundwater, lakes, soils and fish. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 39-45.

Franke, V.; McCleaf, P.; Lindegren, K.; Ahrens, L., Efficient removal of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in drinking water treatment: nanofiltration combined with active carbon or anion exchange. *Environmental Science Water Research & Technology* **2019**.

Fraser, A. J.; Webster, T. F.; Watkins, D. J.; Strynar, M. J.; Kato, K.; Calafat, A. M.; Vieira, V. M.; McClean, M. D., Polyfluorinated compounds in dust from homes, offices, and vehicles as predictors of concentrations in office workers' serum. *Environ. Int.* **2013**, *60*, 128-136.

Fujii, Y.; Harada, K. H.; Koizumi, A., Occurrence of perfluorinated carboxylic acids (PFCAs) in personal care products and compounding agents. *Chemosphere* **2013**, *93*, (3), 538-544.

Garcia, R. A.; Chiaia-Hernandez, A. C.; Lara-Martin, P. A.; Loos, M.; Hollender, J.; Oetjen, K.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A., Suspect Screening of Hydrocarbon Surfactants in AFFFs and AFFF-Contaminated Groundwater by High-Resolution Mass Spectrometry. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2019**, *53*, (14), 8068-8077.

Gomis, M. I.; Wang, Z. Y.; Scheringer, M.; Cousins, I. T., A modeling assessment of the physicochemical properties and environmental fate of emerging and novel per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2015**, *505*, 981-991.

Gremmel, C.; Fromel, T.; Knepper, T., HPLC-MS/MS methods for the determination of 52 perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in aqueous samples. *Anal. Bioanal. Chem.* **2017**, *409*, (6), 1643-1655.

Gruber, L. W., G.; Hagl, T.; Schlummer, M., Water-repellent textiles for technical applications release perfluorinated carboxylic acids (PFAA) after chemical oxidation. In In 6th International Workshop on PFASs, At Idstein, Idstein, Germany, 2014, 2014. Guelfo, J. L.; Higgins, C. P., Subsurface transport potential of perfluoroalkyl acids at aqueous film-forming foam (AFFF)-impacted sites. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (9), 4164-4171.

Gyllenhammar, I.; Berger, U.; Sundstrom, M.; McCleaf, P.; Euren, K.; Eriksson, S.; Ahlgren, S.; Lignell, S.; Aune, M.; Kotova, N.; Glynn, A., Influence of contaminated drinking water on perfluoroalkyl acid levels in human serum - A case study from Uppsala, Sweden. *Environmental Research* **2015**, *140*, 673-683.

Harding-Marjanovic, K.; Houtz, E.; Yi, S.; Field, J.; Sedlak, D.; Alvarez-Cohen, L., Aerobic biotransformation of fluorotelomer thioether amido sulfonate (Lodyne) in AFFF-amended microcosms. *Environ Sci Technol* **2015**, *49*, 7666–7674.

Harding-Marjanovic, K. C.; Houtz, E. F.; Yi, S.; Field, J. A.; Sedlak, D. L.; Alvarez-Cohen, L., Aerobic Biotransformation of Fluorotelomer Thioether Amido Sulfonate (Lodyne) in AFFF-Amended Microcosms. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2015**, *49*, (13), 7666-7674.

Herzke, D.; Olsson, E.; Posner, S., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in consumer products in Norway – A pilot study. *Chemosphere* **2012**, *88*, (8), 980-987.

Herzke, D.; Huber, S.; Bervoets, L.; D'Hollander, W.; Hajslova, J.; Pulkrabova, J.; Brambilla, G.; De Filippis, S. P.; Klenow, S.; Heinemeyer, G.; de Voogt, P., Perfluorinated alkylated substances in vegetables collected in four European countries; occurrence and human exposure estimations. *Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res.* **2013**, *20*, (11), 7930-7939.

Houtz, E. F.; Sedlak, D. L., Oxidative conversion as a means of detecting precursors to perfluoroalkyl acids in urban runoff. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (17), 9342-9349.

Houtz, E. F.; Higgins, C. P.; Field, J. A.; Sedlak, D. L., Persistence of perfluoroalkyl acid precursors in AFFF-impacted groundwater and soil. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (15), 8187-8195.

Houtz, E. F.; Sutton, R.; Park, J. S.; Sedlak, M., Poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances in wastewater: Significance of unknown precursors, manufacturing shifts, and likely AFFF impacts. *Water Res.* **2016**, *95*, 142-149.

Hu, X. D. C.; Andrews, D. Q.; Lindstrom, A. B.; Bruton, T. A.; Schaider, L. A.; Grandjean, P.; Lohmann, R.; Carignan, C. C.; Blum, A.; Balan, S. A.; Higgins, C. P.; Sunderland, E. M., Detection of Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs) in US Drinking Water Linked to Industrial Sites, Military Fire Training Areas, and Wastewater Treatment Plants. *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2016**, *3*, (10), 344-350.

Inyang, M.; Dickenson, E. R. V., The use of carbon adsorbents for the removal of perfluoroalkyl acids from potable reuse systems. *Chemosphere* **2017**, *184*, 168-175.

Janda, J.; Nödler, K.; Scheurer, M.; Happel, O.; Nürenberg, G.; Zwiener, C.; Lange, F. T., Closing the gap – inclusion of ultrashort-chain perfluoroalkyl carboxylic acids in the total oxidizable precursor (TOP) assay protocol. *Environ. Sci-Proc. Imp.* **2019**.

Kannan, K.; Tao, L.; Sinclair, E.; Pastva, S. D.; Jude, D. J.; Giesy, J. P., Perfluorinated compounds in aquatic organisms at various trophic levels in a Great Lakes food chain. *Archives of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology* **2005**, *48*, (4), 559-566.

Kim, S. K.; Shoeib, M.; Kim, K. S.; Park, J. E., Indoor and outdoor poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in Korea determined by passive air sampler. *Environ. Pollut.* **2012**, *162*, 144-150.

Kissa, E., *Fluorinated surfactants: Synthesis, Properties, and Applications*. Marcel Dekker: New York, 1994; Vol. 50.

Kissa, E., *Fluorinated Surfactants and Repellants*. Second ed.; Marcel Dekker, Inc.: New York, 2001.

Knappe, D. R. U.; Matsui, Y.; Snoeyink, V. L.; Roche, P.; Prados, M. J.; Bourbigot, M. M., Predicting the capacity of powdered activated carbon for trace organic compounds in natural waters. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **1998**, *32*, (11), 1694-1698.

Korzeniowski, S. H., Buck, R. C., Kempisty, D.M., Pabon, M., *Fluorosurfactants in Firefighting Foams Past and Present*. CRC Press: 2018.

Kotthoff, M.; Muller, J.; Jurling, H.; Schlummer, M.; Fiedler, D., Perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances in consumer products. *Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res.* **2015**, *22*, (19), 14546-14559.
Krafft, M. P.; Riess, J. G., Per- and polyfluorinated substances (PFASs): Environmental challenges. *Curr. Opin. Colloid In.* **2015**, *20*, (3), 192-212.

Krafft, M. P.; Riess, J. G., Selected physicochemical aspects of poly- and perfluoroalkylated substances relevant to performance, environment and sustainability-Part one. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 4-19.

Kwadijk, C.; Korytar, P.; Koelmans, A. A., Distribution of Perfluorinated Compounds in Aquatic Systems in The Netherlands. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2010**, *44*, (10), 3746-3751.

Labadie, P.; Chevreuil, M., Biogeochemical dynamics of perfluorinated alkyl acids and sulfonates in the River Seine (Paris, France) under contrasting hydrological conditions. *Environ. Pollut.* **2011**, *159*, (12), 3634-3639.

Lanza, H. A.; Cochran, R. S.; Mudge, J. F.; Olson, A. D.; Blackwell, B. R.; Maul, J. D.; Salice, C. J.; Anderson, T. A., Temporal Monitoring of Perfluorooctane Sulfonate Accumulation in Aquatic Biota Downstream of Historic Aqueous Film Forming Foam Use Areas. *Environ. Toxicol. Chem.* **2017**, *36*, (8), 2022-2029.

Liu, J.; Lee, L. S.; Nies, L. F.; Nakatsu, C. H.; Turco, R. F., Biotransformation of 8 : 2 fluorotelorner alcohol in soil and by soil bacteria isolates. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2007**, *41*, (23), 8024-8030.

Liu, X. Y.; Guo, Z. S.; Krebs, K. A.; Pope, R. H.; Roache, N. F., Concentrations and trends of perfluorinated chemicals in potential indoor sources from 2007 through 2011 in the US. *Chemosphere* **2014**, *98*, 51-57.

Liu, X. Y.; Guo, Z. S.; Folk, E. E.; Roache, N. F., Determination of fluorotelomer alcohols in selected consumer products and preliminary investigation of their fate in the indoor environment. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *129*, 81-86.

Liu, Y. N.; Pereira, A. D.; Martin, J. W., Discovery of C-5-C-17 Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances in Water by In-Line SPE-HPLC-Orbitrap with In-Source Fragmentation Flagging. *Anal. Chem.* **2015**, *87*, (8), 4260-4268.

Martin, D.; Munoz, G.; Mejia-Avendano, S.; Duy, S. V.; Yao, Y.; Volchek, K.; Brown, C. E.; Liu, J. X.; Sauve, S., Zwitterionic, cationic, and anionic perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances integrated into total oxidizable precursor assay of contaminated groundwater. *Talanta* **2019**, *195*, 533-542.

Martin, J. W.; Chan, K.; Mabury, S. A.; O'Brien, P. J., Bioactivation of fluorotelomer alcohols in isolated rat hepatocytes. *Chemico-Biological Interactions* **2009**, *177*, (3), 196-203.

Martin, J. W.; Smithwick, M. M.; Braune, B. M.; Hoekstra, P. F.; Muir, D. C. G.; Mabury, S. A., Identification of long-chain perfluorinated acids in biota from the Canadian Arctic. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2004**, *38*, (2), 373-380.

Martinez-Moral, M. P.; Tena, M. T., Determination of perfluorocompounds in popcorn packaging by pressurised liquid extraction and ultra-performance liquid chromatography-tandem mass spectrometry. *Talanta* **2012**, *101*, 104-109.

Mawn, M. P.; McKay, R. G.; Ryan, T. W.; Szostek, B.; Powley, C. R.; Buck, R. C., Determination of extractable perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) in water, sweat simulant, saliva simulant, and methanol from textile and carpet samples by LC/MS/MS. *Analyst* **2005**, *130*, (5), 670-678.

McCleaf, P.; Englund, S.; Ostlund, A.; Lindegren, K.; Wiberg, K.; Ahrens, L., Removal efficiency of multiple poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in drinking water using granular activated carbon (GAC) and anion exchange (AE) column tests. *Water Res.* **2017**, *120*, 77-87.

McGuire, M. E.; Schaefer, C.; Richards, T.; Backe, W. J.; Field, J. A.; Houtz, E.; Sedlak, D. L.; Guelfo, J. L.; Wunsch, A.; Higgins, C. P., Evidence of remediation-induced alteration of subsurface poly- and perfluoroalkyl substance distribution at a former firefighter training area. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2014**, *48*, (12), 6644-6652.

Mejia-Avendano, S.; Duy, S. V.; Sauve, S.; Liu, J. X., Generation of Perfluoroalkyl Acids from Aerobic Biotransformation of Quaternary Ammonium Polyfluoroalkyl Surfactants. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2016**, *50*, (18), 9923-9932.

Mejia-Avendano, S.; Munoz, G.; Duy, S. V.; Desrosiers, M.; Benoit, P.; Sauve, S.; Liu, J. X., Novel Fluoroalkylated Surfactants in Soils Following Firefighting Foam Deployment During the Lac-Megantic Railway Accident. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (15), 8313-8323.

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality For Homeowners - Private Residential Well PFAS Sampling Guidance;

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/pfasresponse/Residential_Well_PFAS_Sampling_ Guidance_For_Homeowners_637294_7.pdf, 2018.

Minnesota Department of Health *Health Based Value for Perfluorobutryic Acid (PFBA)*; February 20, 2008.

Miyake, Y.; Yamashita, N.; So, M. K.; Rostkowski, P.; Taniyasu, S.; Lam, P. K. S.; Kannan, K., Trace analysis of total fluorine in human blood using combustion ion chromatography for fluorine: A mass balance approach for the determination of known and unknown organofluorine compounds. *J. Chromatogr. A* **2007**, *1154*, (1-2), 214-221.

Moody, C. A.; Field, J. A., Determination of perfluorocarboxylates in groundwater impacted by fire-fighting activity. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **1999**, *33*, (16), 2800-2806.

Munoz, G.; Duy, S. V.; Budzinski, H.; Labadie, P.; Liu, J. X.; Sauve, S., Quantitative analysis of poly- and perfluoroalkyl compounds in water matrices using high resolution mass spectrometry: Optimization for a laser diode thermal desorption method. *Anal. Chim. Acta* **2015**, *881*, 98-106.

Munoz, G.; Duy, S. V.; Labadie, P.; Botta, F.; Budsinski, H.; Lestremau, F.; Liu, J.; Sauve, S., Analysis of zwitterionic, cationic, and anionic poly- and perfluoroalkyl surfactants in sediments by liquid chromatography polarity-switching electrospray ionization coupled to high resolution mass spectrometry. *Talanta* **2016**.

Munoz, G.; Desrosiers, M.; Duy, S. V.; Labadie, P.; Budzinsk, H.; Liu, J. X.; Sauve, S., Environmental Occurrence of Perfluoroalkyl Acids and Novel Fluorotelomer Surfactants in the Freshwater Fish Catostomus commersonii and Sediments Following Firefighting Foam Deployment at the Lac-Megantic Railway Accident. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (3), 1231-1240.

Munoz, G.; Labadie, P.; Botta, F.; Lestremau, F.; Lopez, B.; Geneste, E.; Pardon, P.; Devier, M. H.; Budzinski, H., Occurrence survey and spatial distribution of perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl surfactants in groundwater, surface water, and sediments from tropical environments. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2017**, *607*, 243-252.

Nakai, K.; Yamamoto, Y.; Okamoto, E.; Yamamoto, T.; Yoshida, F.; Matsumura, A.; Yamada, N.; Kitamura, A.; Koka, M.; Satoh, T., Boron analysis for neutron capture therapy using particle-induced gamma-ray emission. *Appl. Radiat. Isot.* **2015**, *106*, 166-170.

New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services Sampling for Per- and Polyfluoroakyl Substances/Perfluorinated Chemicals (PFASs/PFCs) at Contaminated Sites; https://www.des.nh.gov/organization/commissioner/pfas.htm, 2016.

Newsted, J. L.; Beach, S. A.; Gallagher, S. P.; Giesy, J. P., Acute and chronic effects of perfluorobutane sulfonate (PFBS) on the mallard and northern bobwhite quail. *Archives of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology* **2008**, *54*, (3), 535-545.

Newton, S.; McMahen, R.; Stoeckel, J. A.; Chislock, M.; Lindstrom, A.; Strynar, M., Novel Polyfluorinated Compounds Identified Using High Resolution Mass Spectrometry Downstream of Manufacturing Facilities near Decatur, Alabama. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (3), 1544-1552.

NGWA The Groundwater Association Press *Groundwater and PFAS: State of Knowledge and Practice*; https://www.ngwa.org/what-is-groundwater/groundwater-issues/Groundwater-and-PFAS, 2019.

Nilsson, H.; Karrman, A.; Rotander, A.; van Bavel, B.; Lindstrom, G.; Westberg, H., Biotransformation of fluorotelomer compound to perfluorocarboxylates in humans. *Environ. Int.* **2013**, *51*, 8-12.

Ochoa-Herrera, V.; Sierra-Alvarez, R., Removal of perfluorinated surfactants by sorption onto granular activated carbon, zeolite and sludge. *Chemosphere* **2008**, *72*, (10), 1588-1593.

Pan, C. G.; Liu, Y. S.; Ying, G. G., Perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) in wastewater treatment plants and drinking water treatment plants: Removal efficiency and exposure risk. *Water Res.* **2016**, *106*, 562-570.

Paul, A. G.; Jones, K. C.; Sweetman, A. J., A First Global Production, Emission, And Environmental Inventory For Perfluorooctane Sulfonate. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* 2009, 43, (2), 386-392.

Perez, F.; Nadal, M.; Navarro-Ortega, A.; Fabrega, F.; Domingo, J. L.; Barcelo, D.; Farre, M., Accumulation of perfluoroalkyl substances in human tissues. *Environ. Int.* **2013**, *59*, 354-362.

Phillips, M. M.; Dinglasan-Panlilio, M. J.; Mabury, S. A.; Solomon, K. R.; Sibley, P. K., Chronic toxicity of fluorotelomer acids to Daphnia magna and Chironomus dilutus. *Environ Toxicol Chem* **2010**, *29*, (5), 1123-31.

Phillips, M. M.; Dinglasan-Panlilio, M. J.; Mabury, S. A.; Solomon, K. R.; Sibley, P. K., Fluorotelomer acids are more toxic than perfluorinated acids. *Environ Sci Technol* **2007**, *41*, (20), 7159-63.

Place, B. J.; Field, J. A., Identification of novel fluorochemicals in aqueous film-forming foams used by the US military. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2012**, *46*, (13), 7120-7127.

Poothong, S.; Boontanon, S. K.; Boontanon, N., Extraction procedure optimization for perfluorooctane sulfonate and perfluorooctanoic acid in food packaging determination by LC-MS/MS. *J. Environ. Sci. Heal. B.* **2013**, *48*, (10), 830-835.

Prevedouros, K.; Cousins, I.; Buck, R.; Korzeniowski, S., Sources, Fate, and Transport of Perfluorocarboxylates. *ES&T* **2006**, *40*, (1), 32-44.

Rewerts, J. N.; Morre, J. T.; Simonich, S. L. M.; Field, J. A., In-Vial Extraction Large Volume Gas Chromatography Mass Spectrometry for Analysis of Volatile PFASs on Papers and Textiles. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2018**, *52*, (18), 10609-10616.

Rhoads, K. R.; Janssen, E. M. L.; Luthy, R. G.; Criddle, C. S., Aerobic biotransformation and fate of N-ethyl perfluorooctane sulfonamidoethanol (N-EtFOSE) in activated sludge. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2008**, *42*, (8), 2873-2878.

Riddell, N.; Arsenault, G.; Benskin, J. P.; Chittim, B.; Martin, J. W.; McAlees, A.; McCrindle, R., Branched perfluorooctane sulfonate isomer qantification and characterization in blood serum samples by HPLC/ESI-MS(/MS). *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2009**, *43*, (20), 7902-7908.

Ritter, E. E.; Dickinson, M. E.; Harron, J. P.; Lunderberg, D. M.; DeYoung, P. A.; Robel, A. E.; Field, J. A.; Peaslee, G. F., PIGE as a screening tool for Per- and polyfluorinated substances in papers and textiles. *Nucl. Instrum. Meth. B.* **2017**, *407*, 47-54.

Robel, A. E.; Marshall, K.; Dickinson, M.; Lunderberg, D.; Butt, C.; Peaslee, G.; Stapleton, H. M.; Field, J. A., Closing the Mass Balance on Fluorine on Papers and Textiles. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (16), 9022-9032.

Ruan, T.; Lin, Y. F.; Wang, T.; Liu, R. Z.; Jiang, G. B., Identification of Novel Polyfluorinated Ether Sulfonates as PFOS Alternatives in Municipal Sewage Sludge in China. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2015**, *49*, (11), 6519-6527.

Schaefer, C.; Andaya, C.; Urtiaga, A.; McKenzie, E.; Higgins, C., Electrochemical treatment of perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctane sulfonic acid (pfos) in groundwater impacted by aqueous film forming foams (AFFFs). *J Haz Mat* **2015**, *295*, 170–175.

Schaider, L. A.; Balan, S. A.; Blum, A.; Andrews, D. Q.; Strynar, M. J.; Dickinson, M. E.; Lunderberg, D. M.; Lang, J. R.; Peaslee, G. F., Fluorinated Compounds in US Fast Food Packaging. *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2017**, *4*, (3), 105-111.

Schultes, L.; Vestergren, R.; Volkova, K.; Westberg, E.; Jacobson, T.; Benskin, J. P., Perand polyfluoroalkyl substances and fluorine mass balance in cosmetic products from the Swedish market: implications for environmental emissions and human exposure. *Environ. Sci-Proc. Imp.* **2018**, *20*, (12), 1680-1690.

Senevirathna, S.; Tanaka, S.; Fujii, S.; Kunacheva, C.; Harada, H.; Ariyadasa, B.; Shivakoti, B. R., Adsorption of perfluorooctane sulfonate (n-PFOS) onto non ion-exchange polymers and granular activated carbon: Batch and column test. *Desalination* **2010**, *260*, (1-3), 29-33.

Senevirathna, S.; Tanaka, S.; Fujii, S.; Kunacheva, C.; Harada, H.; Shivakoti, B. R.; Okamoto, R., A comparative study of adsorption of perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) onto granular activated carbon, ion-exchange polymers and non-ion-exchange polymers. *Chemosphere* **2010**, *80*, (6), 647-651.

Shoeib, M.; Harner, T.; Wilford, B. H.; Jones, K. C.; Zhu, J. P., Perfluorinated sulfonamides in indoor and outdoor air and indoor dust: Occurrence, partitioning, and human exposure. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2005**, *39*, (17), 6599-6606.

Shoemaker, J.; BGrimmett, P.; Boutin, B., Method 537. Determination of selected perfluorinated alkyl acids in drinking water by solid phase extraction and liquid chromatography/tandem mass spectrometry (LC/MS/MS). In US EPA: Cincinnati, 2009; p 50.

Sinclair, E.; Kannan, K., Mass loading and fate of perfluoroalkyl surfactants in wastewater treatment plants *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2006**.

Sinclair, E.; Kim, S. K.; Akinleye, H. B.; Kannan, K., Quantitation of gas-phase perfluoroalkyl surfactants and fluorotelomer alcohols released from nonstick cookware and microwave popcorn bags. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2007**, *41*, (4), 1180-1185.

Singh, R. K.; Fernando, S.; Baygi, S. F.; Multari, N.; Thagard, S. M.; Holsen, T. M., Breakdown Products from Perfluorinated Alkyl Substances (PFAS) Degradation in a Plasma-Based Water Treatment Process. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2019**, *53*, (5), 2731-2738.

Stadalius, M.; Connolly, P.; L'Empereur, K.; Flaherty, J. M.; Isemura, T.; Kaiser, M. A.; Knaup, W.; Noguchi, M., A method for the low-level (ng g(-1)) determination of perfluorooctanoate in paper and textile by liquid chromatography with tandem mass spectrometry. *J. Chromatogr. A* **2006**, *1123*, (1), 10-14.

Summers, S. R., Kennedy, A.M., Knappe, D. R. U., Reinert, A.M., Fotta, M. E., Mastropole, A. J., Corwin, C. J., Roccaro, J. *Evaluation of Available Scale-Up Approaches for the Design of GAC Contactors.*; https://www.semanticscholar.org/paper/Evaluation-of-Available-Scale-Up-Approachesfor-the-Mastropole/c5d89e9245612f5350bb0b30f48cfbaedb389587, 2011.

Supreeyasunthorn, P.; Boontanon, S. K.; Boontanon, N., Perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) contamination from textiles. *J. Environ. Sci. Health Part A-Toxic/Hazard. Subst. Environ. Eng.* **2016**, *51*, (6), 472-477.

Surma, M.; Wiczkowski, W.; Zielinski, H.; Cieslik, E., Determination of Selected Perfluorinated Acids (PFCAs) and Perfluorinated Sulfonates (PFASs) in Food Contact Materials Using LC-MS/MS. *Packag. Technol. Sci.* **2015**, *28*, (9), 789-799.

Tian, Z.; Kim, S. K.; Shoeib, M.; Oh, J. E.; Park, J. E., Human exposure to per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs) via house dust in Korea: Implication to exposure pathway. *Sci. Total Environ.* **2016**, *553*, 266-275.

Tokranov, A. K.; Nishizawa, N.; Amadei, C. A.; Zenobio, J. E.; Pickard, H. M.; Allen, J. G.; Vecitis, C. D.; Sunderland, E. M., How Do We Measure Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs) at the Surface of Consumer Products? *Environ. Sci. Technol. Lett.* **2019**, *6*, (1), 38-43.

Tomy, G. T.; Budakowski, W.; Halldorson, T.; Helm, P. A.; Stern, G. A.; Friesen, K.; Pepper, K.; Tittlemier, S. A.; Fisk, A. T., Fluorinated organic compounds in an eastern Arctic marine food web. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2004**, *38*, (24), 6475-6481.

Trier, X.; Granby, K.; Christensen, J. H., Polyfluorinated surfactants (PFS) in paper and board coatings for food packaging. *Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res.* **2011**, *18*, (7), 1108-1120.

Trier, X.; Nielsen, N. J.; Christensen, J. H., Structural isomers of polyfluorinated di- and tri-alkylated phosphate ester surfactants present in industrial blends and in microwave popcorn bags. *Environ. Sci. Pollut. Res.* **2011**, *18*, (8), 1422-1432.

U.S. Department of Defense *Department of the Navy*, *Interim Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) Site Guidance for NAVFAC Remedial Project Managers (RPMs)/Septmber 2017 Update*; file:///C:/Users/robela/Downloads/US%20Navy%20PFAS%20GUIDANCE%20SEPT%2 02017.pdf, 2017.

U.S. Department of Defense *Department of the Army, Army Guidance for Addressing Releases of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances;* file:///C:/Users/robela/Downloads/ARMY%20PFAS%20Guidance%20Signed%204-Sep%2018.pdf, 2018.

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency *National Primary Drinking Water Regulations*; https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/national-primary-drinking-water-regulations, 2009.

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Pollution Prevention and Toxics 2010/15 PFOA Stewardship Program Guidance on Reporting Emissions and Product Content; https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2015-10/documents/pfoaguidance.pdf, 2006.

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Water, Provisonal Health Advisories for Perfluooctanoic Acid (PFOA) and Perfluorooctane Sulfonate (PFOS). **2009**.

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Press Office, EPA Acting Administrator Announces First-Ever Comprehensive Nationwide PFAS Action Plan Historic plan outlines concrete steps the agency is taking to address PFAS and to protect public health. In 2019.

U.S. EPA Office of Water, Drinking Water Health Advisories for PFOA and PFOS. In https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/drinking-water-health-advisories-pfoa-and-pfos, 2017.

van der Veen, I.; Weiss, J. M.; Hanning, A. C.; de Boer, J.; Leonards, P. E. G., Development and validation of a method for the quantification of extractable

perfluoroalkyl acids (PFAAs) and perfluorooctane sulfonamide (FOSA) in textiles. *Talanta* **2016**, *147*, 8-15.

Vestergren, R.; Cousins, I. T.; Trudel, D.; Wormuth, M.; Scheringer, M., Estimating the contribution of precursor compounds in consumer exposure to PFOS and PFOA. *Chemosphere* **2008**, *73*, (10), 1617-1624.

Vestergren, R.; Cousins, I. T., Tracking the Pathways of Human Exposure to Perfluorocarboxylates. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2009**, *43*, (15), 5565-5575.

Vestergren, R.; Herzke, D.; Wang, T.; Cousins, I. T., Are imported consumer products an important diffuse source of PFASs to the Norwegian environment? *Environ. Pollut.* **2015**, *198*, 223-230.

Vial, J.; Jardy, A., Experimental comparison of the different approaches to estimate LOD and LOQ of an HPLC method. *Anal. Chem.* **1999**, *71*, (14), 2672-2677.

Wagner, A.; Raue, B.; Brauch, H. J.; Worch, E.; Lange, F. T., Determination of adsorbable organic fluorine from aqueous environmental samples by adsorption to polystyrene-divinylbenzene based activated carbon and combustion ion chromatography. *J. Chromatogr. A* **2013**, *1295*, 82-89.

Wang, N.; Szostek, B.; Folsom, P. W.; Sulecki, L. M.; Capka, V.; Buck, R. C.; Berti, W. R.; Gannon, J. T., Aerobic biotransformation of C-14-labeled 8-2 telomer B alcohol by activated sludge from a domestic sewage treatment plant. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2005**, *39*, (2), 531-538.

Wang, N.; Szostek, B.; Buck, R. C.; Folsom, P. W.; Sulecki, L. M.; Gannon, J. T., 8-2 Fluorotelomer alcohol aerobic soil biodegradation: Pathways, metabolites, and metabolite yields. *Chemosphere* **2009**, *75*, (8), 1089-1096.

Wang, N.; Liu, J. X.; Buck, R. C.; Korzeniowski, S. H.; Wolstenholme, B. W.; Folsom, P. W.; Sulecki, L. M., 6:2 Fluorotelomer sulfonate aerobic biotransformation in activated sludge of waste water treatment plants. *Chemosphere* **2011**, *82*, (6), 853-858.

Wang, Z. Y.; Cousins, I. T.; Scheringer, M.; Hungerbuhler, K., Fluorinated alternatives to long-chain perfluoroalkyl carboxylic acids (PFCAs), perfluoroalkane sulfonic acids (PFSAs) and their potential precursors. *Environ. Int.* **2013**, *60*, 242-248.

Wang, Z. Y.; DeWitt, J. C.; Higgins, C. P.; Cousins, I. T., A Never-Ending Story of Perand Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs)? *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (5), 2508-2518.

Washington, J. W.; Jenkins, T. M.; Weber, E. J., Identification of Unsaturated and 2H Polyfluorocarboxylate Homologous Series and Their Detection in Environmental

Samples and as Polymer Degradation Products. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2015**, *49*, (22), 13256-13263.

Watanabe, N.; Takemine, S.; Yamamoto, K.; Haga, Y.; Takata, M., Residual organic fluorinated compounds from thermal treatment of PFOA, PFHxA and PFOS adsorbed onto granular activated carbon (GAC). *J. Mater. Cycles Waste Manag.* **2016**, *18*, (4), 625-630.

Weiner, B.; Yeung, L. W. Y.; Marchington, E. B.; D'Agostino, L. A.; Mabury, S. A., Organic fluorine content in aqueous film forming foams (AFFFs) and biodegradation of the foam component 6: 2 fluorotelomermercaptoalkylamido sulfonate (6: 2 FTSAS). *Environ. Chem.* **2013**, *10*, (6), 486-493.

Willach, S.; Brauch, H. J.; Lange, F. T., Contribution of selected perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances to the adsorbable organically bound fluorine in German rivers and in a highly contaminated groundwater. *Chemosphere* **2016**, *145*, 342-350.

Xiao-Lan, H.; Hui-Qin, W.; Fang, H.; Xiao-Shan, L.; Zhi-Xin, Z., Determination of perfluorooctane sulphonate in fabric and leather by liquid chromatography-mass spectrometry. *Chin. J. Anal. Chem.* **2007**, *35*, (11), 1591-1595.

Xiao, F.; Golovko, S. A.; Golovko, M. Y., Identification of novel non-ionic, cationic, zwitterionic, and anionic polyfluoroalkyl substances using UPLC-TOF-MSE high-resolution parent ion search. *Anal. Chim. Acta* **2017**, *988*, 41-49.

Xiao, X.; Ulrich, B. A.; Chen, B. L.; Higgins, C. P., Sorption of Poly- and Perfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs) Relevant to Aqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF)-Impacted Groundwater by Biochars and Activated Carbon. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2017**, *51*, (11), 6342-6351.

Ye, F.; Tokumura, M.; Islam, M. S.; Zushi, Y.; Oh, J.; Masunaga, S., Spatial distribution and importance of potential perfluoroalkyl acid precursors in urban rivers and sewage treatment plant effluent - Case study of Tama River, Japan. *Water Res.* **2014**, *67*, 77-85.

Ye, F.; Zushi, Y.; Masunaga, S., Survey of perfluoroalkyl (PFAAs) and their precursors present in Japanese consumer products. *Chemosphere* **2015**, *127*, 262-268.

Yeung, L. W. Y.; Miyake, Y.; Taniyasu, S.; Wang, Y.; Yu, H. X.; So, M. K.; Jiang, G. B.; Wu, Y. N.; Li, J. G.; Giesy, J. P.; Yamashita, N.; Lam, P. K. S., Perfluorinated Compounds and Total and Extractable Organic Fluorine in Human Blood Samples from China. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2008**, *42*, (21), 8140-8145.

Yeung, L. W. Y.; Robinson, S. J.; Koschorreck, J.; Mabury, S. A., Part II. A Temporal Study of PFOS and Its Precursors in Human Plasma from Two German Cities in 1982-2009. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (8), 3875-3882.

Yeung, L. W. Y.; Robinson, S. J.; Koschorreck, J.; Mabury, S. A., Part I. A Temporal Study of PFCAs and Their Precursors in Human Plasma from Two German Cities 1982-2009. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2013**, *47*, (8), 3865-3874.

Yu, Q.; Zhang, R. Q.; Deng, S. B.; Huang, J.; Yu, G., Sorption of perfluorooctane sulfonate and perfluorooctanoate on activated carbons and resin: Kinetic and isotherm study. *Water Res.* **2009**, *43*, (4), 1150-1158.

Zabaleta, I.; Bizkarguenaga, E.; Bilbao, D.; Etxebarria, N.; Prieto, A.; Zuloaga, O., Fast and simple determination of perfluorinated compounds and their potential precursors in different packaging materials. *Talanta* **2016**, *152*, 353-363.

Zafeiraki, E.; Costopoulou, D.; Vassiliadou, I.; Bakeas, E.; Leondiadis, L., Determination of perfluorinated compounds (PFCs) in various foodstuff packaging materials used in the Greek market. *Chemosphere* **2014**, *94*, 169-176.

Zaggia, A.; Conte, L.; Falletti, L.; Fant, M.; Chiorboli, A., Use of strong anion exchange resins for the removal of perfluoroalkylated substances from contaminated drinking water in batch and continuous pilot plants. *Water Res.* **2016**, *91*, 137-146.

Zhang, S.; Lu, X.; Wang, N.; Buck, R. C., Biotransformation potential of 6:2 fluorotelomer sulfonate (6:2 FTSA) in aerobic and anaerobic sediment. *Chemosphere* **2016**, *154*, 224-230.

Zhao, H. X.; Guan, Y.; Qu, B. C., PFCA uptake and translocation in dominant wheat species (Triticum aestivum L.). *International Journal of Phytoremediation* **2018**, *20*, (1), 68-74.